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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wealthy Way Group, | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 to our shareholders. During the year, we complefed the acquisition of the
remaining shares of Shenzhen Haosen Credit Joint Stock Limited (ZRYITT/EFR/ NBEE R D BR A F]), which has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, thereby boosting our business research, development and investment in the small
loan sector. The mortgage loan business has developed info a core business of the Company, laying o good foundation for
the Group's development.

In 2021, the global and domestic economic environments remained complicated as COVID-19 seriously affected the
economy of both China and the world. Grand China Air, an important customer of the Company, has also been hard-hit in
this pandemic and underwent bankruptcy and restructuring, causing a fremendous impact on our performance. In 2021, the
Company completed the exiting of the Grand China Air project, repaid corresponding bank loans, reduced the finance costs
of the Company, and optimised our personnel. Meanwhile, the Group has also proactively maximised shareholders” interests
by flexibly adjusting the existing financial leasing and small loan businesses according to the changing operating environment.
In particular, with respect to the financial leasing business, the Company will pour its resources into the provision of flexible
financial leasing services to small and micro enterprises in the Greater Bay Area in order fo support the development of the
processing and manufacturing industries. It will also boost its risk control by upholding ifs risk diversification strategy. As for
the small loan business, the Company has shiffed the focus of its business portfolio to real estate products involving second
morigages by providing flexible secured loans targeting property owners in Shenzhen and the surrounding areas, and has
achieved good operating results.

As the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the economy lingers on, the global and domestic business environments
will continue to fluctuate. As such, the Company will sfrive to adjust its operating strategies in a flexible way in response to
the changing economic environment, opfimise the allocation of resources within the Group, and optimise various business
processes. Under the complicated economic environment, we aim fo develop the Company af a steady pace by realising
synergy between subsidiaries and remaining prudent in seeking new customers. | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all employees for their efforts and confributions made towards the development of the Company, as well as our business
partners and cusfomers for their relentless support.

Maintaining good corporate governance is crucial to the sustainable and healthy development of a company. We will
continue to improve and optimise our corporate governance by meetfing best practices and stakeholders” expectations. We
will implement our corporate governance system and incorporate the optimisation of departmental functions and authorisation
management and the improvement of our informatisation processs in our business execution so as to ensure the long-ferm
stability and effectiveness of our corporate governance structure. We will remain focused on developing healthy and friendly
relationships with our customers and business partners with our current prudent, risk-averse operafing approach, in order fo
grow fogether with our customers and create value for society.

LO Wai Ho
Wealthy Way Group Limited
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The macro environment in the PRC was still subject fo many uncertainties in 2021. The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
("COVID-19") continued to have an impact on the global and Chinese economies. In China, the economy continued to
be hit hard by sporadic COVID-19 cases, hence it is sfill in the process of adjusiment and recovery. In the said reporting
period, revenue of the Group was mainly derived from financial leasing interest income, factoring service income, loan
facilitation service income, loan inferest income and advisory services income, interest income from margin financing, and
commission and brokerage income which accounted for approximately RMB17.8 million, RMB4.5 million, RMB12.2 million,
RMB74.1 million, RMBO.9 million, RMB1.0 million and RMB1.5 million of the total revenue of the Group, respectively. In
2021, the Company adjusted ifs business sirategy in response to the economic environment and the impact brought about
by the COVID-19 pandemic. In relation fo ifs financial leasing and factoring business, in view of the economic and the
airline indusiry uncertainties posed by COVID-19, the Company reduced its financial cost by terminating its cooperation with
Grand China Air Co., lid* [KEEMZEBR AT ["GCA"), and repaying the relevant bank loans. In relation fo business
investment, the Company invested more resources on customer expansion and culfivation by targetting SMEs in Shenzhen,
Dongguan and other locations. The Company is also constantly adjusting relevant human resources based on the changes of
the market environment, such that the optimized allocation of resources can allow us to enhance our operational efficiency.
Our leasing and factoring business is in the process of adjustment, hence there may be a significant decline in the relevant
business revenue. In relation to our small loan business, the Company has successfully launched real estate products involving
second mortgages in the Shenzhen market, subsequent to which the Company is gradually phasing out of the market relating
to unsecured credit loans. In this year, a lof of new regulating policies were promulgated for the real estate industry. Based
on the relevant policy changes, the Company will adjust business sirategies in relation to our small loan business, so as to
increase our share in Shenzhen's second morigage loan market. The Group's securities dealing business mainly refers fo the
provision of securities dealing services fo customers in Hong Kong through Grand Pariners Securities Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The management will continue to pay attention fo the impact of relevant factors on our business operations and enhance
relevant risk management measures. The provision of finance leasing, factoring and advisory services fo various customers
and the provision of small loans to individual customers and other small private companies will allow us to expand our
customer base. The Group will also provide flexible financing services to potential customers of different sizes in various
industries.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion and analysis pertains to the financial information of the Group.

Revenue

The Group's revenue was derived from (i} interest income from financial leasing; [ii) interest income from factoring; |iii)
financial leasing related advisory services income; (iv) other financial advisory services income; (v) loan facilitation service
income; (vi] inferest income from small loans and other loans; (vii) commission and brokerage income from security dealing;
and (viii) inferest income from margin financing. The Group's financial leasing services include saleleaseback as well as
direct financial leasing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The revenue recorded a decrease by approximately RMB62.2 million, or approximately 35%, from approximately RMB176.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB113.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease was mainly resulted from the slowdown of the economy in the PRC under the impact of COVID-19 resulting in
less new origination of financial leasing and factoring contracts.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the interest income from financial leasing and factoring contributed approximately
RMB17.8 million [2020: approximately RMB36.6 million) and approximately RMB4.5 million (2020: approximately
RMB23.4 million), respectively. The decrease was mainly resulted from less origination of new financial leasing and factoring
confracts.

The Group's advisory services mainly include financial leasing advisory services, and other financial advisory services, which
confributed at aggregate of approximately RMBO.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
RMB1.1 million). Moreover, the Group continued fo provide loan facilitation service which contributed approximately
RMB12.2 million to the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB35.2 million). The
decrease of loan facilitation service was mainly resulted from the switch from unsecured credit loans o second mortgage loan
market.

The Group also derived interest income from small loans through a subsidiary, Shenzhen Haosen Credit Joint Stock Limited
("Shenzhen Haosen”), contributing at aggregate of approximately RMB74.1 million (2020: approximately RMB7 3.2
million) and interest income from other loans of approximately RMB1.8 million (2020: approximately RMB3.6 million) was
contributed by our wholly-owned subsidiary, Grand Partners Finance Llimited, for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Group also recorded commission and brokerage income from security dealing contributing approximately RMB1.5 million
(2020: approximately RMB1.3 million), while the interest income from margin financing also contributed approximately
RMB1.0 million (2020: approximately RMB1.4 million) from our wholly-owned subsidiary, Grand Pariners Securities Limited,
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors intend to focus on the microlending and financial leasing business in the future.

Other income

Other income decreased by approximately RMB2.6 million, or approximately 20%, from approximately RMB13.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB10.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due
fo an approximately RMB1.7 million decrease in the dividend income derived from financial assets at FVOCI.

Employee benefit expenses

Employee benefit expenses included primarily employee salaries and costs associated with other benefits. The employee
benefit expenses decreased by approximately RMBQ.2 million, or approximately 29%, from approximately RMB3 1.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB22.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly

due to the streamline of manpower.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly consisted of (i] audit fee of approximately RMBO.7 million (2020: approximately RMBO.8
million); (i) building management fee of approximately RMB1.0 million (2020: approximately RMB1.0 million); (iii)
commission fee of approximately RMB10.2 million (2020: approximately RMB13.6 million) which mainly comprised of
service charge of loan collection of approximately RMB.6 million (2020: approximately RMBZ.6 million) in relation to the
small loan business; (iv) equity seffled share-based payment of approximately RMBO. 1 million (2020: approximately RMB1.4
million) which referred to the grant of share option to external consultants on 22 January 2020; [v] legal and professional fee
of approximately RMB2.2 million (2020: approximately RMB2.7 million); (vi] bad debt writlen off of approximately RMB2.6
million [2020: approximately RMB®.8 million); and (vii) exchange difference of approximately RMBO.4 million (2020:
approximately: RMBO.9 million).

Finance cost

The finance cost decreased by approximately RMB30.2 million, or approximately 56%, from approximately RMB55.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB24.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly
due fo the repayment of bank and other borrowings during the year.

The Group received proceeds from the recovery of the default airline customer, GCA, through the two financial arrangements
fo fransfer the creditor’s right of GCA and a non-recourse factoring agreement to factor the creditor’s rights to two independent
third parties, respectively. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 16 March 2021 and 29 March 2021 for the
details of the assignment of creditor’s rights and the Company’s announcement dated 9 April 2021 for the details of the non-
recourse factoring agreement.

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company

As a result of above, profit for the year aftributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB30.6 million, whereas loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB111.6
million.

Dividend

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend HK3 cents per share to shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nlil).

Liquidity, financial resources and capital resources

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents were approximately RMB100.2 million (2020: approximately
RMB118.6 million). The working capital (current assets less current liabilities] and the total equity of the Group were
approximately RMB236.8 million (2020: approximately RMB544.6 million) and approximately RMB54 1.1 million (2020:
approximately RMB673.9 million), respectively. The drop in working capital is mainly due to the decrease in loan and
account receivables, which was partially offset by the decrease in bank and other borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings with maturity within one year amounted to approximately RMB99.2
million (2020: approximately RMB420.3 million) and the Group's bank borrowings with maturity exceed one year decreased
to nil {2020: approximately RMB84.7 million). The decrease in bank borrowings was brought by the early repayment of
bank borrowings.

Gearing rafio [tofal bank and other borrowings/fofal equity) as af 31 December 2021 was approximately 18.3% (2020:
approximately 75.0%). Such decrease was due to the early repayment of bank borrowings.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 March 2021, 29 March 2021 and @ April 2021 for further
details on the early repayment of bank borrowings and decrease in loan and account receivables.

Loan and account receivables

Lloan and account receivables consisted of (i) financial leasing receivables including the principal and inferest of financial
leasing; i) factoring loan receivables; (i) small loan receivables; (iv) other loan receivables; and (v) account receivables in
respect of securities dealing and broking services, financial advisory and loan facilitation services. As at 31 December 2021,
the loan and account receivables were approximately RMB594.7 million (2020: approximately RMB1,006.5 million), and
this decrease was mainly due fo the decrease in financial leasing receivables and other loan receivables.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no capital commitments contracted but not provided for (2020: RMB77.0 million).

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 71 full time employees (2020: 139) for its principal activities. Employees’
benefits expenses (including Direcfors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately RMB22.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB31.9 million). The Group recognises the importance of retaining high calibre
and competent staff and continues fo provide remuneration packages and incentives to employees with reference to the
performance of the Group, the performance of individuals and prevailing market rates. Other various benefits, such as
medical and retirement benefits, are also provided. In addition, share options may be granted to eligible employees of the
Group in accordance with the ferms of the share option scheme adopted by the Company. Share award scheme has also
been adopted and awarded shares will be granted to eligible employees of the Group in accordance with the ferms of the
share award scheme.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's business operations are conducted in the financial leasing market and smallloan market in the PRC. Accordingly,
the Group's business, financial position, results of operations and prospects are significantly affected by economic, political
and legal developments in the PRC.

Being a financial service provider, the Group has implemented a risk management system to mitigate the risks arising from its
daily operations. The risk management structure of the Group consists of the risk control committee af the top, under which are {i)
the risk management depariment, i) the business development department, and (iii) the accounting and finance department.
Potential business opportunities are assessed by the business development department based on the potential customer's
background, credit records, financial position and the underlying assets. The risk management department reviews all given
information meticulously and considers relevant risk factors. Where necessary, external legal advisors may be engaged to
evaluate potential legal issues. The Group's accounting and finance department also works closely with the risk management
department to assist in risk assessment by providing financial and tax opinions. The risk control committee as the final decision
maker has the ultimate authority to approve each project. The Group also periodically conducts postleasing management on
the customers and monitors financial leasing receivables fo review the ongoing risk exposure of the Group.

The Directors take both macro and micro economic conditions info account before making business decisions. Under the
impact of COVID-19, the Group has taken closer monitoring fo assess risks of existing customers to respond fo the fast
changing market. Moreover, given the recent volatility in the economy and financial market of the PRC, the Group has
been more prudent in the selection of high-quality customers. The Group will continue to raise ifs risk management standards
with better allocation of resources and fine-funing its operational process, such as the introduction of credit assessment and
approval procedures, fo enhance the customer selection process.

In addition, the Group infends fo improve the information technology system to assist in the collection of information with better
accuracy and the review of the financial and operational status of the customers with better efficiency. The Group will also
continue fo expand the risk management team to handle the additional work arising from our expanding business operations,
and allocate sufficient manpower to maintain an appropriate risk reward balance.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 June 2017, the Company conditionally approved and adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
in accordance with the provision of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company fo grant options fo the employee, advisor, consultant, service provider, agent, customer, pariner or joint venture
partner of the Company or any subsidiary (including any director of the Company or any subsidiary) who is in fulHime or part
time employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary af the time when an opfion is granted fo such
employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer, pariner or jointventure partner or any person who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Participants”) as incentive or reward
for their contribution to the Group fo subscribe for the Shares thereby linking their inferest with that of the Group. On and
subject 1o the ferms of the Share Option Scheme and the requirements of the Listing Rules (in particular as fo grant of options
to Directors, chief executives and substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates), the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to make an offer for the grant of
an option fo any participant as the Board may determine. The number of Shares which may be issued pursuant fo the exercise
of the options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 15,552,300 shares of the Company in total.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

On 4 July 2018, under the Share Option Scheme, 4,320,000 share options to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,320,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted fo certain employees with validity period of the options from

4 July 2018 to 4 July 2019, and exercise price of HK$6.02. All options have been exercised.

On 24 April 2019, under the Share Option Scheme, 10,075,000 share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
10,075,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted fo certain employees or other eligible
participants under the Share Option Scheme with validity periods of the options vary from (i) 24 April 2019 to 23 April
2022; (i) 24 April 2019 to 23 April 2020; (i) 24 April 2020 to 23 April 2021; and (iv) 24 April 2021 to 23 April
2022, and exercise price of HK$7.00, and an aggregate of 1,227,000 share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2021.

On 22 January 2020, under the Share Option Scheme, 10,200,000 share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
10,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to certain employees or other eligible
participants under the Share Option Scheme with validity period of the options from 22 January 2020 to 21 January 2023,
and exercise price of HK$6.12 and an aggregate of 1,060,000 share options have been exercised up to 31 December
2021.

For opfions granted under the Share Option Scheme under 4 July 2018, 24 April 2019 and 22 January 2020, the exercise
price in relation fo each optfion was determined by the Board, but in any event would not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day or (i) the average of the closing prices of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant or (iii) the par value of a share of the

Company. For further details of the grant of share option, please refer to the announcements of the Company published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on 4 July 2018, 24 April 2019 and 22 January 2020.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021:

Number of share options
Closing price Granted Exercised Lapsed
beforethe ~ Outstonding during the during the duringthe ~ Outstanding
date of grant as ot year ended year ended year ended as ot
Exercise of share lonvary ~ 31December  31December ~ 31December 31 December
Name of Grantee Grant date Exercise period price options 2021 200 201 200 200
Director of the Company or ifs subsidiary
Jie Weiquon 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - (30,000 -
24 Aoil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 40,000 - - - 40,000
Senior Management of the Company o ifs subsidiary
Shi lei 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - 30,000] -
24 Aoil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 40,000 - - - 40,000
Xie Zhuochou 24 Aoil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 22,500 - - 22,500) -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - 30,000/ -
Shi Yumei 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 22,500 - - 22,500 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - - 30,000
Wong Mun Po 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - 30,000] -
24 Aoil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 40,000 - - [40,000] -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Number of share options
Closing price Granted Exercised Lapsed
beforethe ~ Oufstanding during the during the duringthe ~ Outstanding
date of grant asot  yearended year ended year ended as of
Exercise of share Vanuary ~ 31December 31 December  31December 31 December
Name of Granfee Gront date Exercise period price opfions 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Other employees of the Company o its subsidiary or other eligible parficipants under the Share Option Scheme
Other employees of the Company or s subsidiary
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Aprl 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 187,500 - - (187,500 -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 250,000 - - [60,000) 190,000
22 January 2020 22 Jonuary 2020~ 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 6,200,000 - {1,060,000) - 5,140,000
Other eligible portcipanis
Graniee A [noke 1] 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2019 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 407,000 - - - 407,000
Grarlee B fnoe 1) 24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2019~ 23 Aprl 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 440,000 - - - 440,000
Grartee C nole 2) 24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Aprl 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 fpil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - (20,000 -
Grantee D [note 2) 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - [15,000] -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Grantee £ fnole 2) 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - 15,000] -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - [20,000) -
Grontee f fnote 2) 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - - 20,000
Grontee G (note 2) 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apill 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - 15,000) -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Aprl 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Garle H note 2) 24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Aprl 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - (30,000) -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 40,000 - - - 40,000
Grontee | [noke 2| 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Graniee [note 2) 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - [15,000] -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 Hk$7.00 20,000 - - - 20,000
Grantee K [note 2) 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 22,500 - - 22,500) -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - (30,000) -
Grontee L rote 2) 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000] -
Gianlee M nofe 2] 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apill 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Aprl 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000 -
Graree N [nole 2) 24 Apil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Aprl 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - (20,000 -
Grantee O fnole 2) 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - [15,000] -
24 Aiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000] -
Grontee P nofe 3] 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Janvory 2020~ 21 Janvary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 200,000 - - - 200,000
Grantee Q [nole 3| 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Janvory 2020~ 21 Janvary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 200,000 - - - 200,000
Grontee R (nofe 3] 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Januory 2020~ 21 January 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 100,000 - - - 100,000
Grontee S [noke 1] 22 Jonvary 2020 22 Janvary 2020~ 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 100,000 - - - 100,000
Grontee T note 3) 22 Janvary 2020 22 Jonvary 2020 - 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 400,000 - - - 400,000
Grontee U note 3] 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Jonvary 2020 - 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
10,807,000 - {1,060,000) (880,000| 8,867,000




Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Notes:

Eligible participants represent 3 consultants who possess comprehensive knowledge and industry experience in business operation of financial leasing or
factoring services and extensive business network in China. The consuliants provide advisory and consultancy services to the Group, including consultancy
coverage of latest business operation industry updates in financial leasing and factoring sectors and advice on the Group's business development for

sourcing potential new financial leasing/factoring projects to the Group.

Share options are granted fo these consuliants fo affract, refain and maintain ongoing business relationships with them, encouraging such eligible
participants to continue fo contribute positively to the Group and enabling the Group to fosfer a sustained/long term co-operation with such persons
through their share ownership of the Group upon their exercise of options to achieve longterm growth of the Group and to recognise their contributions
in terms of their advisory and consultancy services fo the Group, which is expected to be beneficial to the Group and align the inferests of them and

shareholders of the Company.

Eligible participants represent 13 consuliants who possess broad business operation experience in small loan and extensive network in China. The

consultants provide customers referral to the Group's small loan business.

Share options are granted fo these consuliants to affract, retain and maintain ongoing business relationships with them, encouraging such eligible
participants fo continue to contribute positively to the Group and enabling the Group to foster a sustained/long term co-operation with such persons
through their share ownership of the Group upon their exercise of options fo achieve longterm growth of the Group and to recognise their confribufions
in terms of referring pofential customers to the Group and introducing favourable business relationships with potential customers, which is expected fo be
beneficial to the Group and align the inferests of them and shareholders of the Company.

Eligible participants represent 5 consultants who possess comprehensive knowledge and indusiry experience in business operation of small loan and
financial leasing services and extensive business network especially in Shenzhen or Dongguan in China. The consuliants provide advisory and consultancy
services to the Group, including consuliancy service and assistance in dealing with overdue customers in small loan and financial leasing sectors and

advice on potential investments related to the Group's business.

Share options are granted fo these consuliants to affract, retain and maintain ongoing business relationships with them, encouraging such eligible
participants to continue to contribute positively to the Group and enabling the Group to foster a sustained/long term co-operation with such persons
through their share ownership of the Group upon their exercise of options fo achieve longterm growth of the Group and to recognise their confribufions
in terms of their advisory and consuliancy services o the Group, which is expected to be beneficial o the Group and align the inferests of them and

shareholders of the Company.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme on & November 2019 (the "Share Award Scheme’) for the purposes
of, amongst others, effectively recognising employee’s contribution to the Group and/or providing an incentive to employee

fo remain with or join the Group, for participation in the Scheme as a selected employee and determine the purchase,

subscription and/or allocation of awarded shares according to the terms of the Share Award Scheme. However, until so
selected, no Employee shall be enfifled to participate in the scheme.

The Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain

in force for 10 years from that date, i.e., & November 2029.

Since the adoption of the Share Award Scheme and up fo the date of this annual report, none of the issued Shares has been
purchased or issued nor any awards have been granted under the Share Award Scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 January 2022 and 25 February 2022, the Company entered info two subscription agreements with Mr. Lo as the
guarantor and investors as the subscribers in the connection with the issue of 8% bond with aggregate principle amount of

HK$20,000,000. The bonds shall be redeemable after 2 years from the date of initial issuance.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 January 2022, 13 January 2022, 23 February 2022 and 25
February 2022 published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange for further details.

OUTLOOK AND PLANS

In 2022, the Group will continue fo exercise prudence for effective cost control and when developing business with high-
quality customers, in order fo brace ifself for the current challenging environment. The Group will confinue fo strengthen its
risk management capabilities and do business with current and new customers that have good development potential in their
respective indusries. The Direcfors consider that in future, the Company will focus on enhancing its internal informatisation
and strengthen its risk management abilities with the functions of its systems. More effective measures to cut costs and increase
income will also be adopted. Reasonable cost controls will be put in place while capitalising on the advantages of its existing
businesses fo increase the profitability of the Company. The Company will continue fo enhance its financing copacity and
develop more partners to enhance its comprehensive service-ability. The major customers of the Company are in the PRC.
The Company will continue o pay close attention to the situations of its customers and adjust its business strategies in a
flexible manner. The Direcfors consider that the promotion of digitalisation of business through strengthening the infegration
of resources among the Group's business departments and the synergy among its subsidiaries will be a main focus of the
Company and an effective approach for the Company to tackle with the complicated economic environment.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Wai Ho (E &%), aged 52, is an executive Director, the founder, chairman and chief executive officer of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the Group.

Mr. Lo has over 25 years of experience in the areas of corporate management, finance and property development. From
July 1993 to December 1997, Mr. Lo was the deputy general manager of Heng Feng Invesiments (China) Development
Company Limited ["Heng Feng”] (formerly known as Stable Profit Industries Limited and Heng Feng Investments (Chinal)
Development Company Llimited). Heng Feng is principally engaged in the business of property development projects in the
PRC. Mr. Lo was responsible for the corporate management, finance and the PRC property projects of Heng Feng. In January
1998, he was appointed as a director of Heng Feng.

Since the beginning of 2012 after Mr. Lo founded the Group, he has been primarily responsible for overall strategy of Heng
Feng. He has not been involved in its dayfo-day operations.

Mr. Lo has also been one of the directors of (i) Grand Pariners Asset Management limited since June 2011, a corporation
licensed under the SFO to carry out type 9 (asset management) regulated activities; (i) Grand Pariners Investment Consultants
Limited since August 2015, a corporation licensed under the SFO to carry out type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities; and (iii) Grand Partners Securities Limited since October 2015, a corporation licensed under the SFO to carry
out type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activities. Mr. Lo is not involved in their day-fo-day operations and his primary
responsibilities are to preside over and participate in board meetings, provide strategic advice and guidance to the
management of Grand Pariers Asset Management Limited, Grand Partners Investiment Consultants Limited and Grand Partners
Securities Limited.

Mr. Lo is the uncle of Mr. Xie Weiquan (the Group's non-executive Director) and Mr. Xie Zhuochou (a member of the Group's
senior management]. Other than disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Lo is not connected with any other Directors, members of
the senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Chan Shuk Kwan Winnie (BR3#&), aged 56, was an executive Director and was mainly responsible for the overall
strafegy planning of the Group unfil her resignation. She joined the Group on 12 May 2016 and resigned on 30 July
2021. She has over 20 years of experience in the banking and finance industry in Hong Kong, and specializes in credit
analysis and loan administration. From January 1989 to August 1990, Ms. Chan was a credit analyst of OTB Card
Company Limited, a company which was principally engaged in the credit card business. From August 1990 to August
1992, she was employed as credit analyst in the loans department of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Hong Kong] Limited (formerly
known as The Sumitomo Trust Finance (H.K.) Limited), a company which was principally engaged in the business of debt
investment, provision of securities, investment advisory and fund management services. From February 1996 to July 2013,
Ms. Chan worked in Industrial & Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (formerly known as Belgian Bank and Fortis Bank
Asia HK), a licensed bank registered with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and her last position was credit manager in the
credit department.

In April 1988, Ms. Chan obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science from University of South Florida, USA.

Ms. Chan is not connected with any other Directors, members of the senior management, substantial shareholders or other
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Xie Weiquan (#{&2), aged 40, was appointed as non-executive Director on 12 May 2016 and has been re-
designated from non-executive Director to executive Director on 2 January 2020 and is mainly responsible for advising on
business opportunities for investiment, development and expansion of the Group. He joined the Group on 1 January 2013
in charge of the finance and risk management, human resources and general administration of CWW leasing and CWW
Services. Mr. Xie has been re-designated as the consultant of CWW leasing and CWW Services since 12 May 2016 1o

render advices particularly relating to finance and risk management.

Mr. Xie has extensive experience in finance, investment and asset management. From July 2006 to July 2009, Mr. Xie
worked at FEIFLZ AFRBIZMDEBRAE (China Ping An Life Insurance Co., ltd.), which is an insurance company and
he was primarily responsible for the development of investment management system and procurement. From September
2009 to December 2012, he was the manager of finance of ERIELITELEEABR AT (GD Hengfeng Investment
Group Co. limited*), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC which is principally engaged in the business of
property investment and development. Mr. Xie has been a representative and member of the investment committee of Grand
Partners Asset Management Limited since February 2014, and has been ifts Responsible Officer since 21 April 2017. Mr.
Xie has also been a representative of Grand Partners Investment Consultants Limited since October 2016. Mr. Xie is primarily
responsible for the business operations and marketing of Grand Partners Asset Management Llimited and Grand Partners
Investment Consultants Limited.

In July 2004, Mr. Xie graduated from FEER/E T3 K2 (Harbin Institute of Technology), PRC with a degree of Bachelor
of Management in Science and Engineering. In July 2006, Mr. Xie graduated from MSERE T % A2 (Harbin Institute of
Technology) PRC, with a degree of Master of Management in Science and Engineering. In November 2015, he obtfained o
degree of Master of Business Administration in Finance from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. In November 2021, he
obtained a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan University.

Mr. Xie is the nephew of Mr. lo (the Group's founder, chairman, chief executive officer, an executive Director and a
Controlling Shareholder) and cousin of Mr. Xie Zhuochou (@ member of the Group's senior management]. Other than
disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Xie is not connected with any other Directors, members of the senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Tak Kong (E187I), aged 53, was appointed as an INED on 19 June 2017. He is mainly responsible for providing
independent judgment on the issues of strafegy, performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He has
over 27 years of experience in financial accounting and auditing. Between June 2004 to September 2015, Mr. Ha was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (Bl L& S EBR A
7)) (formerly known as Garron International Limited) (stock code: 1226). Between September 2007 and October 2008, Mr.
Ha was an independent non-executive director of Seamless Green China (Holdings) Limited (#E484% &9 Bl 2 BR A )
(formerly known as Fast Systems Technology (Holdings) Limited (Rt &EBIAR A F]) (stock code: 8150). Since December
1992, Mr. Ha has been employed as the chief financial officer of World Wide (Hardware| Industrial Co., an export/import
trading company.

In December 2002, Mr. Ha graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Accounting from the University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Ha has been admitted as an associate of the Association of International Accountants since November 2003, an associate

of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since March 2004 and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since July 2004,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Ip Chi Wai (E&R), aged 54, was appointed as an INED on 19 June 2017. He is mainly responsible for providing
independent judgement on the issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Company. Mr. Ip
has been an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (7288 /& 5 B B BR A §)) (stock code:
292) and Dingyi Group Investment Limited ({2 B ERE B R A R]) (stock code: 508) since September 2003 and March
2016 respectively.

Mr. Ip graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Laws in December 1990. He is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong and has over 28 years of experience in the legal profession.

Mr. Kam Wai Man (H£R), aged 46, was appointed as an INED on 2 January 2020 and has over 15 years of working
experience in corporate finance. Mr. Kam has served as a managing director of Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax Capital”)
since February 2017. He has been a responsible officer of Innovax Capital for Type 6 regulated activities (advising on
corporate finance] under the SFO since April 2017 and Mr. Kam is one of the sponsor principals of Innovax Capital Limited.
From April 2003 to November 2005, he served as a licensed representative at Kingsway Capital Limited. He then worked
at China Everbright Capital Limited from November 2005 to February 2017 with his last position being the managing
director and head of the corporate finance department. He has been an independent non-executive director of Duiba Group
Limited (Stock code: 1753), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since April 2019. Mr. Kam obtained a bachelor
of arts (honors) in business studies from City University of Hong Kong in November 1997 and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2004. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Insfitute of Cerlified Public Accountants and a CFA Institute charterholder.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shi Lei (F%), aged 43, joined the Group on 1 September 2014 as the general manager of CWW leasing and the
deputy general manager of CWW Services. He is mainly responsible for the Group's overall business development.

Mr. Shi has over 15 years of experience in the financial leasing industry in the PRC. Mr. Shi obtained a bachelor degree in
financial management from F LB 48 K22 (Central University of Finance and Economics), PRC in June 2001. From July 2001
to March 2005, he had been employed as accounting officer, project manager of the leasing and finance departments,
head of the capital departiment and head of the investment banking department at China Development Bank Financial Leasing
Co., Id. (HIRE@BERMDBBRAE) (formerly known as Shenzhen Finance leasing Co. ld. (FIIE A EFRAF).
Mr. Shi was mainly responsible for overseeing ifs leasing and finance, capital and investment banking department. During
March 2005 to September 2011, Mr. Shi had been the deputy general manager of the accounting and finance department
and the general manager of the leasing department of FIHBIBRAEARMR AT (South China International Leasing Co.
ltd.). Mr. Shi was mainly responsible for overseeing its finance and leasing department. From October 2011 to September
2014, Mr. Shi was the deputy general manager of RYIIT KRR EHEHR QA (Shenzhen Win Time Financial leasing
Company Limited). Mr. Shi was mainly responsible for overseeing its business section.

Mr. Xie Zhuochou (#HJE), aged 38, joined the Group as the head of the risk management department of CWW Leasing

on 1 February 2019. He is responsible for overseeing the risk management department.
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Mr. Xie graduated from ZERFIE T REZ2 (South China University of Technology) in 2006 with a bachelor’s degree in business
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xie RINE LGS EEAEBRAF (Hengfeng Haiyue International Hotel
Company Limited*) as the general manager of the finance department during August 2006 to February 2007. From March
2007 to March 2008, Mr. Xie worked as the project manager for Z&YII1E L FE HiZE B R A 7] (Shenzhen Hengfeng Real Estate
Co. limited*). From March 2008 to December 2017, Mr. Xie worked as the head of accounting and finance department of
BREBELEEAFMRAF (GD. Henglfeng Group Co. Lid.*).

Mr. Xie is the nephew of Mr. lo (the Group's founder, chairman, chief executive officer, an executive Director and a
Confrolling Shareholder) and cousin of Mr. Xie Weiquan (the Group's executive Director). Other than disclosed in this annual
report, Mr. Xie is not connected with any other Directors, members of the senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Shi Yumei (£ E#8), aged 37, joined the Group on 30 November 2012 as the head of accounting and finance
department of CWW Leasing and CWW Services. She is mainly responsible for the accounting and finance of CWW
leasing and CWWV Services.

Ms. Shi has over 9 years of experience in financial accounting in the PRC. She was the head of the accounting and finance
depariment of RIITT = BERKM AR 2] (Shenzhen City Sanzhi Telecommunications Technology Company Limited) from
January 2008 to December 2012. Ms. Shi obtained a bachelor degree in accounting from %2 K2 (Yanan University), the

PRC in July 2007. She has been qualified as an intermediate accountant in the PRC in October 2012.

Mr. Wong Mun Po (E30K) aged 52, joined the Group on 1 July 2013 as the general manager of Shenzhen Haosen
Credit Limited ("Haosen”) and resigned on 28 February 2021. He was mainly responsible for Haosen's overall business
development until his resignation.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years in microloan markets in both Hong Kong and PRC. Mr. Wong obtained a degree of Business
Administration from the Prima Bestari Insfitute of Higher Education, Malaysia in 2011. After leaving Prime Credit Limited (Hong
Kong) as the area manager in June 2007, Mr Wong devoted to utilise his professional knowledge in the microloan market in
PRC. Prior fo joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the general manager of & #i#/ NEBEH IR D BR AT (Chongging Boda
Credit Limited) from February 2010 to April 2013. During that period, Mr. Wong had successfully established the profitable
microloan business segment from scratch. Furthermore, Mr. Wong is experienced in corporate management, customer
relations and liaison with banks and regulators.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Yau Hin (#k46%8), aged 39, was appointed as company secretary of the Company on 16 November 2021. Mr.
Llam graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with an Associate Degree of Business Administration in Accountancy
in November 2006 with over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate governance. Mr. lam was
admitted as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in May 2011.

Ms. Fok Chau Tung (BEfK¥), aged 34, was appointed as company secrefary of the Company on 21 January 2019 and
resigned on 15 November 2021. She holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the University of Melboume, Australia.
She has been admitled as a member of the CPA Australia since March 2014 and the member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since March 2016. She has over @ years of experience in accounting, audit, company
secretarial and financial reporting fields. She has been working in audit firm since June 2010 and worked for the Group
since September 2015 as the finance manager until her resignation.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board hereby presents to the Shareholders the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate governance and has set up procedures on corporate governance that
comply with the principles in the Corporate Govermnance Code (the "CG Code”) as sef out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board of the Company have performed the
corporate governance duties which include the following: (i) fo develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; [ii) to review and monitor the training and confinuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees
and Directors; and (v] fo review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

During the Reporting Period and up fo the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as follow:

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. 1O Wai Ho

Executive Directors
Ms. CHAN Shuk Kwan Winnie (Resigned on 30 July 2021}
Mr. XIE Weiquan

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”)
Mr. HA Tak Kong

Mr. IP Chi Wai

Mr. KAM Wai Man

Responsibilities of the Board

The functions and duties of the Board include, but are not limited to, convening general meetings, reporting on the
performance of the Group at general meetings, implementing resolutions passed at general meetings, formulating business
and investment plans, preparing annual budget and final accounts, preparing proposals on profit distribution and increasing
or decreasing the registered capifal, as well as exercising other authorities, functions and responsibilities in accordance with
the Arficles of Association. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 16 of this annual report under the
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. lo Wai Ho, the Chairman of the Company is responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the
Group. Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. lo, being the Chairperson of the Board, has also been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group who will keep provided strong and consistent leadership to achieve strategic business growth
of the Group to enable a better execution of longterm strategies. All the Board members will be ensured to keep abreast of
adequate, complete and reliable information by Mr. Lo on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Moreover, the three
independent Non-Executive Directors (the “INEDs") provide independent and professional opinion on issues addressed at
Board meetings and therefore, the Board believes that there is a balance of power and authority governed by the current
Board structure with half of them being the INEDs and does nof intend fo make any change in the composition of the
Board. The Board will continue to review the Board composition from time fo fime and shall make necessary changes when
appropriate in a fimely manner accordingly and inform the Company's shareholders.

Mr. Lo is the uncle of Mr. Xie. Other than disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Lo is not connected with any other Direcfors of
the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Xie Weiquan has been redesignated and appointed for a specific term which
may be extended as each of the Executive Director and the Company may agree, unless previously terminated in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service confract.

Mr. Xie is the nephew of Mr. Lo (the Group's founder, chairman, chief executive officer, an executive Director and a
Contfrolling Shareholder). Other than disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Xie is not connected with any other Directors of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board af all times complied with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relafing to
the appointment of af least three INEDs representing at least one-third of the Board with af least one of them has possessed
relevant professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. A written annual confirmation
of their independence satisfied with guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules have been received from each of the
INEDs and the Company considers each of them to be independent. The Company is of the opinion that the INEDs with their
wide spectrum of knowledge and extensive business experience, will objectively scrutinise the Company’s performance. Each
of the INEDs will inform the Company in writing as soon as practicable if there is any change of circumstances which may
affect his independence. The INEDs are also subject fo rofafion at annual general meetfings pursuant fo the articles of association
of the Company.

The Company has maintained an updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions on websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Independent non-executive directors are identified in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Appointment and Rotation of Directors

Pursuant to Arficles, at each annual general meetfing one-hird of the Directors for the time being, shall refire from office by
rofation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Code Provision A1.1 prescribes that at least four regular Board meetings
should be held each year at approximately quarterly infervals with actively participation of a majority of the Directors, either in

person or through other electronic means of communication.

During the year, the Board held a total of ten regular board meetings. Each Director's attendance record for the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meetings is set out as follow:

Board Meetings and Attendance

Annual Regular
general board  Nomination Remuneration Audit
meeting meeting Committee Committee Committee
Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. LO Wai Ho 1/1 7/7 2/2 2/2 -
Executive Directors
Ms. CHAN Shuk Kwan Winnie
[resigned on 30 July 2021] 1/1 3/3 - - -
Mr. XIE Weiquan 1/1 7/7 - - -
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. HA Tak Kong 1/1 7/7 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. IP Chi Wai 1/1 7/7 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. KAM Wai Man 1/1 7/7 - - 2/2

The Board having considered the aftendance records of the Directors is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient fime
performing his responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

We have esfablished the following commitiees under the Board: the audit commitiee (the "Audit Committee”], the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The committees
operate in accordance with the terms of reference established by the Board. The ferms of reference of the Audit committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution
of the Board passed on 19 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C3 of the Corporate
CGovernance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules [the “Corporate Governance Code”). The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of the external
auditor, review the financial statements and provide advice in respect of financial reporting and oversee the internal control
procedures and risk management of the Group. The Audit Committee currently comprises of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ha
Tak Kong, Mr. Ip Chi Wai and Mr. Kam Wai Man. Mr. Ha Tak Kong is the chairman of the Audit Commitiee. No member
of the Audit Commitiee is a member of the former or existing auditor of the Company. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available at the Company’s website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Company has held two meetings of Audit Committee in March 2021 and August 2021.

Up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee has reviewed with the management team and the external auditors the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing infernal controls and financial reporting
matters and results of the Group of the Reporting Period and proposed adoption of the same by the Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company esfablished the Remuneration Committee in accordance with Rule 3.25 of the listing Rules pursuant to a
resolution of the Board passed on 19 June 2017 with written ferms of reference in compliance with paragraph B1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary funcfions of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior management, review performance
based remuneration and ensure none of Directors determine their own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee comprises
of two INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ha Tak Kong, Mr. Ip Chi Wai and Mr. Lo Wai Ho. Mr. Ha Tak Kong
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, the Company has held two meetings of Remuneration Committee in March 2021 and August 2021, in
which the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the current direcfors’ fee, the current remuneration policy of the Board and
made recommendations fo the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 June 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size, and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and making recommendations fo the Board on matters relating o the appointment of
Direcfors. The Nomination Commitiee comprises of two INEDs and one executive Direcfor, namely Mr. Ha Tak Kong, Mr. Ip

Chi Wai and Mr. lo Wai Ho. Mr. Ha Tak Kong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Company has held two meetings of Nomination Committiee in March 2021 and August 2021, in which
the Nomination Committee had reviewed the current Board's structure, size and composition and made recommendations of
appointment of the Board.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that he has, throughout the Reporting Period,
complied with the required standards set out therein.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Direcfors’ fees are subject fo shareholders’ approval at general meetings of the Company. Other emoluments are
determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Board Diversity policy

This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wealthy Way Group
Limited (the "Company”).

Vision
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

Policy Statement

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the aftainment of ifs sfrategic objectives and its susfainable development. In designing
the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited 1o gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates of the Board members will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited 1o
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and confribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect. The Board’s composition
will be disclosed in the corporate governance report of the Company annually in accordance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Review of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions to the Policy that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

The Board acknowledges that gender diversity is an important element in Board composition. However, subsequent to the
resignation of Ms. Chan Shuk Kwan, Winnie (our past executive director] in July 2021, there is no female director on the
Board as at the date of this annual report. While the Company is continuously looking for suitable candidates fo enhance the
gender diversity of the Board, the Company is in the course of identifying suitable female staff to take the role of a Director
and the nomination committee of the Company is also monitoring their performance. If there is suitable female candidate, the
Company will consider inviting such candidate fo join the Board. The Directors believe that the Board will achieve gender
diversity by next three years.

Dividend policy

Under the Dividend Policy, in circumstances that the Group is profitable and without affecting the normal operations and
future growth of the Group, the Company may consider declaring and paying dividends fo ifs shareholders. Such declaration
and payment of dividends shall remain to be defermined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject fo all applicable
requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association of
the Company. According fo the Dividend Policy, while the Company infends to declare and pay dividends in the future, the
payment and the amount of any dividends will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited fo: (i) the Group's
actual and expected financial performance; (i) the Group's expected working capifal requirements and future development
plans; (i) the Group's liquidity position; (iv) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other
infernal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and position of the Company; (v)
shareholders’ interests; (vi] any resfrictions on payment of dividends; (vii] and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy and the Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in ifs sole and
absolute discrefion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board deems fit and necessary.
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out in any
of the plans or at all.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The company has appointed Moore Stephens CPA Limited ("Moore”) as the Company's external auditor during the year.
The Audit Committee considered that these audit and non-audit services have no adverse effect on the independence of
Moore. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of Moore. During the year, Moore has rendered audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is sef out as follows:

Amount of Fees

Types of services provided by Moore RMB$'000
Audit services 783
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY OF FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
each financial year with a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group.

The Directors consider that the consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with all
statutory requirements and appropriate accounting standards are applied consistently.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability fo confinue as a going concern. The statement by the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial stafements is set out in the secfion headed “Independent Audifor’s Report” of this report.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged that it is its responsibility to ensure the Company maintains an effective risk management and
infernal control sysfem to minimize risks in our business activities and fo protect the long-term interests of the Group and the
Shareholders. During the financial year, a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of
the Company in respect of the Group's financial, operational and compliance confrols had been conducted through the effort
of the Board, the Audit Commitiee and the management. The Company has established interal audit function. The Board
acknowledged that adequate infernal control system was implemented to ensure the effectiveness functioning of financial,
operational and compliance controls.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Yau Hin was appointed as company secretary of the Company on 16 November 2021. During the Reporting
Period, Mr. Lam has complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the listing Rules.

Ms. Fok Chau Tung was appointed as company secrefary of the Company on 21 January 2019 and resigned on
15 November 2021. During the Reporting Period, Ms. Fok has complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established a shareholders” communication policy and the Board reviews it regularly to ensure its
effectiveness. Under this policy, the Company communicates with its shareholders and the investment community mainly
through various means: (i) the holding of annual general meefings and other general meetings; (ii] the timely publication of the
Company's announcements, inferim and annual financial reports, and/or circulars as required under the Listing rules and {iii)
the availability of all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and any of the Company's corporate communications
and publications on the Company’s website at cwl.com.

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s website fo raise enquiries through the Invesfor Relations
Department whose confact details are available on the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information” of this annual
report.
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The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s] proposed at a general meeting in a
timely manner in accordance with the Company’s articles and the Listing Rules and Shareholders are encouraged to attend
and participate in general meetings. The Chairman of the Board and the chairperson/chairman of the Board committees,
or their delegates and the external auditors will attend the upcoming annual general meeting fo answer any questions from
shareholders. Notice of the Annual General Meeting, seffing out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and
other relevant information, is sent fo all shareholders af least 30 days prior to the date of the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene meetings

Pursuant to Arficle 64 of the Articles, one or more shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetfings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the board of direcfors or the company secretary of the Company, to require an exiraordinary general meeting fo
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition (the “Requisition”).

The Requisition shall be made either in hard copy form by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3402, 34/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai for the attention of the Board of Directors/
Company Secretary or via email fo wealthyway@cwl.com.

Procedures for shareholders to put through proposals at general meetings

Any shareholder who wishes to put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company shall submit such proposals to
the Board in writing for the Board's consideration either via mail to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3402, 34/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai or via email to wealthyway@cwl.com not less
than seven days prior to the date of the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward enquiries to the Board

To put forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders shall send their writtlen enquiries to the Company. The Company will

normally not deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Address: Room 3402, 34/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, for the attention of the Board of
Directors/Company Secrefary

Email: wealthyway@cwl.com

Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the “Amended and Restated M&A”)
was adopted on 20 July 2017 and took effect from the Listing Date 21 July 2017. A copy of the Amended and Restated
M&A is available on both the websites of the Company at cwl.com and the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors of the Company hereby presents the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are (i) provision of financial leasing, factoring and financial advisory services in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"); i) provision of small loans and related loan facilitation services in the PRC; and
(i) provision of invesiment management and advisory services, securities dealing and broking services and other financial
services in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are sef out in the consolidated sfatement of comprehensive
income in this annual report. The Board of Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3 cents per Share [2020:
nil) for the year ended 31 December 2021, held by the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on a record date to be announced by the Company subject to the shareholder approval af the annual general
meeting to be convened by the Company.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial results and the assets and liabiliies of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited consolidated financial statements, are set out on page 182. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our five largest customers accounted for approximately 8.3% (2020: approximately
19.4%) of the Group's total revenue and our largest customer accounted for approximately 3.1% (2020: approximately 8.8%)
of our total revenue.

Due fo the nature of our business, we do not have any significant contribution from major suppliers during the normal course of
our business. However, we relied substantially on interestbearing bank loans to operate our business and we have established
strong relationships with various national and local commercial banks.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their respective

close associates as defined in the listing Rules or any of the Shareholders of the Company who own more than 5% of the
Company's issued shares has any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers or lenders.

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in nofe 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED

26



Report of the Directors (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are sef out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are sef out in note 27 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, defails of movements in the reserves of the Group is set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 61. Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021 are sef out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2021, calculated under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands amounted to approximately RMB150.4 million (31
December 2020: RMB166.6 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Direclors during the year and up fo the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LO Wai Ho
Ms. CHAN Shuk Kwan, Winnie [Resigned on 30 July 2021)
Mr. XIE Weiquan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HA Tak Kong
Mr. IP Chi Wai
Mr. KAM Wai Man
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Pursuant fo Arficles, at each annual general meefing one-hird of the Directors for the time being, shall refire from office by
rofation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant
fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the Directors is subject to Shareholders” approval at general meetings. No Directors, or any of their
respective associates, was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management who are not directors were within the following band:

2021 2020

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB830,000) 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
[equivalent to approximately RMB830,001 to RMB1,245,000) - ]

No Director and senior management has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31

December 2021.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

The Company has entered info service contracts with all Directors and Supervisors, with the maximum term of three years. No
service confract that cannot be ferminated by the Group within one year without paying any compensation (other than the
statutory compensation) was enfered or is fo be entered into between Directors or Supervisors and members of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors of the Company had any interest in any business which was in competition
or was likely to compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Company and ifs subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as defined below) which will be required to be nofified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") (including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered info the register referred fo in that section, or which
will be required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Direcfors of Listed Issuers as set ouf in Appendix
10 to the Lisfing Rules, to be nofified fo the Company and the Stock Exchange, in each case once the Shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange; were as follows:

Long positions in shares (“Shares”)/underlying Shares of the Company

Number of shares  Percentage of the
directly and  Company’s issued

Name of Director Nature of interest beneficially held share capital

Mr. Lo Wai Ho (Note 1) Inferest of controlled corporation 101,974,000 65.12%

Mr. Xie Weiquan Personal interest 360,000 0.23%
Note:

(1) Mr. Lo Wai Ho is the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share capital of Wealthy Rise Investment Limited. Mr. Lo Wai Ho is deemed to be
inferested in 101,974,000 shares of the Company held by Wealthy Rise Invesiment Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as af the date of this report, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company and/or
any of their respective associates had any inferest and short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of
the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or to the Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this report, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares (“Shares”)/underlying Shares of the Company

Approximate

Number of Shares/  percentage of the

Name of substantial shareholders  Capacity/nature of Interest underlying Shares issued share (%)
Wealthy Rise Investment Limited Beneficial owner 101,974,000 65.12%
Mr. Lo Wai Ho (Note 1) Inferest in a controlled corporation 101,974,000 65.12%
Ms. Lin Yihong (Note 2) Inferest of spouse 101,974,000 65.12%

Notes:

(1) Mr. lo Wai Ho is the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share capital of Wealthy Rise Investment Limited. Mr. lo Wai Ho is deemed to be
inferested in 101,974,000 shares of the Company held by Wealthy Rise Investment Limited under the SFO.

[2)  Ms. Lin Yihong is the spouse of Mr. lo Wai Ho. Under the SFO, Ms. Lin Yihong is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.
Lo Wai Ho is interested.

Saved as disclosed above, as af the date of this report, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Direcfors or chief executives of the Company) who had an inferest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to our Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group's related party fransactions as set out in note 36 1o the consolidated financial statements
were continuing connected transactions, which were exempt from all disclosure requirements, annual review and independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were enfered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company’s controlling shareholders [each a “Covenantor” and collectively, the “Covenantors”], namely, Mr. LO Wai Ho
("Mr. Lo") and Wealthy Rise Investment Limited entered info the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in
favour of the Company (for the Company itself and as frusfee for each of the Company's subsidiaries), under which each of
the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally, jointly and severally, undertakes to and covenants with the Company (for
the Company itself and as trustee for each of the Company's subsidiaries) that:

() he/it shall not, and shall procure each of his/its close associates and/or companies controlled by him/it [excluding
any member of the Group} not to, whether on his/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company and whether directly or indirectly, carry on a business which is, or be interested or involved or
engaged in or acquire or hold any rights or inferest or otherwise involved in (in each case whether as an investor,
a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee, consultant or otherwise and whether for profit, reward,
interest or otherwise] any business which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with the business currently
and from time tfo time engaged by the Group in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which
the Group provides such services and/or products and/or in which any member of the Group carries on business
mentioned above from time to time (the “Restricted Business”);

(b) if he/it and/or any of his/its close associates and/or companies controlled by he/it excluding any member of the
Group) is offered or becomes aware of any project or new business opportunity ["New Business Opportunity”) that
relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or indirectly, he/it shall give the Company a first right of refusal
fo parficipate or engage in such New Business Opportunity by: (i] promptly within ten [10] business days nofify or
procure the relevant close associate and/or the companies controlled by him/it to notify the Group in writing of such
New Business Opportunity and provide such information as is reasonably required by the Group in order to enable
the Group to come fo an informed assessment of such New Business Opportunity; and (i) use his/its best endeavours
to procure that such New Business Opportunity is offered to the Group on terms no less favourable than the terms on
which such opportunity is offered to him/it and/or his/its close associates and,/or companies controlled by him//i;

() he/it shall provide the Group and the Directors (including the independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs")) with
all information necessary, including but not limited to monthly turnover records and any other relevant documents
considered necessary by the INEDs from time fo time, for the annual review by the INEDs with regard to compliance
and enforcement of the terms of Deed of Non-Competition;

(d) (i) he/it will not and will procure that none of his/ifs close associates and,/or companies controlled by him/it (excluding
any member of the Group] will solicit or entice away from any member of the Group any existing or then existing
directors, employees or cusfomers of the Group; and (i) he/it will not without the consent from the Company, make
use of any information perfaining to the business of the Group which may have come to his/its knowledge in his/its
capacity as the controlling shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company for any purposes.

The non-competition undertaking will take effect from the date on which dealings in the shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange and will cease to have any effect upon the earliest of the date on which (ai] such Covenantor, and his/its close
associates, individually or taken as a whole, cease to own, in aggregate, 30% or more of the then issued share capital of
the Company directly or indirectly or cease fo be deemed as a controlling shareholder and do not have power fo control the
board of directors or there is af least one other independent shareholder other than the Covenantors and his/its close associates
holding more shares than the Covenantors and his/its close associates taken together; and (i) Mr. Lo ceases to be a director;
or (b) the shares cease to be listed and traded on the Stock Exchange or other recognised stock exchange.
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Each of the Covenantors has provided fo the Company a writtlen confirmation in respect of his/its full compliance with the

Deed of Non-Competition for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed the writien confirmation made by the Covenantors of the compliance by each of
the Covenantors with the undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition and have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain,
there is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition given by the Covenantors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is not aware of any other matters regarding the compliance of the
undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition and there has not been any change in the terms of the Deed of Non-
Competition since the Company's listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 June 2017, the Company conditionally approved and adopted the share option scheme [the “Share Option
Scheme”).

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the employee, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, pariner or jointventure partner of the Company or any subsidiary (including any director
of the Company or any subsidiary) who is in fulltime or partiime employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company or
any subsidiary at the time when an option is granted fo such employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer,
partner or jointventure partner or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group ("the Eligible Participants”) as incentive or reward for their confribution to the Group to subscribe for the Shares
thereby linking their interest with that of the Group.

Grant and acceptance of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Direcfors may, in its absolute discretion make offer to any Eligible
Participant. An offer shall be made to an Eligible Participant in writing in such form as the Directors may from fime to fime
determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the date
upon which it is made provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the adoption
date of the Share Option Scheme or the termination of the same.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an Eligible Participant concemed in respect of all Shares which are
offered to such Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the Eligible
Participant, together with a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company within 21 days from the date of offer or within such other period of time as may be
determined by the Board pursuant fo the Listing Rules.

Any offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted by an Eligible Participant in respect of less than the tofal
number of Shares for which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares on the
Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED

32



Report of the Directors (Continued)

Subscription price of Shares

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be defermined at the discretion of the Directors but in
any event will not be less than the highest of (a] the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
consecutive business days immediately preceding the offer date of that particular option; and [c) the nominal value of a Share
on the offer date of the particular option.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other share option schemes for the time being of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval of renewing such
limit. On the basis of a fofal of 155,523,000 Shares in issue as at the last refreshment date approved by the shareholders’
thereof, the relevant limit will be 15,523,000 Shares which represent 10 per cent of the issued Shares at the last refreshment
date approved by the shareholders’ thereof.

The Company may seek approval of Shareholders in general meeting to renew the 10 per cent limit provided that the total
number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of all options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group in these circumstances must not exceed 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of renewing such limit.

Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any fime during the period to be defermined and identified by the Board fo each grantee af
the time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but in any event no later than ten years from the date of grant.

Present status of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years after the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme to make an offer for the grant of an option to any Participant as the Board may determine.

On 24 April 2019, under the Share Option Scheme, 10,075,000 share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
10,075,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to certain employees or other eligible
participants under the Share Option Scheme with validity periods of the options vary from (i) 24 April 2019 to 23 April
2022; (i) 24 April 2019 to 23 April 2020; {iii] 24 April 2020 to 23 April 2021; and (iv) 24 April 2021 to 23 April
2022, and exercise price of HK$7.00, and an aggregate of 1,227,000 share options were outstanding as at 31
December 2021.

On 22 January 2020, under the Share Option Scheme, 10,200,000 share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
10,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to certain employees or other eligible
participants under the Share Option Scheme with validity period of the options from 22 January 2020 to 21 January 2023,

and exercise price of HK$6.12 and an aggregate of 1,060,000 share options have been exercised up to 31 December
2021.
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As at the date of this annual report, 8,867,000 shares are issuable for options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 5.7% of the total number of issued shares at that date and 880,000 share options were
lopsed during the year under the Share Option Scheme. The Shares which may be issued pursuant fo the exercise of the
opfions to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue, being
15,552,300 Shares in total.

Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules was as follow:

(1) Movement of share options during the year ended 31 December 2021

Number of share options
Closing price Gronted Exercised Lapsed
beforethe ~ Qutstanding during the during the duringthe ~ Outstanding
date of grant osat  yearended year ended year ended as of
Exercise of share Vanuary ~ 31December 31 December  31December 31 December
Name of Grantee Grant date Exercise period price options 2021 200 2021 200 2021
Director of the Company or ifs subsidiary
Yie Weiquan 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - 30,000] -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 40,000 - - - 40,000
Senior Management of the Company orifs subsidiary
Shi lei 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - 30,000/ -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 40,000 - - - 40,000
Yie Zhuochou 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 22,500 - - 22,500 -
24 Aoil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 30,000 - - 30,000/ -
Shi Yumei 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 22,500 - - 22,500 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - - 30,000
Wong Mon Po 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 30,000 - - 130,000) -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 40,000 - - [40,000] -
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Number of share options
Closing price Granted Exercised Lapsed
beforethe ~ Oufstanding during the during the duringthe ~ Outstanding
date of grant asot  yearended year ended year ended as of
Exercise of share Vanuary ~ 31December 31 December  31December 31 December
Name of Granfee Gront date Exercise period price opfions 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
Other employees of the Company o its subsidiary or other eligible parficipants under the Share Option Scheme
Other employees of the Company or s subsidiary
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 187,500 - - [187,500] -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 250,000 - - 60,000] 190,000
22 Janvary 2020 22 Jonuary 2020 - 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 6,200,000 - (1,060,001 - 5,140,000
Other eligible portcipanis
Groniee A 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2019 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 407,000 - - - 407,000
Gionlee B 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2019 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 440,000 - - - 440,000
Giaree C 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 fpil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK§7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Guantee D 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Gionlee £ 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Granlee F 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - - 20,000
Guantee G 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apill 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Aprl 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Gionlee H 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 30,000 - - 30,000/ -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 40,000 - - - 40,000
Grartee | 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Guantee 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 20,000 - - - 20,000
Granlee K 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK§7.00 22,500 - - 22,500] -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 30,000 - - 30,000/ -
Graniee | 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 April 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Grantee M 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apill 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Ganlee N 24 Apiil 2019 24 Apiil 2020~ 23 Apil 2021 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Apiil 2019 24 Apil 2021 - 23 Apil 2022 HK§7.00 HK§7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Grantee O 24 Aiil 2019 24 Apil 2020 - 23 Apil 2021 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 15,000 - - (15,000 -
24 Aiil 2019 24 Apiil 2021 - 23 Apiil 2022 HK$7.00 HK$7.00 20,000 - - 20,000/ -
Grontee P 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Janvory 2020~ 21 Janvary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 200,000 - - - 200,000
Grantee Q 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Janvory 2020~ 21 Janvary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 200,000 - - - 200,000
Grantee R 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Januory 2020~ 21 January 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 100,000 - - - 100,000
Grorle § 22 Janvary 2020 22 Jonvary 2020 - 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 100,000 - - - 100,000
Grantee T 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Janvary 2020 - 21 Janvary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 400,000 - - - 400,000
Guantee U 22 Jonuary 2020 22 Jonvary 2020 - 21 Jonuary 2023 HK$6.12 HK$5.89 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
10,807,000 - (1,060,000] 880,000] 8,867,000
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 7 November 2019 (the "Adoption Date”), the Company conditionally approved and adopted the share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”).

The major terms of the Share Award Scheme are summarized as follows:

Purpose of the Share Award Scheme

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are 1o effectively recognise employee’s contribution to the Group and/or providing
an incentive fo employee fo remain with or join the Group, for participation in the Scheme as a selected employee and
determine the purchase, subscription and/or allocation of awarded shares according to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme.

Eligible persons

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board shall select the Selected Employeels) and determine the number of shares to be
awarded. The Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company's
resources. However, until so selected, no Employee shall be entitled to participate in the scheme.

Awards

The Trustee shall purchase from the market the relevant number of Shares awarded and shall hold such Shares until they
are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The Trustee shall purchase/subscribe for further Shares for the selected
employees to be funded by the proceeds of the sale of any non-cash disfributions.

Granting of Awards

When the selected employee has safisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board af the time of making the award and
become entitled to the Shares forming the subject of the award, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Shares (awarded
Shares, related scrip distribution and further Shares acquired or subscribed out of the income derived therefrom) to that

employee.

Maximum Number of Shares to be Awarded

The maximum number of Shares, whether they are new Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company, or Award Shares
that are not vested and/or are forfeited and held by the independent trustee to be applied towards future awards, or existing
shares fo be purchased on the market by the independent frustee, underlying all grants made pursuant fo the Share Award
Scheme (excluding Award Shares which have been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme) shall not exceed 3%

[i.e. 4,665,690 Shares) of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date.

Since the adoption of the Share Award Scheme and up fo the date of this report, none of the issued Shares has been
purchased or issued nor any awards have been granted under the Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2021,
4,665,690 Shares are available for grant of awards in the future under the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 3.0% of the Shares in issue.

The above limit can be renewed or refreshed subject to approval of Shareholders within 10 years from the Adoption Date.
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Limited for Each Participant

Under the Share Award Scheme, there is a limit of 1% on the maximum number of Award Shares which may be granted fo a
single eligible person but unvested under the Share Award Scheme.

Termination

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme will be valid and effective for
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers of the Group has been in force throughout the year
under review.

The Group has arranged for appropriate directors’ and officers liability insurance coverage providing indemnity against
liabiliies, including liability in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Except as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” above in this annual
report, no equitylinked agreements were entered into during the year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and operating in compliance with the laws and integrity
through abidance by relevant laws and regulations, industry regulations and business ethics. For the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company had not been and were not a party to any material
legal, arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Company was not aware of any pending or threatened legal, arbitral
or administrative proceedings against the Company or any of the Directors which could have o material adverse effect on the
Company's operations or financial condition.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as af the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float for the issued Shares as required under the Listing
Rules.
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MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, to the best information, knowledge and belief of the Directors after making all
reasonable enquiries, the Company was not involved in any legal litigation or arbitration of material importance in which it
served as a defendant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material confingent (31 December 2020: no material confingent).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company esfablished the Audit Committee in accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution
of our Board passed on 19 June 2017 with writien terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C3 of the Corporate
Governance Code as sef out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules [the “Corporate Governance Code”). The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are mainly to make recommendations to our Board on the appointment and removal of the external
auditor, review the financial statements and provide advice in respect of financial reporting and oversee the internal control
procedures and risk management of our Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and

has discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters, which include the review of the consolidated annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited who has remained as the Company’s auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2021. A resolution will be proposed for approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The obijective of this Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”) Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance for
the purpose of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group’s ESG concepts and practices in achieving sustainable
development for the future.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements sef out in the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Listing Rules. An assessment on the applicability and materiality of the relevant key performance indicators (“KPls”)

under the ESG Reporting Guide had been conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The following principles are adopted in the Report:

. Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders on different ESG aspects is covered in the Report. A
materiality assessment was conducted fo defermine material ESG issues with results approved by the Board.

. Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information
is disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided with narrative and comparative figures, where
possible.

] Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise

specified, fo allow for meaningful comparisons.

. Balance: The information is presented without the inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by the reader.

GOVERNANCE ON ESG ASPECTS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group's ESGrrelated risks, and ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
confrol systems are in place. Our management has delegated the responsibility of coordinating the implementation of the
Group's environment, employment and service quality assurance policies.

The Board leads and provides direction to management by instituting ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their
implementation and monitoring ESG performance. The Board continues to explore ways to further strengthen the ESG
govemnance of the Group. The Board reviews ESG affairs regularly, including environmental profection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices, and community investment, and implements appropriate measures o enhance the ESG
performance of the Group.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards fo our businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen
the sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put the effort info maintaining close communication with our
key stakeholders, including but not limited to government and regulatory authorities, shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, and the general public. We take stakeholders' expectations into consideration in formulating our businesses and
ESG strategies by utilizing diversified engagement methods and communication channels, shown as below.

Stakeholders Communication channels
Government and regulatory organizations e Announcement and other regulatory reports
Shareholders and investors o Information disclosed on the HKEX website and corporate website
o Annual general meeting and other shareholders’ meetings
Employees o Employee performance evaluation
o On-the-job training
o Infernal email
Customer ° Corporate website
o Customer service hotline
Community . Industry events
o Corporate social responsibility activities
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated a number of environmental, social and operating items and assessed
their importance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels. This assessment helps o ensure that the Group's
business objectives and development direction satisfy with the stakeholders’ expectations and requirements. The Group's and
stakeholders’ matters of concern are listed in the following materiality matrix:

Sustainability Materiality Matrix
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group understands and appreciates the key aspects of the PRC government's environmental protection efforts, such as
reduction in pollutions, ufilization of resources and social education on environmental issues. The Group has an obligation to
minimize the environmental impact on daily operations and be accountable for the consumption of resources and materials.
The Company does not produce hazardous wastes as it does not deal with any industrial production activities. Greenhouse
gases produced by energy consumption and traffic are the Company’s major emissions. For the year ended 31 December
2021, there is no material non-compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations related to the environment.

The Group recognizes the importance of reducing our GHG emissions to drive sustainable growth of our operations as well
as the society. The Group’s GHG sources are primarily atfributed to electricity consumption and the use of company vehicles
from our offices to site visit locations. In order to minimize emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases, the use of
teleconferencing is encouraged.

Electricity used on the business premises is the major contributor to greenhouse gas footprint. Apart from electricity
consumption, the use of mofor vehicles for local commutation and flights for business frips also led to the indirect emissions of

greenhouse gas.

The table below shows the emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gas ("GHG") for the reporting period:

Emission

Type of Emissions Unit 2021 2020
Air pollufants

Nitrogen oxides g 2,564 6,350
Sulphur oxides g 57 101
Particular matters g 189 467
Greenhouse gas

Scope 1 — fuel combustion Kg 10,482 18,617
Scope 2 — purchased electricity Kg 61,600 86,569
Total emission Kg 72,082 105,186
Emission infensity Kg/million of revenue 633 597

Waste management

Waste production was mainly attributed fo the domestic wastes of office. The operation of the Group does not involve any
production of hazardous waste. All wasfes disposed in offices are collected by the building management service provider.
Therefore, the waste disposed of is immaterial and non-hazardous. During the reporting year, the Group did not notice any
non-compliance issues about wasfe disposal. Measures for reducing and recycling the waste were put in place, such as:

] provision of umbrella stands o avoid the use of single-use umbrella bags; and

o duplex printings and reuse single-sided printed papers.
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Use of resources

Conservation of natural resources

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental standards in order to promote environmental friendliness. Throughout
the Group, the following actions have been taken to reduce carbon and energy footprints:

- maintain the indoor temperature of offices at 26°C;

- minimize the use of motor vehicles during peak hours;

- choosing environmentally friendly materials and energy-saving lightings and electrical appliances;

- idle electrical appliances are switched off;

- regular maintenance and repair for electrical appliances 1o lower energy waste;

- encourage sfaff to report all leaking faucets or pipes to the relevant department and turn off all taps when not in use.
Packaging materials

The operation of the Group does not produce any tangible products that require packaging; hence no packaging materials
were used while only incurring a limited usage of natural resources.

Water
The Group's operations mainly focus on providing financial services fo customers, water usage is mainly from daily use by
staff at offices. During the Reporting Period, there is no issue in sourcing water and no sewage are discharged.

Intensity
Consumption (Per million of revenue)
Use of natural resources Unit 2021 2020 2021 2020
Electricity kWh 98,764 104,139 867 591
Water tonne 186 181 1.6 1.0
Unleaded petrol L 3,871 6,875 54.5 39.0

Environmental and natural resources

Due to the nature of the business, the Group does not have any direct and significant impacts on the environment and natural
resources during its operation. By taking the green initiatives mentioned above, the Group is committed to mitigating the
environmental impact and acting in a manner that is both environmentally and socially responsible.
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Climate changes

As a participant in the finance industry, our effort in the sustainability and management of climate change risks had been
focused on the role of advisory and advocacy. Our clients are of a wide spectrum of indusiries and scales, which are, in
turn, subject fo the changing climates and answerable to demands of promotion of sustainability in their respective industries.
In esfablishing and maintaining the relationship with our customers, our team had long been mindful of these challenges
and respective regulations. It is, therefore, infrinsically part of our process in our porifolio management strategy to give due
regard fo and be wary of customers involved with the operation that might bring forth negative impact on the environment
or negligence of the risk of climate changes. Our risk management strategy had long included climate change as part of
our consideration and is reflected in our risk assessment and respective consideration of the expected refurns of individual
customers.

Environmental targets setting

FY 2021 Reviewed the Group's past environmental performance
FY 2022 Explore improvement methods and resources availoble
Develop measures and set fargets

FY 2023 Onwards Evaluate and monitor performance against baseline and fargets regularly

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of the Group and regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. Staff is the most important asset that drives the longterm development and sustainability of the

Group.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 71 (2020: 139) fulliime staff. The diverse workforce of the Group in terms of

gender, age group, region and category, is shown as below:

No. of staff

Gender

Male 35

Female 36
Age Group

18-30 21

31-40 28

41-50 19

51 or above 3
Category

Senior management 12

Middle management 7

General staff 52
Region

PRC 65

Hong Kong 6

Staff are remunerated according to the job nature, market frends and individual performance. Apart from medical insurance
and mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonuses are rewarded to employees based on individual performance.
Appraisal and selfassessment systems have been implemented to better identify human resources need and fo support our
human resources development.

Equal opportunities

Being an equal opportunities employer, the Group is committed fo creating a working environment with fairmess, openness
and mutual frust. The Group opposes any consideration which involves discrimination not related to work and prohibits all
forms of workplace discrimination, employee of the same position is remunerated on an equal basis regardless of their gender
and orientation.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies and treats all the employees equally. Employment, remuneration
and promotion are not under the influence of social identities, such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion, age,
sexual orientation, political faction and marital sfatus.

The Group strives to mainfain employee tumnover rate at an acceptable level so as to facilitate accumulation of professional
skills and experience. Due fo streamline of manpower, the staff turnover rate is about 74% (2020: 37%), which is categorized
by gender, age group and region as follows:

Gender Age Group Region
Male Female 18-30 31-40 41-50 51 or above PRC  Hong Kong
69% 80% 100% 68% 29% 7% 78% 33%
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Compliance with laws and regulations
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations
in relation to employment including but not limited to the following:

] the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of Ching;

] the Employment Confract Law of the People’s Republic of Ching;

. Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong;

. the Minimum VWage Ordinance of Hong Kong;

. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong; and

] the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Health and safety

The Group aims to provide a safe and healthy working environment to the employees and promotes the ideals of “Work
happily, Live healthily”. The Group organizes recreational activities, such as badminton races and basketball matches, for
employees regularly. Holding recreational activity is not only able to build up the sense of belonging and team spirits among
employees, but also promote the message of the importance of worklife balance fo all staff.

In order to protect our employees’ health, safety equipment including firstaid boxes and trolleys for heavy goods is available
in all the offices. Due to the nature of our business activities, our employees are rarely exposed to high-risk hazards that may
cause serious physical injuries. Any work-related injuries and personal accidents that occur during and outside office hours are
required fo be reported fo the HR department.

Occupational health and safety statistics 2021 2020 2019
Number of lost days Nil Nil Nil
Number of work-related fatalities Nil Nil Nil
Number of work incidents Nil Nil Nil

During the reporting period, there were no cases of non-compliance with the laws and regulations in respect of the provision
of a safe working environment and the protection of employees from occupational hazards, such as the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic of China and Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of
Hong Kong.
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Development and training

The Group encourages employees to participate in onthe-job fraining and continuing education to create opportunities for
career development. Onthe-job training is tailored to equip our workplace with the necessary knowledge and skills relevant
to work. The Group also invifes scholars and experts to infroduce the management skills and latest industry information to
employees from fime fo time.

Other than providing diversified on-the-job training fo employees and ensuring employees able to meet the changing demands
in the Group and the market. By providing continuous training, employees gain satisfaction and enjoyment from fulfilling their

roles and boost morale.

To ensure every employee in different sectors of the Group receives sufficient training, fraining had been divided into 4 main

streams:

o risk management;

° sales and marketing;

° customer due diligence; and
o assefs management.

Training details of staff in the operation of financial leasing for the year ended 31 December 2021:

Male Female
No. of training hours affended 254 262
No. of staff attended training 20 17
Percentage of staff attended training 57% 47%

Labour standards

The operation team of the Group require sophisficated fraining in the field of Finance or extensive exposure fo the finance
business. Hence the Group does not rely on labour or involve in any labourintensive work. As such, it is almost certain
that the Group would not be involved in child or forced labour. Further, the employment policies of the Group focus on the
capabilities of the individual regards of personal traits such as gender or ethnic groups.

During the recruitment process, all job applicants are required to provide valid personal identification documents for
verification purposes, while background checks may also be carried out whenever necessary.
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Group also has policies to protect staff's labour rights with a complaint system for staff fo report their concerns and any
violations of labour rights. Undoubtedly, there were no cases of child or forced labour was reported. In addition, as at the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding child
labour and forced labour, including but not limited fo the following:

] Labour Contract law of the People's Republic of Ching;

] Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour;

o The Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors;
. Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong; and

] Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

The Group's business nature is service-oriented. The main suppliers are mainly third-party services providers, such as property
management services, information technology services, legal and consulting services and office equipment and printing
suppliers.

The Group expects all ifs suppliers to embrace corporate social responsible value since the supply chain management is
an essential part of the corporate social responsibility. As the majority of their suppliers are established banks and financial
insfitutes, the Group could assess their corporate social responsibilities without much difficulty. In making decisions for
procurement, facfors including historical price quotations, product offering, service offering, performance and environmental
and social policies by suppliers are all taken info consideration so that suppliers adhering to similar notions and offering
reasonable prices are selected.

In choosing new supplier, the Group has a preference for selecting recycled and environmentally friendly products in order to
minimize the environmental impacts. To provide a fair overview of supplier selection, the Group opt to select more than one
supplier for comparison purpose during the primary engagement process.

Product responsibility

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of integrated financing services and related management and consultancy
services. Inferal control and compliance procedures are in place to ensure compliance with all relevant laws and regulations
by the Group's fronfline staff members. The Group also provides relevant training fo its employees, thereby ensuring that
employees apprehend the nature and risks underlying financial services and that they are equipped with professional
knowledge sufficient for them to provide the most suitable advice to their customers under all circumsfances.

The Group has obtained licences, qualifications and permits required of its business operations. The compliance department is
responsible for ensuring that business operations comply with laws and regulations. Updates on relevant laws and regulations
are notified fo relevant operating units and employees from time to time. During the year, the Group did not become aware
of any violation of any laws or regulations regarding the services we provided.
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Customer satisfaction

The Group has eamed frusted relationships with its broad customer base through providing dedicated customer services. In
order to provide quality service fo our clients, the Group communicates with our customers and confirms their expectations
and direction prior fo project commencement and actively coordinates with customers in the process of providing service.

When cusfomers lodge a complaint, the Group will make every effort to investigate and resolve the disputes fairly and
promptly. During the year, no complainfs on our services concerning financial advisory, factoring, leasing and dealing in
securities are reported.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

Being a service provider of a range of financial services, the Group has access to significant financial information and
personal data of the lessee, clients and pofential customers; therefore, ensuring the privacy of customer information is one of
the issues the Group cares about the most.

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/Privacy Policy Statement are made available on the website of the subsidiary which
provides security brokerage services. The Group has formulated a set of privacy principal in collection, refention, use, security,
openness and accessibility of information to ensure all lessees’ information received is only for its intended purpose and to
prevent information leakage, such as:

° Access control to all information of lessees;

] Requiring employees not to refain and disclose any confidential information about the Group's business and other
sensifive, confidential data to any third party; and

] Requiring employees not to obtain any unnecessary information from the lessees and its associated parties.
During the year, the Group did not notice any violations of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Intellectual properties
Our operational process mainly consists of financial and loan facilitation services, which do not involve any advertising and
labelling practices, the information relating to advertising and labelling is immaterial to our Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group is aware that any events of corruption will bring irreparable damage to the Group, therefore, the Group upholds
a high standard of business integrity throughout its operations. A system with good moral integrity and the anticorruption
mechanism is seen to be the comersfone of the sustainable and healthy development of the Group.

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism in reporting and investigation procedures of related issues. The
Group would terminate the employment contract with immediate effect with employees who accept any benefits from
customers and suppliers. Employees are asked to nofify their respective division heads of any suspicious transactions. If any
employee is found fo be in violation of corruption after investigation, the Group will take disciplinary actions against the
employee involved, including the termination of labour contracts with immediate effect. During the year 2021, no legal cases
associated with corrupt practices were brought against the Group and our employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Money laundering
The Group strictly implements a series of policies and procedures to prevent and detect money laundering and ferrorist
financing. Following measures have been taken to prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing:

] carries ouf know-your client procedures by verifying customers’ identity with reference to reliable and independent
source of documents;

o reports any suspicious transactions to the relevant government department;

o maintain all essential information of customers with Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance;

] repayments are only made by cheque, bank transfer with customers’ bank accounts; and
o provide professional fraining relating to current legislation and practices fo employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not become aware of any non-compliances relating to dishonest
and corruption activities according to the following laws and regulations:

] the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong;
o Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Insfitutions) Ordinance of Hong Kong;
. Criminal law of the People’s Republic of China; and

] Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognized the importance of corporate social responsibility and encouraged employees to confribute to the
community. The Group would, from time to time make other charitable donations as deemed necessary. In the future, the
Group will seek opportunities to contribute o the community.
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To the Shareholders of
Wealthy Way Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VWealthy Way Group Limited (the “Company”) and ifs subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 181, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and ifs consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separafe opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that confext.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on loan and account receivables (Refer to Notes 5(ii), 21 and 39(b) to the consolidated

financial statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the gross loan and
account receivables and its related ECLs allowance
amounted to approximately RMB633,281,000 (2020:
RMB1,260,031,000) and RMB38,616,000 (2020:
RMB253,488,000) respectively.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group determines
the ECls to be recognised in the consolidated financial
statements faking into consideration various factors,
including the value of any underlying collaterals and/or
credit enhancements, deposits received, repayment history,
current creditworthiness and significant changes in credit
quality of the borrowers as well as subsequent sefflements
and other relevant information. The Group considered
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. Such
exposures are assessed individually or collectively by taking
into account the quantitative and qualitative information
and also, forward-ooking analysis.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED
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Our key procedures to address the matter included:

We obtained an understanding of the Group's
credit risk management and practices and assessed
the Group's ECLs impairment policy in accordance
with the requirement of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments including an evaluation of management
judgement on:

(i) the level of disaggregation of portfolios for
ECLs assessment:

(i)  the use of reasonable and supportable credit
risk information that is available without
undue cost or effort; and

(i) the staging criteria of determining if a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

We tested the basis for classification of exposures
into the 3 stages. The testing included the
checking to loan overdue information, loan-to-
value percentage or other related information, and
considering the stage classification determined by

the Group.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of
design and implementation of key controls over
the origination, ongoing internal credit quality
assessments, recording and monitoring of loan and
account receivables.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of esfimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceplibility to management bias or fraud.

We assessed the application of ECLs methodology
and checked the assumptions and parameters fo
external data sources when available.



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on loan and account receivables (Refer to Notes 5(ii), 21 and 39(b) to the consolidated
financial statements) (continued)

We have idenfified the management's ECLs assessments of ~ Our key procedures to address the matter included:
the recoverability of ifs loan and account receivables as a (continued)

key audit matter because the carrying amount of the loan

and account receivables as at 31 December 2021 was - We assessed the ECls allowance made by the
significant and the ECLs assessment of these receivables Group by examining the loan credit files and
required significant management judgement and involved underlying documentation, deposits received and
high level of uncertainty. other evidence supporting the repayment records,

the value of collateral and/or credit enhancement,
information regarding the current creditworthiness
and any significant changes in credit quality of
the borrowers, evidence of subsequent seftlement
and other relevant information and other sources
of cash flows, and developed a reasonable range
of expected cash shortfall for comparison with the
Group's assessment.

- We assessed the effectiveness and marketability
of collaterals, including considering independent
legal opinion obtained by the Company, valuation
of collaterals and timing required for converting
collaterals into cash in the case of default.

- We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of
the external information used by the Group as the
forward looking information including economic
data and forecasts published by government bodies
and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, unemployment rates, efc., and especially the
market dafa with particular focus on the impact of
pandemic.

- We examined the valuation of collaterals including
(i) evaluated the independence, competence,
capabilities, and relevant experience of the
specialists; (i) assessed the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology, assumptions and judgement
used by the management; and [iii) evaluated
the appropriateness of the key inputs used in the
valuation by checking to the external data, if
applicable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on loan and account receivables (Refer to Notes 5(ii), 21 and 39(b) to the consolidated
financial statements) (continued)

Our key procedures to address the matter included:
(continued)

- We evaluated, together with our valuation
specialists, the reasonableness of the ECL
allowances and test the mathematical accuracy
of the ECL calculation of loan and account
receivables.

- We evaluated the adequacy and appropriateness
of the disclosures of credit risk and ELCs allowances
of loan and account receivables.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021 other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon (the "Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatfement of the Other Information, we are required fo report that fact. We have
nothing fo report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a frue and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to confinue as a going concer, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend fo liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realisfic alternative but fo do so.

The audit committee assists the directors of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
fo you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audif in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and mainfain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant fo the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal confrol.

- Evaluate the oppropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group fo cease to confinue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the enfities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. VWe are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in infernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a sfatement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken fo eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our audifor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne
Practising Certificate Number: PO5419

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Revenue 7 113,871 176,094
Other income 7 10,764 13,381
Employee benefit expenses 9 (22,659) (31,865)
Depreciation 9 (3,003) (4,4106)
Other operafing expenses (23,591) (37,232)
Impairment loss on intangible assets 16 - (5,307)
Reversal of /(Provision for) expected credit losses ["ECLs") on loan and
account receivables, net 21 7,248 (196,554)
Finance costs 8 (24,853) (55,083)
Profit/ (loss) before income tax 9 57,777 (140,982)
Income fax [expense)/credit 11 (17,558) 34,149
Profit/(loss) for the year 40,219 (106,833)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 30,582 (111,642)
Non-controlling inferests 9,637 4,809
40,219 (106,833)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
llem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translating foreign operation 60 189
liem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") 17 4,889 (231)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year, net of
income tax 4,949 [42)

Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year 45,168 (106,875)

Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year atiributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 35,531 (111,684)
Non-controlling inferests 43(b) 9,637 4,809
45,168 (106,875)

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to equity holders of the Company 13
Basic 19.58 cents (71.78) cents

Diluted 18.78 cents (71.78) cents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

37



Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,681 2,855
Rightof-use assets 15 3,063 5,154
Infangible assets 16 3,202 3,309
Financial asset at FVOC| 17 38,085 33,196
Deposits for further acquisition of interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary
and acquisition of interest in a company 18 - 133,000
Other assets 19 387 400
Loan and account receivables 21 288,545 52,408
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 309 435
Deferred tax assets 30 52,440 62,559
387,712 293,316
Current assets
Loan and account receivables 21 306,120 954,135
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 752 2,799
Amount due from a related party 22 - 4
Tax recoverable 1,301 -
Bank balances and cash 23 100,200 118,633
408,373 1,075,571
Current liabilities
Account payables 24 16,408 24,572
Deposits from financial leasing customers 25 3,189 3,495
Accruals and other payables 26 32,704 33,276
Amounts due fo related parties 22 641 220
Lease liabilities 15 1,656 2,265
Dividend payable 818 12,927
Bond payable 29 16,301 33,681
Bank borrowings 27 99,202 420,340
Tax payable 655 180
171,574 530,956
Net current assets 236,799 544,615
Total assets less current liabilities 624,511 837,931
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current liabilities
Deposits from financial leasing customers 25 4,125 4,222
Lease liabilities 15 1,536 3,047
Bank borrowings 27 - 84,736
Promissory note 28 77,793 72,050
83,454 164,055
Net assets 541,057 673,876

EQUITY

Share capital 31 1,358 1,349
Reserves 32 539,699 501,901
Total equity atiributable to equity holders of the Company 541,057 503,250
Non-controlling interests 43(b) - 170,626
Total equity 541,057 673,876

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 181 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 25 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

Lo Wai Ho Xie Weiquan

Executive Director Executive Director

ANNUAL REPORT 202



Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Finoncil ~ Retained
Proposed based Statutory assel of profits/ Nor-
Share final Share payment  Exchange Other surplus FVOCI  faccumulated controlling Total
copial dividend®  premium* reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ resenve’ resenve* loss}? Totol inferests equity
RVBOOO  RMBIOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RVB'OO0  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'0OO  RMB'000
[Note 31)  [Note 12)  [Note 32fi)  [Note 32fil]  [Note 32(iil] ~ (Note 32(iv))  [Note 32v|]  {Note 32\vi) [Note 43(b))
At1 January 2020 1,349 6952 207853 1871 (1002 239,883 37,821 5,684 06,032 616443 177898 794341
Comprehensive expenses) /income:
[loss)/profit for the yeor - - - - - - - - (11642 (111,642 4809 (106,833
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising on tranlafing
foreign operafions - - - - 189 - - - - 189 - 189
Fair value loss on financial asset at FVOC]
[Note 17) - - - - - - - [231) - [231) - (231)
Total comprehensive (expenses]/income
for the yeor - - - - 189 - - [231)  [111,642) (111,684 4809 (106,875
Transactions with equity holders of the
Company:
Equity sefled share options poyment
[Note 41) - - - 5,443 - - - - - 5,443 - 5443
Share opfions lapsed [Note 41) - - - 1,178 - - - - 1178 - - -
- - - 4,265 - - - - 1,178 5,443 - 5443
Final dividend [Note 12) - 6952) - - - - - - - 6952 - 6952
Dividend to non<onfroling inferesis - - - - - - - - - - (12,081) (12,081)
Transferred fo sfotufory surplus reserve - - - - - - 10,000 - 10,000/ - - -
At 31 December 2020 1,349 - 207833 6,136 (813 239,883 47,821 5453 (24432) 503250 170626 673876




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share- Financial ~ (Accumlated
Proposed based Statutory asset of loss)/ Non-
Share final Share  payment  Exchange Other surplus FVOCl  Retained confrolling Total
copitl ~~ dividend*  premium’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve profits* Total interess equity
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
[Note31)  (Note12)  [Note32fl) ~ (Note32fi) ~ (Note32il]  (Note32fv)  [Note 32|l  (Note 320l Note 43(b)
At 31 December 2020 and
at 1 Janvary 2021 1,349 - 88 6,136 (813 239,883 4780 5453 (443 503250 170626 673,876
Comprehensive income:
Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 30,582 30,582 9,637 40,219

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange diffrences arsing on fronsloing

foreign operafons - - - - 60 - - - - 60 - 60

Fair value goin on finonciol asset
ot NOCl - - - - - - - 4889 - 4,889 - 4,889
Totol comprehensive income for the year - - - - 60 - - 4889 30,582 35,531 9,637 45,168

Transaciions with equily holders of the Company:
Equiy sefled share opfions payment

[Note 41) - - - 162 - - - - - 162 - 162

Issue of shares upon exercise of shore options 9 - 6,244 (487) - - - - - 5,766 - 5,766

Share opfons lapsed (Note 41| - - - 1,099 - - - - 1,09 - - -

9 - 6,244 (1,424) - - - - 1,09 5928 - 5928

Dividend fo noncontrollng inferests - - - - - - - - - - (3915 (3915

Proposed final dividend [Note 12) - 3829 (3,829 - - - - - - - - -
Acqisiion of adldifonol inferess in o subsiciary

[Note 18[a)] - - - - - 3,652) - - - (3,652 (176,348) (180,000)

Transtered fo satufory surplus reserve - - - - - - 429 - 4,299) - - -

At 31 December 2021 1,358 3829 230,268 472 (753 236231 52,120 10,342 2950 541,057 - 541,057

# These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately RMB539,699,000 (2020: RMB501,901,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax 57,777 (140,982)
Adjustments for:
Bank inferest income 7 (306) (209)
Dividend income 7 (8,771) (10,422)
Write-off of other payable 7 - (642)
Interest expense 8 24,853 55,083
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Q 917 1,303
Depreciation of rightof-use assets 9 2,086 3,113
Impairment loss on infangible assefs 16 - 5,307
[Reversal of)/provision for ECls on loan and account receivables, net 21 (7,248) 196,554
Written off of prepayment 9 - 100
Bad debts written off of loan and account receivables, net 9 2,600 6,684
Equity-setiled share-based payments 4] 162 5,443
Gain on early redemption of bonds 7 (175) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 202 16
Gain on fermination of lease 7 67) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 72,030 121,348
Decrease in loan and account receivables 415,996 313,435
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,158 125,778
Decrease/(increase] in clients” monies in segregated account 5,314 (18,945)
[Decreasel/increase in accounts payables (7,288) 19,361
Decrease in accruals and other payables (5,373) (15,904)
Decrease in deposits from financial leasing customers (403) (7,607)
Cash generated from operations 482,434 537,406
Income tax paid (8,277) (15,985)
Net cash generated from operating activities 474,157 521,421
Cash flows from investing activities
Deposit refunded from acquisition of invesiment properties - 22,000
Refund/(Payment) of deposit paid to acquire interest in a company 18(b) 30,000 (30,000)
Deposits paid for other assets - (47)
Refund from capital reduction of financial assets at FVOCI 17 - 16,257
Dividend income received from financial assets at FVOCI 17 8,771 10,422
Interest received from bank deposits 7 306 209
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (359) (170)
Repayment of contingent consideration payable - (19,600)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 378 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) 35 - (96,500)
Net cash generated from/(used) in investing activities 39,096 (97,423)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Cash flows from financing activities
Inferest paid (13,447) (44,662)
Proceeds from bank loans 99,000 226,000
Repayment of bank loans (504,874) (448,094)
Advance from/(repayment to) related parties 421 (3,314)
Repayment of lease liabilities (including interest paid) 15 (2,333) (3,414)
Repayment of bond 29 (16,603) -
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 29 - 17,787
Proceeds from issuance of shares upon exercise of share options 31 5,766 -
Deposits paid fo further acquire of interest in a non-wholly owned

subsidiary 18(al (77,000) (103,000
Dividend paid (15,997) 6,4571)
Net cash used in financing activities (525,067) (365,148
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,814) 58,850
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 96,171 37,862
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (682) (541)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 83,675 96,171

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wealthy Way Group Limited (the “Company”] was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 10 December 2015 and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange”] (the “Listing”) by way of placing and public offer of shares on 21 July
2017. The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 1350, Regatta Office Park, Windward 3, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business is at Room 02, 34/F, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, VWanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Group are [i) provision of financial
leasing, factoring and financial advisory services in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"); (ii] provision of small
loans comprising the personal, corporate and subordinated property mortgage loans and related loan facilitation
services in the PRC; and [iii) provision of investment management and advisory services, securities dealing and broking
services and other financial services in Hong Kong. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Wealthy Rise Invesiment Limited {"Wealthy Rise”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands ("BVI") which is wholly owned by Mr. Lo Wai Ho ("Mr. Lo”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and interprefation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ["HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements also comply with applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Compoanies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange ("Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”). All values are rounded fo the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statfements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 except for the adoption of certain new
or amendments to HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the current period as set out in Note 3.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions have been used in preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are set out in Note 5 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

New or amendments to HKFRSs in issue and effective

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, the following new or amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant and mandatorily effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRSQ, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2.

Further, the Group has early adopted the Amendment to HKFRS 16 "COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021" [the "2021 Amendment”) which are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021 in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Impact on early adoption of the 2021 Amendment

The Group has early adopted the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions” in prior year and
the 2021 Amendment in the current year. The 2021 Amendment extends the availability of the practical expedient
seft out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 to rent concessions on or before 30 June 2022. The early adoption of the
2021 Amendment has had no impact fo the opening retained profits af 1 January 2021 and the financial position and
financial performance for the current year.

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (Continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted any of the following new or amendments to HKFRSs, which have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these consolidated financial statements:

Effective for
annual reporting
periods beginning
on or affer
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments* 1 January 2023
Amendment to AG 5 Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for 1 January 2022
Common Control Combinations (Revised)
Amendments fo HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assefs between an Investor and To be determined
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- 1 January 2023
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Infended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The effective date has now been

extended to 1 January 2023.

The amendments shall be adopted prospectively fo the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact of adopting the above new or amendments
to HKFRSs. So far, it has concluded that the above new or amendments to HKFRSs will be adopted at the respective
effective dates and the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on these consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statfements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied fo all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company |its subsidiaries).

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able fo exercise control. Control is achieved when the
Company has power over the invesfee, that expose or give rights to variable returns from ifs involvement with the
investee, and the Company is able fo use its power fo affect the amount of retums from the investee. Generally,
control is achieved with a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights over the relevant activities of
the investee. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Company controls another entity. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

The Group reassesses whether or nof it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below.

Consolidation

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are affributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling inferests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is affributed to the owners of the
Company and fo the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling inferest having a deficit
balance.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, adjustments are made fo the financial statements of subsidiaries
fo bring their accounting policies info line with the Group's accounting policies.

Infra-group fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the Group's perspective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (Contfinued)

Business combination not under common control

Opﬁona/ concentration fest

Effective from 1 January 2021, the Group can elect fo apply an optional concentration fest, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired sef of activities and assets is
not a business. The concentration fest is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concenfrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration fest is met, the set of activities and assets is defermined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed. If the concentrafion fest is not met, or if the Group elects nof to apply the test,
the Group shall then perform the assessment to defermine if the inputs and substantive process that together
significantly contribute fo the ability fo create output are present, and to determine whether the set of activities and
assets is a business.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations not under common control. The
consideration fransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity inferests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assefs acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values af the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related cosfs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

Any contingent consideration fo be fransferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date]
about the fair value at the acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
confingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Subsequent changes fo the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS @ Financial Instruments ("HKFRS Q") in the profit
or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisiion-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held inferest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests

The Group recognises any non-confrolling inferest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
confrolling inferests in the acquiree that are present ownership inferests and entitle their holders fo a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assefs in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Al
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-confrolling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the equity holders of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiary

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between [i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any invesiment
retained and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling inferests. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated income sfatement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct affributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the invesiment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

4.3

Infangible assefs that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assefs that are subject to amortisation are fested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assefs), the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An assef's recoverable amount is the higher of
the value in use of the asset or cash-generating unit fo which it belongs and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual assef, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rafe that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to consolidated profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired assef.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined [nef of any depreciation and amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to consolidated profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated af cost, less provision for depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset fo its working condition and location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after
the item has been put info operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged
fo profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resultled in an increase in future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
item and the cost of such ifem can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
the item.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Property, plant and equipment (Confinued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straightline method to allocate their costs to their residual value over the
estimated economic useful life of the individual assets, as follows:

leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease terms and 3 to 5 years
Rightof-use assets The lease terms

Furniture and office equipment 310 10 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values economic useful life and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Rightof-use assefs for buildings are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned.
However, when there is no reasonable ceriainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease ferm, assets
are depreciated over the lease term.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is sold, its cost and accumulated depreciation are derecognised
and any gain or loss resulting from the disposal, being the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is included in profit or loss.

Lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the confract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(A) As alessee

For a confract that confains a lease component and one or more additional lease or nonlease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-ease
components. Non-ease components are separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shortterm
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
rightof-use assets representing the right to use the underlying asses.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Lease (Continued)

(A) As a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption to its shortterm leases (i.e. those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be low value. The Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. lease payments on shorterm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straightline basis over the lease ferm.

The cost of right-of-use assets
The cost of rightofuse assefs includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
- any inifial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- where applicable, an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the underlying the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
fo the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, discounted to their present value
under HKAS 37 "Provisions, contingent liabilities and confingent assets”.

The rightof-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 4.2), and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, other than adjustments fo lease liabilities
resulting from COVID-19-Related rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical expedient.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents rightof-use assefs as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of rightofuse assets.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Lease (Continued)

(A) As a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the lease liability af the present
value of the lease payments that are unpaid at that dafe. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rafe at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily deferminable.

The lease payments include:
- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

- the amount expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
- the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is reasonably certain fo exercise the option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising of an
opfion fo terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market renfal rates are initiolly measured using the market
rental rafes as at the commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease liability rightof-use assets, and are recognised as expense
in the accounting period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments. The
Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related rightof-use asset)
whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the dafe of reassessment.

- the lease payments changes due to changes in market rental rates following a market rent review or
a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rafe (unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is
used).

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financia
position.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Lease (Continued)

(A) As a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications
Except for COVID-19-Related rent concession in which the Group applied the practfical expedient, the
Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assetfs: and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments fo that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discounted rate af the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making corresponding adjustments fo the
relevant rightof-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the rightofuse asset has
been reduced to zero.

COVID-19-Related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022;
and

e there is no substantive change fo other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a
lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Lease (Continued)

(B) As a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines af lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as loan receivables af the commencement
dafe af the amount of the Group's nef investment in the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit in
the respective leases. Initial direct costs [other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are
included in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases. Financial leasing income is allocated
fo accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

The Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ["HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a confract to lease and non-lease components. Nonlease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS @ and initially measured af fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at inifial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in consideration of lease contracts that were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction
of renfals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relafing to the original lease as part of
the lease payments for the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transaction

For a fransfer of asset that does not safisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale
of assef, the Group as a buyerlessor does not recognise the transferred asset and recognises a loan
receivable equal to the transfer proceeds within the scope HKFRS 9.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5 Intangible assets

Infangible assefs acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from goodwill and are inifially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

The Group's intangible assets represent the frading rights fo dealing of securities in the Stock Exchange and the
licences granted by Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for infangible asset with finite useful life is
provided on a straightline basis over ifs estimated useful life. Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised. The useful life of an infangible asset with an indefinite life is revised annually fo defermine whether
indefinite life assessment continues fo be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment form being
indefinite 1o finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Infangible assefs are tested for impairment as described in Note 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements.

4.6 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans
The shortterm employee benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.

The Group participates in defined contribution refirement benefit schemes for those employees who are
eligible to participate. Contributions are charged to profit or loss as they are paid/become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme.

The Group operates a defined confribution Mandatory Provident Fund refirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assefs of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required fo confribute a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme as specified by the
local municipal government. The Group has no legal or consfruction obligations o pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contributions.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entilements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of
each reporting period.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the insfrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from confracts with custfomers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2020.
Transaction cosfs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
[other than financial assets or financial liabilities atf fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inifial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assefs or financial liabilities af FVPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assefs are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the

time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") and FVPL.

The Group assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flows
characteristics of the asset and the Group's business model for managing the asset.

Financial assefs that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect confractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assefs that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVOCI:

- the financial assef is held within a business model whose obijective is to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and

- the confractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding {"SPPI").

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVPL, except that at the date of inifial adoption/inifial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

Financial assefs are classified as FVPL when the financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be paid by
an acquirer as part of business combination to which HKFRS applies; (i) held for trading; or [iii) it is designated
at FVPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on inifial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of shorterm profittaking; or

- itis a derivative that is not designated and effective hedging instrument.
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required fo be measured at the

amortised cost or FVOCI as measured at FVPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Confinued)
Financial assets at amortised cost
For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual ferms should give rise to cash flows

that are SPPI.

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal
amount may change over the life of the financial asset [e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Inferest consists
of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI
assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that
introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contfractual
cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement
imespective of whether it is a loan in ifs legal form.

An assessment of business model for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a financial
asset. The Group defermines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed fogether fo achieve a particular business objective. The Group's business model does not depend on
management’s intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed at a
higher level of aggregate rather than on instrumentby-instrument basis.

The Group's business models for managing its financial instrument reflects how the Group manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The Group's business models determine whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.

The Group considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However,
this assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios that the Group does not reasonably expect fo occur,
such as socalled "worst case” or “stress case” scenarios. The Group fakes info account all relevant evidence
available such as:

- how the performance of the business model and the financial assefs held within the business model are
evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way in which these risks
are managed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group defermines whether newly recognised financial assets are part
of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. The Group
reassesses ifs business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed
since the preceding period.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to the expected credit loss ["ECL") assessment.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective inferest rafe is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective inferest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Inferest income is recognised using the effective inferest method for debt instruments measured subsequently af
amortised cost. Inferest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carmying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become creditimpaired [see below). For
financial assefs that have subsequently become creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective inferest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting period, the credit risk
on the creditimpaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective inferest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves
so that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired.

Inferest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of business are recognised in profit or loss
and included in the “Revenue” line item.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Confinued)

Financial assets at FVOCI

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the “Financial asset af
FVOCI reserve”. Where the Group's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
fo consolidated income statement following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in consolidated income statement as “Other income” when the Group's right fo receive
payments is established.

For the investment in debt instruments, they are subsequently measured at fair value. Inferest income calculated using
effective interest method. Impairment and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVPL
Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI or designated as
FVOCI are measured at FVPL.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value af the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
inferest eamed on the financial asset and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investiments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
@ [including loan and account receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from related party and
cash and cash equivalents) The amount of ECL is updated af each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognifion.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12-m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
condifions and an assessment of both the current conditions af the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
condifions.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Confinued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

The Group always recognises simplified approach and recorded lifefime ECLs for the financial leasing receivable
and account receivables from financial advisory and loan facilitation services and securities dealing and broking
business (arising from cash clients and clearing house) and contract assefs (if any) that result from transactions
within the scope of HKFRS 15 and the ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances.

For other financial assets, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on financial assets has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal o
12-m ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in this
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial assets being
creditimpaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-ooking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forwardlooking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, government bodies, as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate o the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s extemal (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability fo meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

- an acfual or expected significant adverse change in regulatory, economic or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in debtor's abilities to meet the debt obligations; and

- past due information.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Confinued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

For account receivables from margin client, the Group will also consider there has been a significant increase
in credif risk when clients cannot meet the margin call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value ("LTV") to
make its assessment.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. VWhen the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial assets are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity fo meet s confractual cash flow obligations in the near term and [iii] adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer ferm may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a financial instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rafing of ‘investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criferia used fo identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of defaulf

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking info account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than Q0 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that @ more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

However, in certain case, the Group may also consider a margin client receivable to be in default when there
is a margin shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely fo receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
toking into account the pledged securities held by the Group.

Creditimpaired financial assets

Financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events of default that have a defrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired
includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
- a breach of confract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, having granted fo the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disoppearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

When assessing the likelihood of the borrower to pay its credit obligation, the Group takes into account both
quantitative and qualitative indicators. Qualitative indicafor, such as the breach of covenants, and quantifative
indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs
in this analysis. The Group uses a variely of sources of information fo assess creditimpaired which are either
developed infernally or obtained from external sources.

It may not be possible fo identify a single discrete event — instead, the combined effect of several events may
have caused financial assets to become creditimpaired. The Group reassesses whether the financial assets
measured at amortised cost are creditimpaired at each reporting date.

Wite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of account receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets writien off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a funcfion of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss
if there is a default) and the exposure af default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-ooking information. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets,
these are represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective inferest rate
determined at initial recognition. For financial leasing receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL is
consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of significant increases in
credit risk at the individual insfrument level may not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

- nafure of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's loan and account receivables, deposits and other
receivables are each assessed as a separate group. Advance fo a related party are assessed for ECLs on
an individual basis);

- pastdue sfatus;

- nature, size and industry of debtors; and

- external credit rafings where available.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum confractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the consfituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in
the previous reporting period, but determines af the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are
no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-m ECL at the current reporting
date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured af each reporting date fo reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt securities that are measured at
FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value reserve (recycling].

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assef to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises ifs retained inferest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group refains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues fo recognise the financial assef and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost in its entirety, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is fransferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity insfruments issued by a group entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity insfrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual inferest in the assefs of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised af the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable fo the Group or
a contract that will or may be settled in the Group's own equity insfruments and is a non-derivative contract for
which the Group is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative
contract over own equity that will or may be sefiled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash [or
another financial asset] for a fixed number of the Group's own equity instruments.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities af initial recognition, as financial liabilities af FVPL, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised inifially af fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
aftiributable transaction costs, any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fee
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Alfter initial recognition, the financial liabilities including account payables, deposits from financial leasing
customers, dividend payable, accruals and other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to related parties, the
debt components of bond payable and promissory note and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective inferest method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities measured at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include (1) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (2)
held- fortrading, or (3] designated as af FVPL. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
info by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relafionships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective
hedging insfruments.

Subsequently fo initial recognition, the changes in fair value of the financial liabilities measured at fair value is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer fo make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are recognised as financial liability at the time the
guarantee is issued, and are initially measured at their fair values, adjusted for fransaction costs that are directly
affributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee confract at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9: and

®  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the revenue recognition policies over the guarantee period.

The fair value of financial guarantee is determined based on the present value of the differences in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable o a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligafions are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention to
seffle on a net basis, or fo realise the assefs and setile the liabilities simultaneously.
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4.8

4.9

Share-based payments

The Group operates a share option scheme for remuneration of its employees (including the directors of the
Company) and other eligible participants.

The employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share options are measured at their fair value.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share options granted. Their value is appraised af the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.

For the services received from the parties other than employees, there shall be a rebuttable presumption that the
fair value of the services received can be estimated reliably. The fair value shall be measured at the date the
counferparties render service. If the entity rebuts the presumptions because it cannot esfimate reliably the fair value
of the services received, the entity shall measure the services received, indirectly by reference to the fair value of
the share options awarded.

All services received in exchange for the grant of share options is recognised as an expense in profit or loss over
the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full af the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a coresponding increase in “Share-based payment reserve” within
equity. If service or non-market performance conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected fo vest. Non-market performance
and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of share options that are expected fo vest.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of share options expected fo vest
differs from previous estimates. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share-
based payment reserve.

Where a grant of share options is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the grant is recognised immediately. This includes any grant where non-vesting
condifions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.

At the time when the share opfions are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction cosfs up to the nominal value of
the share issued are reallocated fo share capitol with any excess being recorded as share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are sfill not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and demand deposits, and shortferm, highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired.
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90

4.10 Provisions

411

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to seffle the obligation, provided that @
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income fax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relafing fo items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking info consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all femporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the fax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carried forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carried forward unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be ufilised, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred fax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset fo be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed af the end of each reporting period and
are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred fax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assefs against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

4.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial instruments at fair value af the end of reporting period. Fair value is the price
that will be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an assef or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the assef in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
will use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1:  Based on quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

level 2: Based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

level 3:  Based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group defermines whether fransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole] at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services to customers in an amount the reflects the
consideration fo which the enfity expects fo be entilled in exchange for those services. Specially, the Group uses
a 5-step approach fo revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in the contract

Step 3:  Defermine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract

Step 5: Recognised revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “contfrol” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or @
series of disfinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is fransferred over fime and revenue is recognised over fime by reference to the progress fowards
complete safisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

—  the Group's performance creafes and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

- the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the custfomer obtains confrol of the distinct good or

service.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group's performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

- direct measurements of the value transferred by the Group to the customer; or

- the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If @ contract involves multiple services, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation
based on the stand-alone selling prices. Where these are nof directly observable, they are estimated based on
expected cost plus margin.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional right fo consideration, i.e. only the passage of ftime is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation fo fransfer goods or services to a cusfomer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are accounted for a presented on a net basis.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining o contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtfain a confract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs [sales commissions) as an asset if it expects fo recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing incremental costs to obtain contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised 1o profit or loss within one year.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in ifs consuliancy service contracts. The Group first assesses whether
these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing which it recognises an
asset for these costs only if they meet all of the following criteria:

- the costs relate directly to a confract or to an anticipated contract that the Group can specifically identify;

- the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in safisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

- the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised fo profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
fransfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate. The assef is subject to ECL review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)

Estimates of revenues, cosfs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the circumsfances that give rise fo the revision become known by management. The customer pays the fixed
amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset
is recognised. If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

(a) Interest income
Inferest income from financial asset is recognised as revenue in profit or loss over the terms of the confracts,
by reference to the principal outstanding and af the effective inferest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset fo that
assef’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

For financial assets that have subsequently become creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset fo that asset’s amortised cost.

(b)  Financial advisory fee income

The Group provides customised financial advisory services o its customers. The Group conducts feasibility
studies on various financing solutions, design financing structures and solutions based on the credit profiles
of its cusfomers. Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered. Revenue is recognised progressively over time using the costto-cost method, i.e.
input method based on the proportion of the actual staff costs incurred relative to the estimated total staff
costs because the Group has the right to be paid for work done to date if the customer were to cancel the
service agreement before the consulting services was fully completed.

(c) Loan facilitation service income

The tofal service fees are collected partially upfront at the inception of the loan and the remaining fees
are collected subsequently on a monthly basis over the loan period. The consideration received from the
borrowers generally includes the services fees for facilitating loan origination [matching of investors and
borrowers and facilitating the execution of loan agreements) and for providing ongoing monthly services
[cash processing services and collection services). The service fee of upfront loan facilitation is recognised
as revenue upon execution of loan agreements while the service fee of post loan facilitation services is
deferred and recognised over the period of the loan on a straightline method, which approximates the
patffern of when the underlying services are performed. When the cash received is different from the
revenue recognised, a "Confract Asset” or “Confract Liability” shall be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(d)  Commission and brokerage income from security dealing
The Group provides broking services to customers on securities trading. Commission and brokerage income
at a point in time on the execution date of the trades at a cerfain percentage of the transaction value of the
frade executed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)

(e)  Placing and underwriting service income
The Group provides underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing services to customers. Revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the relevant underwriting, sub-underwriting and placing activities
are completed. Payments are received in accordance fo the completion of relevant underwriting, sub-
underwriting and placing activities as specified in the agreement. The period from satisfaction of the
performance obligation to receipt of consideration is usually within one year or less.

4.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.15 Government grants

Crants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary fo match with the costs that the grants are infended to
compensate.

Govemnment grants relafing to income is presented in gross under "Other income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

4.16 Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars ("HK$'000"). The consolidated financial statements is presented in RMB
since most of the companies comprising the Group are operating in RMB environment and the functional currency
of most of the companies comprising the Group is RMB.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities, foreign currency fransactions are translated info
the functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At reporting dafe, monetfary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sefflement of such
transactions and from the reporting date refranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried af fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates
prevailing on the dafe when the fair value was defermined and are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Foreign currencies (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial statements of foreign operations, originally

presented in a currency different from the Group's presentation currency, have been converted info RMB. Assets

and liabiliies have been translated info RMB af the closing rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses have

been converted into RMB at the exchange rafes ruling at the fransaction dates or af the average rate over the

reporting period provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this

procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the exchange

reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are freated as assets and

liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

4.17 Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:

(i
(i)

(ifi)

has confrol or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i)

i)

(ifi)
(iv)

(v)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associafe or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entfity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other enfity is an associate of the third entfity;

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related fo the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

A person identified in [al(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personne
services to the Group or fo the Group's parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the enfity and include:

(] that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

S. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the directors of the Company to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the adoption of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associafed assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed fo be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(i) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation for post loan facilitation services

The recognition of post loan facilitation services income requires judgements by the directors of the Company in
determining the timing of safisfaction of performance obligations.

In making their judgement, the directors of the Company considered the detailed criteria for recognition of
revenue sef out in HKFRS 15 and in particular, whether the Group has satisfied all the performance obligations
over fime or at a point in time with reference fo the details of the terms of fransaction as stipulated in the contracts
entered info with ifs customers and counterparties.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation for post loan facilitation services
(Continued)

The Group considers the post loan facilitation services and ongoing management monthly services as distinct
performance obligations. In respect of the upfront facilitation services, the directors of the Company have assessed
that the customers consume benefits only affer the Group performed the obligation [i.e. successfully matched
the lenders and the customers and facilitated the execution of agreements), the service fee income is safisfied
at a point in time and is recognised as revenue upon the dispatch of loans to customers. In respect of the post
loan facilitation services, the directors of the Company have assessed that the customers simultaneously receive
and consume benefit provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs. The Group is required fo
provide the necessary services fo the customers over the loan period. Therefore, the directors of the Company
have safisfied that the performance obligation in respect of the service fee income s satisfied over time and have
recognised such income over the loan period.

Despite the post loan facilitation services and ongoing management monthly services are distinct performance
obligations, the Group does not provide these services separately, and the third-party evidence of selling price
does not exist either, as public information is not available regarding the amount of fees competitors charge for
these services. As a result, the Group uses the expected-costplus-a-margin approach to defermine its best estimate
of selling prices of the different deliverables as the basis for allocation. When estimating the selling prices, the
Group considers the cost related to such services, profit margins, customers demand, effect of competition, and
other market factors, if applicable.

Allowance for ECLs on loan receivables

The allowance for ECLs on the loan receivables are estimated based on assumptions about the risk of default and
credit risk of respective receivables. The loss allowance amount is measured at the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected future
credit loss of the respective receivables. Such assessment involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty.
When the actual future cash flows are less or more than expected, a material ECls or material reversal of ECls
may arise, accordingly.

The following significant judgements are required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring the ECL:

Significant increase of credit risk

As explained in Note 4.7, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-m ECL or lifetime ECL for respective
receivables. An asset will use lifetime ECL when ifs credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS @ does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credif risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased, the Group takes info account quantitative and qualitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information including available customers’ historical data and existing and forecast
market conditions.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Allowance for ECLs on loan receivables (Continued)

Model and assumptions used

ECLs on the loan receivables which are not assessed to be credit impaired are estimated using a calculation
model using observable data as af the end of the reporting period, including the difference between (i) the
effective interest rates of interest charged by the Group for similar categories of the loans and the riskfree rate
of respective regions; i) administrative service cost of the Group; and [iii) the weighting of the loan receivables
under different categories of loan receivables at each of the reporting dates, and GDP growth and unemployment
rate, efc. Judgements is applied in identifying the most appropriate ECL model as well as for determining the
assumption used in the model, including those relate to key drivers of credit risk.

The Group's allowance for ECls on loan receivables may also take into account the subsequent seftlement,
collateral valuation and the management's judgement on the effectiveness and marketability of the collateral
properties and customers’ capability of payment at the estimated valuation and the actual valuation may differ
from the esfimation.

Estimation of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject fo income taxes in jurisdictions in which the group enfities operates. Significant judgement is
required in defermining the provision for income faxes. There are certain fransactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is subject to the final approval of annual tax retumn the group entfities filed with the
relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

One of the Group's financial instruments is measured af fair value for the financial reporting purpose. The best
evidence of fair value is the published price quotations in an active market. In the absence of such information,
the fair value is defermined by the management with the assistance of an independent professional valuer.
Such valuation is subject to limitations of the valuation models adopted and the uncertainty in estimates used by
management in the assumptions. A degree of judgement is also required including consideration of parameters
such as liquidity risk, credit risk, size premium and volatility. Should the estimates and the relevant parameters
of the valuation models be changed, there would be material changes in the fair value of certain financial
instruments without quoted prices. Defailed information in relation to the fair value measurement of the respective
financial instruments are set out in the applicable notes.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8, Operating Segments, required identification and disclosure of operating segment information based on
internal financial reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (the "CODM) of the Group,
being the executive directors of the Company, for the purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

[i)  Finance lease and factoring - Provision of [a) direct finance leasing; (b) sale and leaseback; |(c)
related services factoring; and (d) related advisory services in the PRC.

(i) Micro credit and loan —  Provision of [a) micro-credit; and (b) post loan facilitation related services
facilitation related services in the PRC.

i) Securities dealing and broking - Provision of securities brokerage, share placing and margin financing and
and other financial services other financial services in Hong Kong.

The Group's operafing segments are strafegic business unifs that offer different services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different marketing strategies.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating and reportable segment:

Securities
Micro credit dealing and
Finance lease and loan broking and
and factoring facilitation  other financial
related services related services services Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Revenue
External income 23,278 86,309 4,284 113,871
Segment results 21,880 52,209 3,079 77,168
Unallocated corporate income 175
Unallocated corporate expenses (19,566)
Profit before income tax 57,777
Income tax expense (17,558)
Profit for the year 40,219
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Confinued)

Securities
Micro credit dealing and
Finance lease and loan broking and
and factoring facilitation  other financial
related services  related services services Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Revenue
External income 61,027 108,455 6,612 176,094
Segment results (144,195) 32,241 (6,770) (118,724)
Unallocated corporate income 978
Unallocated corporate expenses (23,2306)
Loss before income tax (140,982)
Income tax credit 34,149
Loss for the year (106,833)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note
4. Segment results represents profit earned by or loss incurred from each segment without allocation of cerfain other
income and other operating expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM of the Company, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance. There were no intersegment sales for the year.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's segment assefs and segment liabilities by operating and reportable segment:

Securities

Micro credit dealing and

Finance lease and loan broking and

and factoring facilitation  other financial
related services related services services Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Segment assets 118,337 537,270 44,554 700,161
Tax recoverable 1,301
Deferred tax assets 52,440
Financial asset at FVOCI 38,085
Unallocated corporate assefs 4,098
Consolidated total assets 796,085
Segment liabilities 12,453 115,688 17,000 145,141
Tax payable 655
Promissory note 77,793
Bond payable 16,301
Unallocated corporate liabilities 15,138
Consolidated total liabilities 255,028
ANNUAL REPORT 202



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Confinued)

Securities
Micro credit dealing and
Finance lease and loan broking and
and factoring facilitation  other financial
related services  related services services Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 31 December 2020
Segment assets 557,231 507,717 64,245 1,129,193
Deferred tax assets 62,559
Financial asset at FVOCI 33,196
Deposits for further acquisition of interest
in a non-wholly owned subsidiary and
acquisition of inferest in @ company 133,000
Unallocated corporate assefs 10,939
Consolidated total assets 1,368,887
Segment liabilities 430,218 121,991 25,342 577,551
Tax payable 180
Promissory note 72,050
Bond payable 33,681
Unallocated corporate liabilities 11,549
Consolidated total liabilities 695,011
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Confinued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources between segments:

- All assefs are allocated to operating segments other than tax recoverable, financial asset at FVOCI, deposits for
acquisition of certain non-current assefs, deferred tax assets and unallocated corporate assets.

- All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than promissory note, bond payable, tax payable and
unallocated corporate liabilities.

Other segment information

Securities

Finance Micro credit dealing and

lease and and loan broking

factoring  facilitation ~ and other

related related financial
services services services Unallocated Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Additions to non-current assets* 35 314 10 - 359
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (97) (349) (3) (468) (917)
Depreciation of rightof-use assets (267) (868) (94) (857) (2,086)

Bad debts written off of loan and

account receivables, net (2,600) - - (2,600)
Reversal of ECLs on loan and account

receivables, net 3,237 1,768 2,243 - 7,248
Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment (154) (48) - - (202)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

Securities

Finance  Micro credit  dealing and

lease and and loan broking

factoring  facilitation and other

related related financial
services services services  Unallocated Total

RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Additions to non-current assets* - 515 - - 515
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (127) (513) (6) (657) (1,303)
Depreciation of rightof-use assets (5206) (1,559 (94) (934) (3,113)
Impairment loss on intangible assets - - (5,307) - (5,307)
Bad debts written off of loan and account

receivables, net (1,403) (5,281) - - (6,684)
Written off of prepayment (100) - - - (100)
Provision for ECLs on loan and account

receivables, net (173,855) (18,6706) (4,023) - (196,554
Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment (14) (2) - - (16)
Write-off of other payable - - - 642 642

Non-current assets included property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assets for the reporting period.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented based on the location of customers.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets, is presented
based on the geographical location of the asses.

Revenue from Non-current assets

external customers as at 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
The PRC 109,587 169,482 2,304 4,330
Hong Kong 4,284 6,612 5,642 6,988
113,871 176,094 7,946 11,318

Information about major customers

None of the customers of the Group individually contributed 10% or more of tofal revenue of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Same).
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15
Point in time
— Commission and brokerage income from securities dealing 1,475 1,345
— Placing and underwriting service income 34 218
Over time*
— Post loan facilitation service income 12,207 35,200
— Financial advisory services income
- Financial leasing advisory services income 937 1,039
— Other financial advisory service income 2 44
14,655 37,846
Revenue from other sources*
— Interest income from financial leasing 17,810 36,578
— Interest income from factoring 4,529 23,410
— Interest income from small loans 74,102 73,255
— Interest income from margin financing 976 1,377
— Inferest income from other loans 1,799 3,628
99,216 138,248
Total revenue 113,871 176,094
Other income
Bank inferest income 306 209
Dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI (Note 17) 8,771 10,422
Gain on fermination of lease (Note 15) 67 -
Cain on early redemption of bonds (Nofe 29) 175 -
Government grant 45 621
Handlings service charges 231 -
Other taxes refund 358 709
Refund of unemployment insurance premium - 322
Write-off of other payable - 642
Sundry income 811 456
10,764 13,381

Inferest income were calculated using the effective interest income according to HKFRS 9. All the interest income disclosed in the above came

from financial assets not at FVPL.

# The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 21 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose information about remaining performance
obligation that have original expected duration of one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

8. FINANCE COST

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Inferest on bank borrowings 13,335 43,473
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) 287 354
Inferest on bond payable (Note 29) 2,173 2,814
Interest on promissory note (Note 28) 9,058 8,442
24,853 55,083
9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
Profit/(loss) before income fax is arrived at after charging:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
Auditor's remuneration
— Audit services 731 783
Depreciation charged on:
— property, plant and equipment (Nofe 14) 917 1,303
— rightof-use assets (Note 15) 2,086 3,113
3,003 4,416
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ remuneration (Note 10))
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 19,742 26,196
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions 2,820 1,661
— Equity setiled share-based payment 97 4,008
22,659 31,865
Equity seffled share-based payment (Note 41)
— Employee benefit expenses [as above] 97 4,008
— Referral fees/Consultancy fees 65 1,435
162 5,443
Commission paid 10,243 13,562
Operating lease expenses 343 366
Foreign exchange difference, net 481 Q17
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 202 16
Bad debts written off of loan and account receivables, net 2,600 6,684
Written off of prepayment - 100

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions available fo reduce its contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future

years (2020: Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 202



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(a) Directors and chief executive emoluments

Details of emoluments paid and payable by the entities comprising the Group to the directors of the Company
[including emoluments for his/her services as the employees/directors of the Group entities prior to becoming the
directors of the Company) during the year are as follows:

Salaries,  Retirement Equity

allowances benefit settled

Directors’ and benefits scheme share-based
fees inkind contributions  payments Total

RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00

Year ended 31 December 2021

Executive directors

Mr. Lo (Note |i)) 498 - 15 - 513
Ms. Chan Shuk Kwan, Winnie

(“Ms. Chan”) [Note {iv)) 291 - 9 - 300
Mr. Xie Weiquan ["Mr. Xie")

(Note (ii)) 100 429 48 9 586

Independent non-executive

directors
Mr. Ha Tak Kong ("Mr. Ha") 149 - - - 149
Mr. Ip Chi Wai ["Mr. Ip”) 149 - - - 149
Mr. Kam Wai Man [“Mr. Kam)

(Note {iii)) 149 - - - 149

1,336 429 72 9 1,846

Year ended 31 December 2020
Executive directors
Mr. lo (Note (i)) 534 - 16 - 550
Ms. Chan Shuk Kwan, Winnie

(“Ms. Chan”) [Note (iv)) 534 - 16 - 550
Mr. Xie Weiquan ("Mr. Xie")

(Note {ii)) 107 446 32 40 625
Independent non-executive

directors
Mr. Ha Tak Kong ("Mr. Ha") 160 - - - 160
Mr. Ip Chi Wai ("Mr. Ip”) 160 - - - 160
Mr. Kam Wai Man [“Mr. Kam)

[Note (iiil) 160 - - — 160

1,655 446 64 40 2,205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Lo, one of the executive direciors of the Company, is also the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Group.

(ii) Mr. Xie was re-designated from non-executive director to executive director on 2 January 2020.

[ii)  Following the passing away of Ms. Hung Siu Woon Pauline on 19 October 2019, Mr. Kam was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 2 January 2020.

[ivy  Ms. Chan has resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 1 August 2021.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group and the non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or ifs subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year

ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group were all nondirector individuals (2020: Same).
One (2020: one) individuals whose remuneration fell within the band of Nil o HK$ 1,000,000 [equivalent
fo approximately RMB830,000) and four (2020: four) individuals whose remuneration fell within the band of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB830,001 to RMB1,245,000) were as

follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,155 2,309
Refirement benefit scheme contributions 112 121
Equity seftled share-based payments 16 2,126
3,283 4,556

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to any of the direcfors or the five highest paid individuals
lincluding directors and employees| as an inducement fo join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2020: Nil). During the year ended 31 December 2021, no arrangement under which Directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments {2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The number of senior management (excluding the directors of the Company) whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

2021 2020
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB830,000) 4 3
HK$ 1,000,001 1o HK$ 1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB830,001 to RMBT,245,000) - 1
11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
The charge comprises:
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (c)
— current year provision 5,387 10,361
— under-provision/(over-provision) in prior years 2,071 [2,335)
Current fax — Hong Kong Profits Tax (d)
— current year provision - 216
Deferred tax expense/(credif], nef 30 10,100 (42,391)
17,558 (34,149)
Notes:
[a) The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which entities in the Group are
domiciled and operated.
(b) Pursuant fo the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject fo any income fax under these jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d]

PRC EIT is calculated at 25% (2020: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC except for two subsidiaries of

the Company as menfioned below:

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, enterprises established in the Qianhai Shenzhen- Hong Kong Modern Services
Industry Cooperation Zone (“Zone") are eligible for a reduced EIT rate of 15%, provided that the enterprise is engaged in projects that fall within
the Catalogue for EIT Preferential Treatments of the Zone, one of the subsidiaries is entitled to the 15% preferential tax rafe for the years 2018 1o
2020). During the year ended 31 December 2021, this subsidiary was approved to be high and new technology enterprises ("HNTE"). HNTE is
entitled fo enjoy a reduced enferprise income tax rate of 15% and additional 75% tax reduction based on the eligible research and development
expenses with a validity period of three years from 11 December 2020 1o 10 December 2023.

Besides, according to the Notice on Implementing the Policy of Inclusive Tax Relief for Small and Micro Enterprises ("SMEs”), released by the
Ministry of Finance on January 2021, qualified SMEs with annual taxable income below RMB1 million per year entifled to a preferential EIT rate
of 10% on 25% of their income. Whereas, qualified SMEs with taxable income from RMB1 to 3 million enfifled to a preferential EIT rate of 10%
on 50% of their income, one of the subsidiaries is enfitled fo the preferential tax rate for the years 2020 to 2021. Such preferential policy is
extended to 2022.

The Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2020, under the tworiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entities will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the twortiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the esftimated assessable profits above HK$2 million

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/(loss| before income tax per the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Profit/(loss) before income tax 57,777 (140,982)

Tax calculated af the rafes applicable to the tax jurisdiction concered 13,612 (35,252)

Tax effect of nontaxable income (2,863) (3,039)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,881 6,256

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (109) (30)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 966 251

Prior years' under/overprovision) 2,071 (2,335)

Income fax expense/(credi] 17,558 (34,149)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. DIVIDEND

(a) Dividend attributable to the year

The final dividend of HK3 cents per ordinary share of the Company, totaling approximately HK$4,697,000
[equivalent to approximately RMB3,829,000) proposed after the reporting date, for the year ended 31
December 2021 was not recognised as a liability at the reporting date. In addition, the final dividend is subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (2020: Nil).

(b) Dividend attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'O00
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year of HK5 cents per
ordinary share - 6,952
13.EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
2021 2020
Earnings/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (RMB'000) 30,582 (1171,642)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
earnings/(loss) per share (in ‘000 156,228 155,523
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
— share options (in "000) 6,593 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings/(loss) per share (in ‘000) 162,821 155,523

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the earnings/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) eamings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding fo assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2021, the potenfial
dilutive ordinary shares of the Company are share options (2020: share options) (Note 41). The calculation of share
options is defermined by the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (defermined as the average
annual market share price of the Company's shares) based on the monefary value of the subscription rights attached to
the outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no adjusiment had been made fo the basic loss per share amounts presented
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on

the basic loss per share amounts presented for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net carrying amount 29 367 2,459 2,855
Additions - 160 199 359
Disposals - (15) (565) (580)
Depreciation [Notfe 9) (19) (177) (721) (917)
Exchange realignment - - (36) (36)
Closing nef carrying amount 10 335 1,336 1,681
At 31 December 2021
Cost 3,925 382 2,628 6,935
Accumulated depreciation (3,915) (47) (1,292) (5,254)
Net carrying amount 10 335 1,336 1,681
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net carrying amount 246 552 3,338 4,136
Additions 39 21 110 170
Disposals - (17) (37) (54)
Depreciation [Note ) (254) (187) (862) (1,303)
Exchange realignment (2) (2) (@0) (@4)
Closing net carrying amount 29 367 2,459 2,855
At 31 December 2020
Cost 3,925 808 3,838 8,661
Accumulated depreciation (3,8906) (531) (1,379) (5,800)
Net carrying amount 29 367 2,459 2,855
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

As a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for the office premises and branches used for its operation. Those leases generally run

for an initial period of one to five years. There are no lease contracts that include variable lease payments.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's rightof-use assets and the movements during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 5,154 5,153
Additions 1,420 345
(Termination)/Extension of lease (Note) (1,368) 2,899
Depreciation charged (Nofe 9) (2,086) (3,113)
Exchange realignment (57) (130)
As at 31 December 3,063 5,154
(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
As af 1 January 5,312 5,257
Additions 1,420 345
(Termination)/Extension of lease (Note) (1,435) 2,899
Accretion of interest recognised (Note 8) 287 354
Renfal payments (2,333) (3,414)
Exchange realignment (59) (129)
As at 31 December 3,192 5,312
Analysed into:
Current portion 1,656 2,265
Non-current porfion 1,536 3,047
3,192 5,312
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has terminated certain leases with the landlords, no gain or loss is result from the
termination of lease. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group re-negotiated certain leases with the landlords to extend the

lease term and lease payments and entered info renewed lease agreements. No gain or loss is resulted from such extension of lease ferm.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's current and non-current lease liabilities, RMB673,000 and
RMB766,000 (2020: RMB67 3,000 and RMB1,495,000) were the amount due fo a related company. Further

details of the transaction are disclosed in Note 36 1o the consolidated financial statements.

The tofal cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of the lease liabilities are disclosed in Notes 44(c) and
39(c] fo the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

Gain on termination of lease (Note 7) (67) -

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8) 287 354

Depreciation charged on rightof-use assets (Nofe 9| 2,086 3,113
Expenses relating to shortferm leases and other leases with remaining

lease terms ended on or before the reporting date (Note 9) 343 366

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 2,649 3,833

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter into any new leases that are nof yet commenced (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trading rights
RMB'000
Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net carrying amount 3,309
Impairment loss (Nofe Q) -
Exchange realignment (107)
Closing net carrying amount 3,202
At 31 December 2021
Cost 8,065
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (4,863)
Net carrying amount 3,202
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net carrying amount 8,847
Impairment loss (5,307)
Exchange realignment (231)
Closing net carrying amount 3,309
At 31 December 2020
Cost 8,333
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (5,024)
Net carrying amount 3,309

Trading rights represents rights that confer eligibility of the Group to trade on the Stock Exchange which was acquired
by the Group as part of the acquisition of Wealth Ton Finance Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Wealth
Ton Group”). The frading rights have no foreseeable limit to period that the Group can use fo generate nef cash
flows, accordingly, the frading rights are considered as having an indefinite useful lives. The trading rights is fested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

As the trading right is not fransferable, the recoverable amounts of the frading right held by the Group has been
defermined with reference to the recoverable amounts based on a value-in-use approach by using the cash flow
projections. That cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period
and at a predax discount rate of 14.07% (2020: 13.6%) and growth rates ranged from 5.4% 1o 6.8% [2020: 3% to
7%). Management determined the budgeted revenue and costs based on past performance and its expectations for the
market development. The cash flows projections beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2020:

3%) growth rafe. Based on the assessment, no impairment loss on intangible assets was recognised during the year
(2020: RMB5,307,000).

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVOCI

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

Equity invesiment designated af FVOCI [non-recycling)
— Unlisted equity securities 38,085 33,196

The unlisted equity securifies represented 4.6448% (2020: 4.6448%) equity interests in Guotou Chuangxin (Beijing)
Investment Fund Corporation Llimited, a private company with limited liability established in the PRC and engaged in
invesiment management. Such investment is nof held for frading, instead, it is held for longterm strategic purposes. The
directors of the Company have elected to designate this investment in equity instruments as at FVOCI as they believe
that recognising shortterm fluctuations in the investment's fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group's strategy of holding these investments for longferm purposes and realising their performance potential in the

long run. Dividend income amounted to approximately RMB8,771,000 (Note 7) was received on this investment
during the year (2020: RMB10,422,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, upon the reduction in capital of the unlisted equity securifies, the Group
had received refund of approximately RMB16,257,000. There was no change in the Group's inferest after the capital
reduction.

No reduction in capital of the unlisted equity securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the management estimated the fair value of unlisted equity securities by using the asset
approach. Fair value was recorded at approximately RMB38,085,000 (2020: approximately RMB33,196,000)
at the end of reporting period and a fair value gain of approximately RMB4,889,000 (2020: fair value loss of
approximately RMB231,000) was recognised as other comprehensive income [2020: other comprehensive expenses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued)

The inputs into the valuation were as follows:

2021 2020
Discount for lack of marketability {"DLOM”) 19.1%-31.4% | 22.7%-31.4%

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is measured using valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs and
hence was classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

Significant unobservable inputs Relation of unobservable inputs with the fair value
Increase in market price of underlying The higher market value of underlying investment portfolio, the higher fair
investment portfolio value of the equity investment, and vice versa.
DLOM The higher DLOM, the lower fair value of the equity investment, and vice
versa.

18.DEPOSITS FOR FURTHER ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN A NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARY AND ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN A COMPANY

The deposits paid comprises of further acquisition 45% equity inferest of a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Shenzhen
Haosen Credit Joint Stock Limited (“Shenzhen Haosen”) and acquisition of 100% of equity interest in a company named
Huizhou Heng Feng He Fu Industrial Corporation Limited (M 1B L& & &EEHR A7) ("Huizhou Heng Feng”).

[a)  On 24 April 2020, Wealthy Way International Finance Limited ("CWW Finance”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a related company which Mr. Lu
Nuanpei ["Mr. L"), the sibling of Mr. Lo, is the controlling shareholder of the related company, Mr. Lei Ting and
Ms. Kang Jing (collectively known as the “Vendors"), pursuant to which CWW Finance conditionally agreed to
acquire 45% of equity inferests in Shenzhen Haosen at a cash consideration of RMB180,000,000. The Group

owns as to 55% equity interest in Shenzhen Haosen prior to this acquisition (Note 43(a)).

Upon the completion of further acquisition on 24 December 2021, Shenzhen Haosen became an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary. Details of which are set out in the announcements and circular of the Company dafed

27 April 2020, 28 May 2020, 24 December 2020, 24 June 2021 and 24 December 2021.

The difference between the consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assefs of Shenzhen Haosen amounting to approximately RMB3,652,000, is recorded in consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered info a nonlegally binding memorandum of
understanding with an independent third party, pursuant to which the Group proposed fo acquire 100% equity
interest of Huizhou Heng Feng, which engaged in property investment. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
has paid the deposit of RMB30,000,000 and such deposit would be entirely refunded to the Group within 30
days of receipt of the written request. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the deposits have been fully
refunded upon withdrawal from the memorandum by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

18. DEPOSITS FOR FURTHER ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN A NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARY AND ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN A COMPANY

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the deposits are neither past due nor impaired. Deposits relate to counterparty for which
there were no recent history of default.

19. OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
The Stock Exchange

— Compensation Fund deposifs 41 42
— Fidelity Fund deposits 41 42
— Stamp duty deposits 24 25

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("HKSCC")
— Admission fees 1 42
— Guarantee Fund contribution 1 42
— Mainland Security deposits 199 207
387 400

Balances represent statutory deposit with the Stock Exchange and HKSCC which are non-inferest bearing and have no
fixed repayment ferms.

20.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
Prepayments 366 167
Contract costs (Note a) - 443
Deposits (Note b) 499 1,889
Other receivables 196 735
1,061 3,234

Analysed into:
Non-current portion 309 435
Current portion 752 2,799
Total 1,061 3,234
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

20.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a]

(b

The confract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and
bonuses paid or payable to the external parties, that are recognised as contract costs in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such

costs are recognised as part of “commissions paid” in profit or loss in period in which the relevant revenue recognised.

The management of the Company expects that the incremental cost paid to the external parties as a result of obtaining the loan contracts are
recoverable. The Group has therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of approximately RMB Nil {2020: RMB443,000)
at 31 December 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount of amortisation was approximately RMB443,000 (2020:
RMB2,778,000) and no impairment loss on contract cost was made (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the balance included an amount of RMB1,000,000 representing the security deposit in respect of credit enhancement
services offered by the independent third party. The security deposit is held under the name of the independent third party for the contract period
of 5 years to 15 May 2024. Such deposit is refundable upon the expiration of the underlying contract. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group has applied through written request for refund of the deposits as the level of total corporate guarantee (Note 37) has fallen
below the minimum requirement. As such, the full amount of the deposits was treated as current portion as at 31 December 2020. The deposit
was fully refunded during the year ended 31 December 2021.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired af the end of the reporting period and financial assets relate
to deposits and other receivables for which there was no recent history of default or which are due from independent
debtors that have a good relationship with the Group.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Non-current assets
Financial leasing receivables (a) 9,635 69,293
Small loans receivables lc) 280,598 4,731
290,233 74,024
Less: Allowance for ECLs () (1,688) (21,616)
288,545 52,408

Current assets

Financial leasing receivables (a) 68,663 435,423
Factoring loan receivables (b) - 182,849
Small loan receivables (c) 263,911 532,439
Other loan receivables (d) 3,266 23,478
Account receivables le) 7,208 11,818
343,048 1,186,007
Less: Allowance for ECLs () (36,928) (231,872)
306,120 954,135
Total loan and account receivables, net 594,665 1,006,543

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of current portion of loan receivables which are expected to
be recovered within one year are not materially different from their carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception. The fair value of the non-current portion of loan receivables has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. As such, the amortised cost of the non-current portion approximates ifs fair value.

Information about the Group's exposure fo interest rafe risk and credit risk of loan and account receivables is sef out in
Notes 39(a) and (b respectively.

Notes:
(a) Financial leasing receivables

For financial leasing receivables, the customers are obliged fo seftle the amounts according fo the ferms set out in the relevant contracts, and must
acquire the leased assets at the end of the lease period. The period for financial leasing contract are normally ranging from 8 months to 3 years

in 2021 (2020: 2 months to 8 years).

The Group's financial leasing receivables are denominated in RMB which is the functional currency of the relevant group entity. The effective
interest rates of the finance leases range from 9.91% to 21.1% (2020: 5.3% to 20.1%) per annum as at 31 December 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 202
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Financial leasing receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's financial leasing receivables with gross carrying amount of approximately RMB7 5,798,000 (2020:

RMB61,797,000) were carried at fixed-rate and the remaining balances of approximately RMB2,500,000 (2020: RMB442,919,000) were
carried ot variable-rate.

The ageing analysis of financial leasing receivables, determined based on the schedule fo repay of the receivables since the effective dates of the

relevant lease contracts, as at the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

Minimum Present value of minimum

lease payments lease payments
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Financial leasing receivables comprise of:

Within one year 71,537 449,231 68,663 435,423
More than one year but not exceeding two years 9,426 60,294 9,125 57,356
More than two years but not exceeding three years 495 12,123 510 11,937
81,458 521,648 78,298 504,716
Less: Unearned finance income (3,160) (16,932) - -
Present value of minimum lease payments 78,298 504,716 78,298 504,716

Financial leasing receivables are mainly secured by the lessees’ deposits (Note 25), certain guarantees and leased assets which are equipment
and machinery used in industries such as airline, real estate, manufacturing, construction and hotel. Additional collateral may be obtained
from customers fo secure their repayment obligations under financial leasing and such collateral include vehicle licence. As at 31 December

2021, the financial leasing receivables were collateralised by the leased assets with fair values of approximately RMB 147,848,000 (2020:
RMB709,794,000).




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) Financial leasing receivables (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the gross carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial leasing receivables based on the industries
of the lessees are as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Airline - 413,184

Real estate 3,868 20,728

Manufacturing 27,117 19,996

Telecommunication and information technology 16,216 8,598

Trading 2,888 5,564

Construction - 5,929

Hotel 17,536 198
Others

- leasing of equipment 5,843 6,640

- Health care service provider 1,131 1,131

— Printing 1,007 2,044

— Energy saving equipment provider - 7,983

— logistic service provider - 5777

— Miscellaneous 2,692 6,944

78,298 504,716

The following is a credit quality analysis of gross financial leasing receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment is overdue, the entire
outstanding balance of financial leasing receivables is classified as overdue.

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Neither overdue nor creditimpaired 36,281 76,198
Overdue but not creditimpaired

— overdue within 30 days 4,621 -

— overdue within 31 to 90 days 11,022 -

Overdue and creditimpaired (Nofe gli)) 26,374 428,518

78,298 504,716




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() Financial leasing receivables (Continued)
Movement of allowance for ECLs on financial leasing receivables are as follows:
Lifetime ECL -
not credit  Lifefime ECL -
12-m ECL impaired  credit impaired Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 2020 - - 34,649 34,649
Bad debts written off - - (7,079) (7,079)
Net re-measurement of loss allowance (Note gfil) - - 167,712 167,712
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 - - 195,282 195,282
Bad debts written off (Note gi) - - (180,180) (180,180)
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - - (9,759) (9,759)
New financial assefs originated - - 10,039 10,039
As at 31 December 2021 - - 15,382 15,382
The changes in the loss allowance was mainly due to release of loss allowance on bad debts written-off during the year.
In relafion fo the Group's financial leasing receivables, the Group has taken legal acfions against two [2020: four] customers with regards to the
overdue instalment repayment. As at 31 December 2021, the total balance of outstanding principal and interest was amounted to approximately
RMB4,449,000 (2020: RMB15,480,000), of which the whole balance RMB2,081,000 (2020: RMB14,877,000) was considered as
overdue instalment. Up to the date of this report, all final decision made by the court in respect of the legal proceedings, which dll results were in
favor of the Group. The directors of the Company, after taking the legal advice into consideration, were of the view that the balances could be
fully recovered by the way of enforcement measurement according to the Civil Procedure Law of the PRC (2020: except for two customers who
being declared bankruptcy by order of court, which the balances with aggregate gross carrying amount of RMB8,482,000 have been written
off).
(b) Factoring loan receivables
The period for factoring loan contracts are ranging from 3 months to 1 year and the effective interest rate of the factoring loan receivables was
ranging from 9.9% to 24.5% per annum as at 31 December 2020.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company were of the view that the balances could not be recovered as the
customer is in severe financial difficulty and the recovery of underlying accounts receivables is remote.
As at 31 December 2020, the factoring loan receivables were collateralised by the customers’ accounts receivables with fair value of
approximately RMB247,065,000.
WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Factoring loan receivables (Confinued)

The ageing analysis of gross factoring loan receivables, determined based on the schedule to repay of receivable since the effective dates of
relevant loan contracts, as af the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

0 to 30 days - 119,508
31 to 90 days - 43,341
91 to 365 days - 20,000
- 182,849

The following is a credit quality analysis of gross factoring loan receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment is overdue, the entire
outstanding balance of factoring loan receivables is classified as overdue.

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

Neither overdue nor creditimpaired - 48,524
Overdue but not creditimpaired

— overdue within 30 days - 13,320

— overdue within 31-90 days - 103,744

Overdue and creditimpaired (Note gii)) - 17,261

- 182,849




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Factoring loan receivables (Continued)

Movement of allowance for ECLs on factoring loan receivables are as follows:

Lifetime ECL -
not credit Lifetime ECL -
12-m ECL impaired  credit impaired Total
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 2020 - - - -
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - - 6,143 6,143
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 - - 6,143 6,143
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - - (3,519) (3,519
Bad debts written off - - (2,624) (2,624)

As at 31 December 2021 - _ _ _

The changes in loss allowance was mainly due to the reversal of loss allowance upon repayment of factoring loans and release of loss allowance
on bad debts written-off during the year.

(c) Small loan receivables
It primarily represented the micro-credit loans and guaranteed loans granted fo the customers. The loan periods granted to each of the customers is
generally ranging from 4 months to 5 years (2020: 3 months to 3 years). The effective interest rate of the small loans receivables is ranging from

6.0% to 27.7% (2020: 8.0% to 27.8%) per annum as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, small loan receivables are mainly secured by real estates with fair values of approximately RMB2,776,295,000
(2020: RMB21,767,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(c) Small loan receivables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of gross small loan receivables, determined based on the schedule fo repay of receivable since the effective dates of relevant
loan confracts, as at the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

0 to 30 days 50,534 67,520
31 to 90 days 32,583 96,305
91 to 365 days 180,794 368,614
Over 365 days 280,598 4,731
544,509 537,170

The following is a credit quality analysis of small loan receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment is overdue, the entire outstanding

balance of small loan receivables is classified as overdue.

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Neither overdue nor creditimpaired 516,301 490,335
Overdue but not creditimpaired

— overdue within 30 days 2,554 3,688

- overdue within 31 to 90 days 5,520 4,695

Overdue and creditimpaired (Note giii)) 20,134 38,452

544,509 537,170
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(c) Small loan receivables (Continued)

Movement of allowance for ECLs on small loan receivables are as follows:

Lifetime ECL -
not credit Lifetime ECL -

12-m ECL impaired  credit impaired Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 2020 2,508 8,402 32,883 43,793
Bad debts written-off (41) (168) (19,685) (19,894)
Transfer fo Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired (5606) 566 - -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL — credit impaired (296) 478) 774 -
Net re-measurement of loss allowance (1,364) (7,829) 16,998 7,805
New financial assets originated 1,028 8,032 2,935 11,995
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 1,269 8,525 33,905 43,699
Bad debts written-off - (112) (20,112) (20,224)
Transfer fo Lifetime ECL - to 12m - - - -
Transfer fo Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired (242) 242 - -
Transfer fo Lifetime ECL — credit impaired (127) 413) 540 -
Net re-measurement of loss allowance (827) (8,057) (1,255) (10,139)
New financial assets originated 1,314 1,069 5,677 8,060
As at 31 December 2021 1,387 1,254 18,755 21,396

The changes in loss allowance was mainly due to (i) release of loss allowance on bad debts written-off and {ii) significant increase in credit risk of
the small loan receivables af the reporting date under the ECL model (Note f).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, gross carrying amount of small loan receivables amounted to approximately RMB27,202,000 (2020:
RMB29,195,000) were written off as bad debts because these were overdue for 1 year or above which are still subject to enforcement activities.

The respective allowance for ECLs has been reversed and the remaining balance is charged to profit or loss directly.

(d) Other loan receivables

It represented the unsecured loans granted to the customers. The loan periods granted to each of customers is generally 1 year (2020: 1 year).
The effective interest rate of the other loan receivables is 12% (2020: 12%) per annum as at 31 December 2021.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Other loan receivables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of gross other loan receivables, determined based on the schedule fo repay of receivable since the effective dates of relevant

loan contracts, as at the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

0 to 30 days - -
31 to 90 days - -
91 to 365 days 3,266 23,478
3,266 23,478

The following is a credit quality analysis of gross other loan receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment is overdue, if any, the entire

outstanding balance of other loan receivables would be classified as overdue.

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
Neither overdue nor creditimpaired 3,266 23,478
Movement of allowance for ECLs on other loan receivables are as follows:
Lifetime ECL -
not credit  Lifefime ECL -
12-m ECL impaired  credit impaired Total
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 2020 - 3,457 - 3,457
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - 77 - 77
Exchange realignment - (205) - (205)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 - 3,329 - 3,329
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - (2,707) - (2,707)
Exchange realignment - (58) - (58)
As at 31 December 2021 - 564 - 564

The changes in the loss allowance was mainly due to release of loss allowance on repayment of other loans during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) Account receivables

Balances comprise receivables in respect of securities dealing and broking services and financial advisory and post loan facilitation services,

represented as follows:

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Account receivables from securities dealing and broking services: (i)
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("HKSCC”) 2,628 1,945
— Cash clients - 303
- Margin clients 3,276 7,963
5,904 10,211
Account receivables from financial advisory and post loan facilitation services (ii) 1,304 1,607
7,208 11,818

Notes:

(i

Account receivables from cash clients and securities clearing houses arising from securities dealing business are repayable on demand
subsequent fo the setilement date. The normal settlement terms of said account receivables are, in general, two days after frade date. The
Group allows a credit period mutually agreed with the contracting parties for account receivables from margin clients.

No ageing analysis by invoice date is disclosed for account receivables from securities dealing business as, in the opinion of the directors

of the Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature.

Account receivables of securities margin clients are secured by the clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately
RMB59,608,000 (2020: RMB64,923,000) as at 31 December 2021. All of the pledged securities are equity and debt securities listed
in Hong Kong and overseas. The account receivables of securities margin clients are repayable on demand subsequent to setflement
date and carrying interest typically ranged from 6% to 12% and Hong Kong Prime rafe fo Hong Kong Prime rate +7% (2020: Same) per
annum as at 31 December 2021. Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their margin values. Additional funds
or collaterals are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value of securities deposited. The collateral held can be

repledged and can be sold at the Group's discrefion fo setile any outstanding amount owned by the margin clients.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(e) Account receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Balances comprise receivables in respect of financial advisory and post loan facilitation services. No element of financing is deemed

present as the services are made with a credit period of not more than one week after revenue recognifion.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The ageing analysis of gross account receivables from financial advisory and post loan facilitation services, determined based on the

schedule to repay of receivable since the effective dates of relevant contracts, as af the end of the reporting period, is as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

0O to 30 days 1,304 1,139
31 to 90 days - -
Q1 10 365 days - 468
1,304 1,607

The following is a credit quality analysis of gross account receivables from financial advisory and post loan facilitation services. In the

event that an instalment repayment is overdue, the entire outstanding balance of account receivables is classified as overdue.

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Neither overdue nor creditimpaired - 468
Overdue but not creditimpaired

— overdue within 30 days 10 104

— overdue within 31-90 days 21 72

Overdue and creditimpaired 1,273 Q63

1,304 1,607




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) Account receivables (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(i) Movement of allowance for ECLs on account receivables are as follows:
Lifetime ECL -
not credit  Lifefime ECL -
12-m ECL impaired  credit impaired Total
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 2020 1 361 2,172 2,534
Bad debt written off - - (89) (89)
Transfer to Lifetime ECL - credit impaired - (360) 360 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (M 1) 2,500 2,498
New financial assefs originated - - 324 324
Exchange realignment - - (232) (232)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 - - 5,035 5,035
Bad debt written off - - (4,480) (4,480)
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - - 554 554
New financial assets originated - - 223 223
Exchange realignment - - (58) (58)
As at 31 December 2021 - - 1,274 1,274
During the year ended 31 December 2021, gross carrying amount of account receivables amounted to approximately RMB4,480,000 (2020:
RMB89,000] were written off as bad debts because these were either overdue for 1 year or above which are still subject fo enforcement
activities. The respective allowance for ECLs has been reversed.
The allowance for ECLs is considered as adequately provided for as the directors of the Company have individually evaluated their account
receivables affer taking into account the LTV for each borrower, and other information available of those borrowers in default of setilement to
determine the net present value of expected future cash inflow.
{f) ECL Model
Simplified approach is applied to measure the lifetime ECL for certain loan and account receivables (lease receivables under HKFRS 16 and loan
receivables which are short ferm in duration (i.e. less than one year) and account receivables (except for account receivable from margin clients))
and the remaining loan and account receivables are measured on 12-m ECL basis unless there had been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. The estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the year in assessing the loss allowance for the loan and
account receivable are set forth in Note 39(b).
The Group has recognised allowance for ECLs during the reporting period which indicated that these receivables may not be fully recoverable
because of risks associated with the customers and the industries, in which the customers operate.
WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9) Creditimpaired loan and account receivables

Gross carrying Allowance Net carrying Value of
amount for ECLs amount collaterals
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

As at 31 December 2021
Financial leasing receivables (i) 26,374 (15,382) 10,992 40,800
Small loans receivables (iii) 20,134 (18,755) 1,379 50,327
Account receivables 1,274 (1,274) - -
47,782 (35,411) 12,371 91,127

As at 31 December 2020
Financial leasing receivables (i) 428,518 (195,282) 233,236 575,461
Factoring loan receivables (i) 17,261 (6,143) 11,118 43,390
Small loans receivables (iii) 38,452 (33,905) 4,547 11,358
Account receivables 5,035 (5,035) - -
489,266 (240,365) 248,901 630,209

Notes:

(i) Balance as at 31 December 2021 represents financial leasing receivables that overdue for over 90 days and above since maturity
date of the contact. The Group has been actively negotiating with the debtors to demand payment and might enter in to negotiation for
rescheduling the repayment terms. Only if the customers reluctant to negotiate and no further payments for over 6 months to 9 months, the
Group will consider to take legal actions against the customers.

Balance as at 31 December 2020 mainly represented financial leasing receivables from Grand China Air Co., lid* [(KETEMZEBR A
Al) (the "Customer”) which were secured by airplane engines. The Cusfomer had been defaulted in payments and the repayment pattern
during the year ended 31 December 2020 has not been improving, thus resulted in breach of covenants according to the contracts and
become credit impaired at the end of 31 December 2020.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 1 February 2021, the Group had become aware that an application regarding
the Customer, together with its subsidiaries in the PRC had been filed to and accepted by the Hainan Higher People’s Court* (BF&
BARAERIEBE) for debt restructuring and reorganisation (the “Debt Structuring and Reorganisation”) by its debtors. The Customer was a
private airline operator based in Hainan Province, the PRC, which was the largest shareholder of a Hainan airline operator listed on The
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In light of the Debt Restructuring and Reorganisation, the board of directors of the Company was of the view that the Debt Restructuring
and Reorganisation was likely to have significant impact on the Group's business and financial condition, after taking into consideration of
(i) the latest advice from the Group's external legal advisers on the probability and time taken of recovering the respective loan receivables
and [ii) the recoverable amount of the underlying collaterals assessed by an independent valuer based on the above situation.

In the opinion of the directors, the process of enforcement proceeding against the Customer had been complicated by (1) the high
numbers of debtors of the Customer and the subsidiaries under the Cusfomer involved; and (2] the underlying collaterals are not standalone
items that can generate revenue without the aircraft which increased the difficulties for the Group to recover the collaterals. Moreover,
under the Debt Restructuring and Reorganisation, it was unlikely for the Group to obtain access the collaterals for the sale process without
the permission of the administrator. Given the niche market and the significant downturn of aviation industry resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic worldwide in 2020, the demand for the collaterals would be much less, and so the estimated recoverable amount would be

far below the outstanding principal amount of the loan receivables.

* For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

21.LOAN AND ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9)

Creditimpaired loan and account receivables

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

(i)

(Continued)

With increasing uncertainties in possible outcomes and the likely impact on the financial position and liquidity of the Group, the
management of the Company was actively taking appropriate actions o minimise the financial impact fo the Group.

On 16 March 2021, the Group enfered into arrangements with an independent third party (the “Assignee”), to sell and assign the rights,
ancillary rights, titles and benefits of two financial leasing receivables (the “Creditor’s Rights”), which at an aggregate cash consideration
of RMB131,000,000, representing the discount of approximately 39.2% of the amount outstanding as at 31 December 2020. Such
consideration was defermined based after arm’s length negotiation with the Assignees with reference to the valuation of the Credifor's
Rights conducted by the independent valuer engaged by the Group which had been taking into consideration {i) likelihood weighting of
different scenarios to realise rights to the relevant financial leasing receivables info cash, [ii] recoverable amount of the financial leasing

receivables and (i) recoverable amount of the underlying collaterals. The Assignee was principally engaged in investment holding.

Under the assignment’s agreement, the Group was not required to reimburse the Assignees for any loss incurred resulting from the
default in payment by the Customer. The assignment of the two financial leasing receivables with aggregate outstanding balances of
approximately RMB215,548,000 as at 31 December 2020 were completed on 16 March 2021, and the cash consideration was fully
sefled by Assignees on 19 March 2021.

On 9 April 2021, the Group entered info factoring agreement with another independent factoring company in relation fo the
remaining financial lease receivables from the Customer with the outstanding balances of approximately RMB197,636,000. Under the
arrangement, the Group transferred the Creditor's Rights in the financial leasing receivables to the factoring company without recourse af
a cash consideration of RMB99,000,000, which was fully setfled on the same day.

Details of the assignment of Creditor's Rights are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 16 March 2021 and 29 March 2021
and 9 April 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the total allowance for ECLs provided for the Customer amounted to approximately RMB183,184,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the financial leasing receivables from the Customer are derecognised upon the Group
fransferred substantially all risks and rewards associated. In addition fo the consideration above, the Group has received additional
compensation of approximately RMB3,004,000 from the Customer, the allowance for ECLs of approximately RMB180, 180,000 was
written off as bad debts accordingly.

Balance represents factoring loan receivables that overdue for over 90 days and above since maturity date of the contact. The Group has
been actively negotiating with the debtors to demand payment and might enter in to negotiation for rescheduling the repayment terms.
Only if the customers reluctant to negotiate and no further payments for over & months to @ months, the Group will consider fo take legal

actions against the cusfomers.

Balance mainly represents small loan receivables with portion overdue for over 90 days and above. The Group has been taking proactive
measures to communicate with such defaulting customers in a timely manner and in the case of failure the Group may initiate legal

proceedings to demand payments.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED

6



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

22, AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due were non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The maximum
outstanding amounts due from a related party were shown as follow:

Maximum
amount
outstanding
Name of related parties during the year 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Amount due from:
FYIELMEEEBR AR 4 - 4
Amounts due to:
Directors (381) -
FUELFHEFR AT (260) (220)
(641) (220)
Mr. 1o's sibling, Mr. Lu, is the ultimate controlling party of the above related companies.
23.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
Bank balances and cash (Note i) 100,200 118,633
Less: Clients” monies in segregated account (Note i) (16,525) (22,462)
Cash and cash equivalents 83,675 96,171

Notes:

(i) Cash at banks earns interest af floafing rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with

no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB amounting to approximately RMB66,971,000 (2020:
RMB78,243,000) and were kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible info other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is

subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

(ii) From the Group's ordinary business in provision of securities dealing services, the Group receives and holds money deposited by the clients in the
course of the conduct of the regulated activities. These clients’ monies are maintained in segregated bank accounts at market inferest rates. The
Group has recognised the corresponding accounts payables (Note 24) to respective clients and other institutions on the grounds that it is liable for
any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group is only allowed to retain some or all of the inferest derived from the clients” monies but

not allowed fo use the clients’ monies to seftle its own obligations. The Group does not have a currently enforceable right fo offset these payables

with the deposits place.

The cash held on behalf of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance ("HKSFO”). However, the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset those payables with the deposi

placed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. ACCOUNT PAYABLES

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

HKSCC 1 246
Cash clients 5,448 3,391
Margin clients 10,959 20,935
16,408 24,572

Account payables arising from securities dealing business are inferestree and repayable on the setlement day of the
relevant trades (Note 23(ii)).

The normal sefflement terms of account payables o cash clients and securities clearing house are two days after trade
date.

Account payables to HKSCC, margin clients and cash clients are repayable on demand after sefflement date. No
ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of this business.

25.DEPOSITS FROM FINANCIAL LEASING CUSTOMERS

Customers’ deposits are collected and calculated based on a certain percentage of the entire value of lease confract.
The deposits are retumed to the customers in portion over the lease period or in full by end of lease period according fo
the ferms of lease confracts. VWhen the lease contract expires, the lessor must return the full lease deposits to the lessee.
The balance of the customers’ deposits can also be applied and used to seftle any outstanding lease payments for
the corresponding lease contract. There was no unguaranteed residual value of leased assets and no confingent rent
arrangement that need fo be recognised in all years.

WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Accruals (Note) 29,077 25,102
Other payables 2,635 7,636
Other tax payables 992 538
32,704 33,276

Note: Balance at 31 December 2021 includes provisions for social insurance and housing provident fund provided in accordance with the Social
Insurance Law and Regulations on the Management of Housing Provident Fund of the PRC amounting to approximately RMB1 1,145,000 (2020:
RMB10,063,000). The balance also includes interest payable of promissory note of approximately RMB 10,468,000 (2020: RMB7,153,000)

(Note 28).

27.BANK BORROWINGS

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000

Bank borrowings — secured*
Within one year 99,202 420,340
More than one year, but not exceeding two years - 77 405
More than two years, but not exceeding five years - 7,331
99,202 505,076
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities (99,202) (420,340
Amount shown under non-current liabilities - 84,736

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

As af 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings were variable-rate borrowings which carried annual interests
ranging from 105% to 110% (2020: 105% to 110%) of the benchmark rate offered by the People’s Bank of China.
As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rates of the Group’s secured bank borrowings were 7.86% (2020:
ranging from 5.0% to 8.3%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

27.BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, one bank borrowing amounting to approximately RMB140,815,000 which were secured
by charges over cerfain equity inferests in the Company held by Wealthy Rise and certain leased assets. In March
2021, the Group has received an early repayment demand note notice in relation to this bank borrowing. Meanwhile,
the Group has entered into arrangements with certain banks in respect of early repayment of bank borrowings secured
by certain leased assets with aggregate principal amount of approximately RMB220,800,000. The respective
financial leasing receivables were assigned to the Assignee as disclosed in Note 21(g|(i] fo the consolidated financial
statements. The aforementioned bank borrowings were fully repaid in March 2021, and the charges over certain equity
inferests in the Company was released on 16 April 2021 accordingly.

In April 2021, upon the completion of fransaction under the factoring agreement (Note 21(g|(i)), the Group has also
entered info the arangement with bank in respect of early repayment of bank borrowings secured by certain leased assets
with principal amount of approximately RMB191,057,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings amounting to approximately RMB99,202,000 (2020:
RMB@2,800,000) were secured by charges over one property with fair value of approximately RMB82,245,000
[2020: approximately RMB24,590,000) (which is jointly owned by Mr. Lo and his wife) and one property with fair
value of approximately RMB24,590,000 (2020: RMB35,100,000) (which is owned by Mr. Lu Qing Ming, nephew
of Mr. lo) and jointly guaranteed by a related company, which Mr. Lu, Mr. Lo's sibling is the controlling party and Mr.
Lu, with an aggregate amount up to RMB100,000,000 (2020: RMB150,000,000]. One property with fair value
of approximately RMB8,980,000 (which is owned by Mr. Wang Jiansen, a director of a related company) as af 31
December 2020 was released from charges upon the maturity dafe of relevant borrowing during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, all of the Group's bank borrowings were secured by charges over certain leased assefs
and financial leasing receivables except for the above.

Subsequent to the year ended, the Group has obtained the one-year bank borrowing of approximately
RMB100,000,000 carried an interest rate of 7.8% per annum.

The Group has repaid the bank borrowings of approximately RMB99,202,000 upon maturity in March 2022.
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28.PROMISSORY NOTE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

As at 1 January 72,050 66,922
Effective interest expense charged for the year (Note 8) 9,058 8,442
Inferest payable included in accruals (Note 26) (3,315) (3,314)
As at 31 December 77,793 72,050

To seffle part of the consideration relating to the acquisition of 55% equity inferests of Shenzhen Haosen in December
2018, the Group issued a promissory nofe with face value of RMB109,690,000 which is unsecured, carries interest
of 3.5% per annum and matures in a 6O-month term in favour of the Vendor (or its nominee). Under the ferms of the
promissory note, the Company may redeem all or part of the outstanding principal amount of the promissory note af
any fime between the issue date and the day prior to the maturity date.

Upon settlement of principal amount of the promissory note during 31 December 2019, which amounted to
RMB15,000,000, the face value of the promissory nofe has reduced to RMB94,690,000.

The promissory note is separafed into their two components at initial recognition: the liability component and the
derivative component. In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the derivative component is
insignificant and hence the derivative component is not separately accounted for.

On inifial recognition, the fair value was determined by Roma by using discounted cash flow method which based
on the present value of the confractual stream of future cash flows discounted af the discount rafe, taking info account
(i) inferest rafe determined with reference fo the yields of China 5-year government bonds and treasury bills; (ii] credit
spread determined with reference to the premium compensated from the market comparables with the same credit
rating as the Company; and {iii) country risk defermined with reference to the default spread of the PRC.

After initial recognition, the promissory note is measured af amortised cost with the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate of the promissory nofes was 12.08% (2020: 12.08%) per annum.
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29.BOND PAYABLE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
As at 1 January 33,681 17,879
Issuance of bond - 17,787
Effective interest expense charged for the year (Note 8) 2,173 2,814
Inferest payable included in accruals (Note 26) (1,886) (1,538)
Inferest paid during the year (112) (1,189)
Gain on early redemption of bond (Note 7) (175) -
Principal amount redeem (16,603) -
Exchange realignment (777) (2,072)
As at 31 December 16,301 33,681

On 29 July 2019, the Company issued 8% coupon bond of a principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to an
independent third party. The inferests are paid in arrears on quarterly basis and the bond would be matured in 2 years
on 28 July 2021. The bond was secured by the personal guarantee from Mr. Lo, the controlling party of the Company.
The whole principal amount is repayable at the date of its maturity. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company early redeemed a principal amount of approximately HK$ 18,000,000 from the bondholders, the gain
on such early redemption is recognised in consolidated profit or loss [Note 7). The Company repaid the remaining

principal amount of HK$2,000,000 at the maturity date.

On 10 January 2020, the Company issued 8% coupon bond of a principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to an
independent third party. The inferests are paid in arrears on quarterly basis and the bond will be matured in 2 years on
9 January 2022. The bond was secured by the personal guarantee from Mr. Lo, the controlling party of the Company.
The whole principal amount is redeemed af the date of maturity.

Either the bondholders or the Company may, at any time after one year of the issuance date of the bond and before
the maturity date, request early redemption of all or part of the outstanding principal amount together with payments of
inferest accrued up to the date of such early redemption by serving a prior nofice of nof less than one month.

The bonds comprised three components at inifial recognition: the liability component and two embedded derivatives
[early redemption options held by the Company and the bondholder respectively). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair values of the derivative components are closely related fo the host confract and hence the derivative
components are not separately accounted for.

The fair value at the respective date of issuance [i.e. 29 July 2019 and 10 January 2020) is defermined based
on discounted cash flow method at the effective interest rate of 8.0% (2020: 8.0%) per annum. The bonds are

subsequently measured at amortised cost with the effective interest method.

The carrying amount of the bonds are denominated in HK$.
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Allowance for Contract
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) ECLs Tax loss costs Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January 2020 20,725 - (485) 20,240
Credited fo profit or loss (Note 11) 41,972 - 419 42,391
Exchange realignment 72) - - (72)
As at 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021 62,625 - (66) 62,559
Credited to profit or loss (Note 11) (52,474) 42,308 66 (10,100)
Exchange realignment (19) - - (19)
As at 31 December 2021 10,132 42,308 - 52,440

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately RMB 10,208,000 (2020:
RMB5,337,000) available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies which incurred these losses.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses arising from Hong Kong do not have expiry. Based on the business plan of the Group, it is
expected that the subsidiary will generate future profits which can be utilised to offset against the future taxable profifs,
deferred tax assefs in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB42,308,000 is provided.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax of 10% is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits eamed by the
subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to the refained profits of the subsidiaries
in the PRC amounting to approximately RMB108,893,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB101,336,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the femporary differences and the directors of the Company
considered that the subsidiaries in the PRC will not distribute any dividend in the foreseeable future.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, dividend amounted to RMB133,000,000 has been declared by one
of the PRC subsidiary fo its holding company which is one of the indirectly wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in
Hong Kong. Pursuant to “<Notice on the issue that foreign investors’ direct investment through distribution of profits will
be tentatively exempt from China withholding tax> Caishui 2017 88" ("Circular 88”), jointly released by Minisiry of
Finance, State Administration of Taxation, Nafional Development and Reform Commission and Ministry of Commerce
on 28 December 2017, has provided foreign investors with a withholding tax deferral incentive for profit reinvestments
in China. The Group has reinvested the dividend into a PRC subsidiary [Note 43(a)) which qualified for the tax deferral
concession and has completed the tax filing procedure for not to withhold relevant withholding tax tentatively. The tax
would be payable within 7 days if the foreign investor withdraws the direct investments that previously enjoyed the tax
deferral benefit through Circular 88. The directors of the Company considered that the possibility of such withdrawal
will be remote and thus no deferred tax liability being provided on the fax deferral concession.
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31.SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
HK$'000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 of each
Authorised:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and
31 December 2021 20,000,000,000 200,000
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
RMB'000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 December 2020, 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 155,523,000 1,349
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (Note 41) 1,060,000 Q
At 31 December 2021 156,583,000 1,358

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 1,060,000 share options were exercised at the exercise price of
HK$6.12 (equivalent to RMB5.44) per share. The total cash consideration received from the issuance 1,060,000
shares was approximately RMBS,766,000, of which approximately RMB?,000 was credited fo issued share capital
and the remaining balance of approximately RMB5,757,000 was credited to the share premium account. In addition,
amount affributable to the related share options of RMB487,000 has been transferred from share option reserve fo the

share premium account.

All the shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2021 rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all

respecfs.
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32.RESERVES

Defails of the movements on the Group's reserves are as set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i) Share premium

Share premium account of the Group represents the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company's shares issued.

(ii) Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve represents the portion of grant date fair value of unexercised share options of the
Company.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

(iv) Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between issued share capital of the Company issued during the
reorganisation completed for the Listing of the Company, and the aggregate value of the respective share
capital/paid-in capital of the companies now comprising the Group and the amount of advances from ulimate
holding company capitalised. It also represents deemed capital contribution from equity parficipants arising from
acquisitions of entities which were under the control of Mr. Lo.

As disclosed in Note 18(a), upon the complefion of acquisition of remaining 45% equity interests in Shenzhen
Haosen, the difference between the consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of Shenzhen Haosen amounting to approximately RMB3,652,000, is recorded in "Other reserve”.

(v) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses), as determined
under the China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant regulations issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC ["MOF"), to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve fund
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. Subject to the approval of equity shareholders of the Company,
statutory surplus reserve may be used to net off against accumulated losses, if any, and may be converted info
capital, provided the remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve is not less than 25% of registered capital.

(vi) Financial asset at FVOCI reserve

The financial asset at FVOCI reserve (non-recycling) comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designated af FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held af the end of the reporting period.
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33. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 32
Rightof-use assets 1,333 2,248
Investments in subsidiaries (a) 460,712 490,613
462,058 492,893
Current assets
Prepayments and deposits 404 265
Bank balances and cash 852 1,503
1,256 1,768
Current liabilities
Accruals 3,617 2,554
Lease liabilities 859 834
Dividend payable 818 846
Bond payable 29 16,301 33,681
Amounts due to subsidiaries (b) 14,355 14,808
35,950 52,723
Net current liabilities (34,694) (50,955)
Total assets less current liabilities 427,364 441,938
Non-current liability
Lease liabilities 526 1,431
Net assets 426,838 440,507
EQUITY
Share capital 31 1,358 1,349
Reserves (c) 425,480 439,158
Total equity 426,838 440,507

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and
were signed on ifs behalf by:

Lo Wai Ho Xie Weiquan

Executive Director Executive Director
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33 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
Unlisted equity investments (Nofe 43(al) 460,712 490,613
(b) The balances were unsecured, interest free and had o fixed terms of repayment.
(c) Reserves
Proposed Share-based
final Share payment  Exchange Other  Accumulated
dividend premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Note)
RMB'OOO0  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'O0OO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
At T January 2020 6,952 227,853 1,871 [3,486) 269,295 (47,096 455,389
Comprehensive expense:
Loss for the year - - - - - (15,200)  (15,290)
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising
on franslation of funcfional
currency - - - 568 - - 568
- - - 568 - (15290)  (14,722)
Transacfions with the equity
holders of the Company:
Equity setiled share-based
Transactions (Note 41) - - 5,443 - - - 5,443
Share options lapsed
(Note 41] - - (1,178 - - 1,178 -
- - 4265 - - 78 5443
Final dividend [Note 12] [6,952) - - - - - (6,952)
At 31 December 2020 - 227,853 6,136 [2,918) 269,295 (61,208) 439,158
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33. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

Proposed Share-based
final Share  payment  Exchange Other Accumulated
dividend  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Note)
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
At 1 January 2021 - 227,853 6,136 (2918 269,295 (61,208) 439,158
Comprehensive expense:
Profit for the year - - - - - (19,791) (19,791)
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising
on translation of funciondl
currency - - - 194 - - 194
- - - 194 - (19,791) (19,597)
Transactions with the equity
holders of the Company:
Equity seffled share options
payment (Note 41) - - 162 - - - 162
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share option [Note 31] - 6,244 (487) - - - 5,757
Share options lapsed
[Note 41) - - (1,099) - - 1,099 -
- 6,244 (1,424) - - 1,099 5919
Proposed final dividend
[Note 12) 3,829 (3,829) - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 3,829 230,268 4,712 (2,724) 269,295 (79,900) 425,480

Note: Other reserve represents the difference between (i) the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired and (i) the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant fo the initial listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange or the cash
consideration paid.
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34. COMMITMENT

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no capital commitments contracted but not provided for (2020:
RMB77,000,000).

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 23 July 2020 and 15 August 2020, the Group entered info sales and purchase agreements with a connected
party, a company which Mr. Lu is the controlling shareholder, and independent third parties to acquire the entire equity
interest in Shenzhen Haosen Technology Operations limited "Shenzhen Haosen Tech”) and Shenzhen Yuli Cultural
Company Llimited (“Shenzhen Yuli"] at an aggregate total cash consideration of RMB100,000,000, which have
been settled in full. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 43(a). According to the acquisition
agreements, no existing business was fransferred to the Group but only certain financial assefs. The management of the
Compoany considers that such acquisitions will enable the Group to facilitate its proposed plan on group resfructuring
affer further acquisition of Shenzhen Haosen (Note 18). Such acquisitions have been accounted for acquisitions of assets.

The assets acquired comprised of other receivables with aggregate amount of approximately RMB96,500,000
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB3,500,000. Such acquisition resulted in net cash oufflow of
approximately RMB6,500,000.

The fair value of the acquired other receivables was approximately to ifs carrying value as the directors of the Company
consider that the other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity periods on their inception. These other receivables were
fully setiled during the year subsequent to the acquisitions.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following fransactions with
related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

2021 2020

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Interest on lease liabilities paid to a related company (i), (i) 127 138
Payment of lease liabilities in relation to leases with a related

company (i), (i) 775 775

Building management fee, tilities and repair and maintenance

to a related company (i) 397 596
Hospitality expense for functions in the hotel paid to a related

party (i) 152 121

Notes:

(i) Mr. Lo's sibling, Mr. Lu, is the ultimate controlling party of the related companies.

(ii) The Group entered certain lease in respect of properies from a related party to the Group. The amount of rental payable by the Group
under the leases are approximately RMB64,600 (2020: RMBS4,600) per month and the lease terms will be expired on 3 1o 4 years.

Details of the Group's lease liabilities due to a related company are included in Note 15(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions listed above between the Group and the
aoforementioned related parties were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business.

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders” approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons holding positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and confrolling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including the members of the board of

directors and senior management of the Company. Key management personnel remuneration are as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’'000

Directors’ fees 1,336 1,655
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,552 2,745
Refirement benefit scheme contributions 293 251
Equitysetiled share-based payment 41 180
3,222 4,831

37.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had given a corporate guarantee fo the extent of approximately RMB174,000
fo an independent third party in respect of the credit enhancement services provided to the customers of loan facilitation
services. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no material liabilities will arise from the above corporate
guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of business and fair value of the corporate guarantee granted by the
Group is immaterial.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has negotiated with the independent third party to terminate
the credit enhancement services and received the refund of security deposit (Note 20(b)), and the corporate guarantee
given by the Group was cancelled accordingly.
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as af the end of each reporting period are as

follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
Financial assets
At amortised costs
Loan and account receivables 594,665 1,006,543
Deposits for further acquisition of interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary
and acquisition of interest in a company - 133,000
Deposits and other receivables 695 2,624
Other assefs 387 400
Amount due from related party - 4
Cash and cash equivalents 100,200 118,633
At FVOCI
Equity investment 38,085 33,196
734,032 | 1,294,400
Financial liabilities
At amortised costs
Account payables 16,408 24,572
Deposits from financial leasing customers 7,314 7717
Amounts due fo related parties 641 220
Accruals and other payables 17,884 19,382
Lease liabilities 3,192 5,312
Dividend payable 818 12,927
Bank borrowings 99,202 505,076
Promissory note 77,793 72,050
Bond payable 16,301 33,681
239,553 680,937
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments in the normal course of the Group's business are inferest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group's short to medium ferm cash
flows by minimising its exposure fo financial markets. long term financial investiments are managed to generate lasting
refurns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group's policy fo actively engage in the trading of financial instruments for speculafive purposes. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(a) Inferest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed fo cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
financial leasing receivables, bank balances, bank borrowings (see Notes 21(a), 23 and 27 for details of these
financial instruments respectively). The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on the cash flow risks.

The Group is also exposed fo fair value inferest rate risk in relation 1o fixed-rate financial leasing receivables and
factoring, small and other loans receivables, promissory nofe and bond payable (see Notes 21(a) to (d), 28 and
29 for details of these financial instruments). The Group does not have a fair value interest rafe hedging policy.

Management monitors the related interest exposure closely fo ensure the interest rafe risks are maintained af an
acceptable level. The level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be underiaken is monitored closely.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure fo interest rates for variable-rate
financial leasing receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis was defermined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
each reporting period and had been opplied to variable-rate financial instruments at that date. 100 basis points
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates of
financial leasing receivables and bank borrowings over the period unfil the end of next reporting period.

The following tables indicates the approximate change in the profit/(loss) affer income tax in response to
reasonably possible changes in interest rafes to which the Group has exposure at the end of each reporting
period.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity ona|ysis (Continued)

[ij  If the benchmark interest rates of the variable rate financial leasing receivables at the end of each reporting

period had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variable were held constant, the potential

effect on the Group's profit/(loss) after income tax are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
+1% -1% +1% -1%
Increase/ (decrease) in profit for the year
and retained profits/decrease/ (increase)
in (loss) for the year and accumulated loss 18 (18) 3,322 (3,322)

i)  If inferest rates of bank balances af the end of each reporting period had been 100% basis points higher/

lower and all other variable were held constant, the potential effect on the Group’s profit/(loss) after

income tax are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
+1% -1% +1% -1%
Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year
and retained profits/decrease/ (increase)
in (loss) for the year and accumulated loss 538 (538) 331 (331)

(i) If the benchmark interest rates of the variable rate bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period had

been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variable were held constant, the potential effect on the

Group's profit/(loss) after income tax are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
+1% -1% +1% -1%
(Decreasel/increase in profit for the year
and retained profits/(increase)/decrease
in (loss) for the year and accumulated loss (744) 744 (2,355) 2,355
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credif risk refers fo the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its confractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as counterparty default
risk and sector risk for risk management purposes.

The Group's maximum exposure fo credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
at the end of each reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed fo credit risk in relation to ifs (i) loan and account receivables; (ii] deposits and other
receivables; (iii) amount due from related party; and (iv) cash and cash equivalents.

The Group implemented standardised management procedures over the processes of target customers’ selection,
the due diligence and application, credit review and approval, determination of credit limits, monitoring and
management of non-performing receivables and other aspects. Through implementation of relevant credit risk
management policies and procedures, the optimisation of the portfolio of receivables, the Group is able to fimely
and effectively identify, monitor and manage its potential credit risks.

Changes in the economic environment will have an impact on the Group's receivables, and the adverse effects
will increase the possibility of losses incurred by the Group. The business development, risk management
department in charge of different industries are responsible for the management of credit risks, and periodically
report on the quality of assefs fo the management of the Company.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is primarily affributable to loan and account receivables. As at 31
December 2021, 3.2% (2020: 32.8%) and 14.8% (2020: 46.6%) of the total loan and account receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively. The directors of the
Company consider the credit risk from this concentration was not significant as these counterparties were sizable
companies with sound financial position and all their outstanding balances were secured by the leased asses.
The Group has endeavoured to develop new customers to diversify and strengthen the cusfomers base to
reduce the concentration of credit risk. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has closely monitored the
recoverability of the advances fo these counterparties, including ensuring that adequate collateral is received from
these counterparties and taken effective measures 1o ensure timely collection of outstanding balances.

For deposits and other receivables, in order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Company closely
monitor the follow-up action faken to recover any receivable balances outstanding over 180 days. In addition,
the Group monitors subsequent sefflement of each of the receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irecoverable amounts.

In addition, the Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 12-m
ECL, since there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition for the deposits and
other receivables. The credit risk on deposits and other receivables have not increased significantly since initial
recognition as each of the counterparties have no hisfory of default and possess strong capability to meet
contractual cash flows.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as the counterparties are mainly banks with high creditratings assigned

by inferational creditrating agencies.

The Group’s main income generating activity is supply the financing services to customers and therefore credit risk

is a principal risk. The Group considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as counterparty default risk and

sector risk for risk management purpose.

(i)

Credit risk management
Other specific management and mitigation measures include:

Loan and account receivables other than account receivables from securities dealing and broking business
The Group manages, limits, and controls the concentration of credit risk and, as far as possible, avoid risks
concenfration on single customer and industry.

The Group also manages customer limits o optimise the credit risk structure. The Group performs pre-
project analysis of the customers’ ability to repay principal and interest, real time supervision of the actual
repayment status throughout the project period to manage the credit risk.

In addition, the Group has developed a series of policies to mitigate credit risk, including obtaining
collateral, pledge, security deposit and guarantee from an enterprise or individual. As af 31 December
2021, 96.4% (2020: 84.0%) of the loan receivables are backed by collaterals and/or guarantee.

In general, the Group grants loans of not more than 70% LTV, and where it is a subordinated property
mortgage, an aggregated lending (the Group's loan aggregated with all prior morigage loans) of not more
than 70% LTV. Approval from a director of the subsidiary of the Company, a credit manager and a credit
officer is needed for loans granted with a LTV exceeds 70%. For the fair value of the collaterals at the grant
date, the Group will make reference to the valuation carried out by an independent third party valuer and/
or the internet valuation services conducted internally.

In the event of default by customers, the Group might sell the collaterals, hence the management of the
Group monitors the market value of collaterals to ensure the market values of collaterals at the end of
reporting period are sufficient fo cover the respective outstanding loan receivables from cusfomers.

According fo the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group as the legal beneficial owner of the assets
under finance lease, after considering legal opinion from PRC lawyer engaged by the Group, has the legal
fifle over the assets. Therefore, the laws protect the Group's effective right so that in the event of defaul,
the Group is entitled fo retrieve the asset. In respect of loan arrangements other than finance lease, the
Group normally requests a third party guarantee or collateral from certain customers, depending on the
customers’ credit status and credit risk degree. The management evaluates the capability of the guarantor,
the ownership and value of the mortgage or pledge and the feasibility to realise the morigage or pledge.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk management (Continued)

Loan and account receivables other than account receivables from securities dealing and broking business
(Continued)

In this regard, the management of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group may fake possession of assets held or guarantee received through legal proceeding or
voluntary delivery of possession by the customers. It disposes the collaterals by auction once receiving the
possession.

The Group might also factor the loans receivables fo independent third parties without recourse whenever
the factoring is an appropriafe action fo ensure the loan receivables can be recovered in a way that create
less negative impact to the Group. The Group as well may enforce the rights to take cerfain actions to
further mitigate the risks through demand for outstanding payments from the guarantor, if any or proceed to
take legal action or enter in arbitration against the customers if there is no indication of repayment or any
improvements in repayment pattern.

Account receivables from securities dealing and broking business

The credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and clients' frade sefilement. VWhen the market goes downside,
the possibility of bad and doubtful debts will arise. The margin clients may be unable or unwilling to
seftle the sum owed. As such, credit assessment and continuous management of credit exposures are
indispensable. The Group has established the credit policies and procedures setting out in details the
structure of the credit risk management, the credit approval and monitoring mechanism, and the issue for
overdue debfs. Meanwhile, the management has overseen the Group's overall credit risk exposure arisen
from margin clients.

The account receivables from margin clients are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are equity and
debt securities listed in Hong Kong and overseas. Margin calls are made when the traders of margin clients
exceed their credit limits or a shortfall existed after taking into the account the securities collateral. Any such
excess is required fo be made good within the next trading day. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in the liquidation of the clients’ positions. The Group seeks to maintain sfrict control over its outstanding
receivables.

Moreover, the Group closely evaluates the margin clients’ credit rating, financial background and
repayment abilities. The assessment is based on a closely monitoring and evaluation of the collectability
of individual account and on management's judgement from different aspects including the current credit
worthiness of the margin clients and the past collection history of each individual margin client.

In this regard, the management of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of ECLs

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to impairment requirements fo assess there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-m ECL.

As at the end of reporting period, the Group considers the past default experience of the debtors, general
economic condifions of the indusiry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast directions of conditions as the reporting date, the Group has transferred the 12-m ECL
of loan and account receivables into lifetime ECL when there was significant increase in credit risk.

Internal credit risk ratings

In order fo minimise credit risk, the Group monitors the credit risk exposure individually for certain financial
assefs with significant balances. Moreover, the Group has tasked its risk management department to
develop and maintain the Group's credit risk grading to cafegorise exposures according fo their degree of
risk of default. The credit rafing information is based on a range of data that is defermined to be predictive
of the risk of the risk of default and applying experienced credit judgement. The nature of the exposure and
type of customers are taken into account in the analysis. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative
and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default.

The credit risk grades are designed and calibrated to reflect the risk of default as credit risk deferiorates.
When the credit risk increases, the credit grades may be changed and result in the increase of the risk of
default. Each counterparty is categorised to a credit risk grade at inifial recognition, based on the available
information about the counterparty. All exposures are monitored and the credit risk grade is updated to
reflect the latest information.

The Group uses credit risk grades to defermine whether there has been significant increase in credit risk.
The Group gathers performance and default information about the customers’ credit risk exposures, with
reference fo the type of assets under the financing arrangement.

For loan and account receivables other than account receivables from securities dealing and broking
business, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when confractual payments are more than 30 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

For account receivables from securities dealing and broking business, the Group considers there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin call requirement or there is a
significant deterioration in LTV or other quantitative and qualitative information and analysis.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Internal credit risk ratings (Continued)

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make sure that the criteria used fo identify significant
increase in credif risk are effective. The Group performs periodic back-festing of its rafing to consider the
drivers of credit risk that led to default were accurately reflected in the rating in a timely manner.

The Group uses forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase in credit risk as well as in its measurement of ECls. The Group uses the external
information including economic data and forecasts published by government bodies and monetary
authorities, such as GDP growth rates, unemployment rafes, efc.

In respect of the loan and account receivables other than account receivables from securities dealing and
broking business, except for those are assessed to be credit impaired, the ECLs are estimated using a
caleulation model using observable data as at the end of the reporting period, including the difference
between (i) the effective inferest rafes of interest charged by the Group for similar categories of the loans
and the riskfree rates of respective regions; (i) administrative service cost of the Group; and |iii) the
weighting of the loan receivables under different categories of loan receivables at each of the reporting
dates. The forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
fo seftle the receivables would be also incorporated in the calculation, when applicable. The Group had
considered that the gross domestic growth rafe and unemployment rafe of respective regions that the
customers locate are to be the most relevant factor, and these are applied in the regression model given the
COVID-19 pandemic and some significant changes in the market indexes.

In respect of the account receivables from securities dealing and broking business, the Group esfimates the
ECLs based on (i) the Group's estimates of the market borrowing rates for each of the grouping less riskfree
rate, which reflect the credit risk of account receivables from security dealing services and (i) the fime value
of money, and are adjusted by forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs and effort, such as GDP growth rate, Hang Seng Index, Hang Seng Futures Index,
efc. and these are applied in the regression model given the COVID-19 pandemic and some significant
changes in the market indexes. Those receivables with significant balances and credit impaired, if any are
assessed for ECLs individually.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
Internal credit risk ratings (Continued)
The following table shows the Group's credit risk grading framework:

Loan receivables
(financial leasing) and ~ Loan receivables (except

account receivables for financial leasing),

(except for account account receivables from

receivables from margin  margin clients and other
Category Description clients) financial assets
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of ~ Lifefime ECL - nof credit ~ 12-m ECL

default or has not been a significant increase in-~ impaired
credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired

Doubiful For financial assets where there has been a lifefime ECL - not credit  lifetime ECL - not credit
significant increase in credit risk since inifial impaired impaired
recognition but that are not credit impaired

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired  Lifefime ECL - credit Lifefime ECL - credit
when lone or more events that have a impaired impaired
defrimental impact on the esfimated future cash
flows of that asset have occurred, such as over

90 days past due

Wiriteoff There is evidence indicafing that the debtor isin -~ Amount is writien off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
reclisfic prospect of recovery

The identfification of internal credit rating for all financial assefs regularly reviewed by the management of
the Company fo ensure relevant information about specific financial assets is updated.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount of loan and account receivables by the Group's infemal credit rating
and year ended classification:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

Performing 568,936 662,254
Doubifful 16,563 108,511
Default 47,782 489,266
633,281 1,260,031

loan and account receivables with an aggregate amount of approximately RMB214,487,000 (2020:
approximately RMB37,766,000) were written off as bad debts during the year, as disclosed in Notes
21{a), (b), (c) and (e).
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The analysis of the exposure of credit risk and ECLs for loan and account receivables af the reporting date
are as follows:

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - ECL-
not credit credit
12-m ECL impaired impaired Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 31 December 2021

Financial leasing receivables
Cross amount 34,854 17,070 26,374 78,298
Less: allowance for EClLs - (15,382) (15,382)

Net amount 34,854 17,070 10,992 62,916

Factoring loan receivables
Cross amount - - - -
Less: allowance for ECLs - - - -

Net amount - - - -

Small loan receivables

Gross amount 469,996 54,379 20,134 544,509
Less: allowance for ECLs (1,387) (1,254) (18,755) (21,396)
Net amount 468,609 53,125 1,379 523,113

Other loan receivables

Cross amount - 3,266 - 3,266
Less: allowance for EClLs - (564) - (564)
Net amount - 2,702 - 2,702

Account receivables

CGross amount 10 5,924 1,274 7,208
Less: allowance for ECLs - - (1,274) (1,274)
Net amount 10 5,924 - 5,934
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - ECL-
not credit credit
12-m ECL impaired impaired Total

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O00

As at 31 December 2020

Financial leasing receivables

Gross amount 47,971 28,227 428,518 504,716
Less: allowance for ECLs - - (195,282)  (195,282)
Net amount 47,971 28,227 233,236 309,434

Factoring loan receivables

Gross amount - 165,588 17,261 182,849
Less: allowance for ECLs - - (6,143) (6,143
Net amount - 165,588 11,118 176,706

Small loan receivables

Cross amount 33,414 465,304 38,452 537,170
Less: allowance for EClLs (1,269) (8,525) (33,905) (43,699)
Net amount 32,145 456,779 4,547 493,471

Other loan receivables

Cross amount - 23,478 - 23,478
Less: allowance for ECLs - (3,329) - (3,329)
Net amount - 20,149 - 20,149

1

Account receivables

Cross amount 132 6,651 5,035 11,818
Less: allowance for ECLs - - (5,035) (5,035)
Net amount 132 6,651 - 6,783
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and mainfains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The following tables details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial assets and financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Total
On  Lessthan 3to 1to Over undiscounfed  Carrying
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5years  cash flows amount

RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

At 31 December 2021
Financial assets

Loan and account receivables 57,010 79,284 209,626 290,521 - 636,441 594,665
Deposits and other receivables 196 - 190 309 - 695 695
Other assets 387 - - - - 387 387
Financial assets at FVOC 38,085 - - - - 38,085 38,085
Cash and cash equivalents 100,200 - - - - 100,200 100,200
Total financial assets 195,878 79,284 209,816 290,830 - 775,808 734,032

Financial liabilities

Account payables 16,408 - - - - 16,408 16,408
Deposits from financial leasing

customers - - 3,189 4,125 - 7314 7314
lease liabilities - 490 1,360 1,641 - 3,491 3,192
Amounts due o related parties 641 - - - - 641 641
Accruals and other payables 17,884 - - - - 17,884 17,884
Dividend payable 818 - - - - 818 818
Bond payable - 16,630 - - - 16,630 16,301
Bank borrowings - 100,973 - - - 100,973 99,202
Promissory note - - 3,314 98,004 - 101,318 77,793
Total financial liabilities 35,751 118,093 7,863 103,770 - 265,477 239,553

Financial assets over financial

liabilities 160,127 (38,809) 201,953 187,060 - 510331 494,479
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Confinued)

Tofal
On  lessthan 3o 1o Over undiscounied ~ Carrying
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5years  cash flows amount

RMB'O0O0 ~ RMB'OOO ~ RMB'00OO ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'0Q0

At 31 December 2020
Financial assets
Loan and account receivables 312,640 249569 641,250 77,149
Deposits for further acquisifion
of inferest in @ non-wholly

1,280,608 1,006,543

owned subsidiary and

acquisifion of inferest in @

company - 133,000 - - - 133,000 133,000
Deposits and other receivables 735 1,000 454 435 - 2,624 2,624
Other assefs 400 - - - - 400 400
Amount due from related party 4 - - - - 4 4
Financial assets at FVOC 33,196 - - - - 33,196 33,196
Cash and cash equivalents 118,633 - - - - 118,633 118,633
Tofal financial assets 465,608 383,569 641,704 77 584 - 1,568,465 1,294,400
Financial liabilities
Account payables 24,572 - - - - 24,572 24,572
Deposits from financial leasing

customers - - 3,495 4,222 - 7717 7717
lease liabilities - 746 1,783 3214 - 5,743 5,312
Amounts due o related parties 220 - - - - 220 220
Accruals and other payables 19,382 - - - - 19,382 19,382
Dividend payable 12,927 - - - - 12,927 12,927
Bond payable - 679 18,516 17,180 - 36,375 33,681
Bank borrowings - 77870 361,008 87,604 - 526482 505076
Promissory note - - 3,314 101,318 - 104,632 72,050
Tofal financial liabilities 57101 79,205 388,116 213,538 - 738050 680,937
Financial assets over financial

liabilities 408,507 304,274 253,588  [135,954] - 830415 613,463
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(e)

Foreign exchange risk refers 1o the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong and the PRC with most of the transactions denominated and setfled

in HK$ and RMB. No foreign currency risk has been identified for the financial assets and financial liabilities

denominated in HK$, which is the functional currencies of the subsidiaries in Hong Kong to which these

transactions relate.

During the years, the Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the

management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arises.

Fair va|ue measurement

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Except for the below, the directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded af amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate to their fair values.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The following table presents the carrying value of the Group's financial instruments measured at fair value
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” with
fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

level 1:  fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments.
level 2:  fair values measured using level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet level 1, and

not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

level 3:  fair values measured using significant unobservable input.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial asset at FVOCI
— Unlisted equity securities - - 38,085
2020
level 1 level 2 level 3
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial asset at FVOCI
— Unlisted equity securities - - 33,196

There were no fransfers between the three Llevels during the reporting periods. The methods and valuation
techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous reporting

period.

The movements during the year in the balance of the Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'O00
Financial asset af FVOCI:
At beginning of the year 33,196 49,684
Purchase of the equity securities - -
Refund received on capital reduction of the unlisted equity securities - (16,257
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial asset at FVOCI (Note 17) 4,889 (231)
At end of the year 38,085 33,196
Financial liability at FVPL:
At beginning of the year - 19,600
Fair value loss on contingent consideration payables - -
Repayment - (19,600)

At end of the year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

40. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The disclosure sef out in the tables below include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arangement or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are either:

e Offset in the consolidated statement of financial position; or
e o offset in the consolidated statement of financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net sefflement made between the Group and HKSCC, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right fo set off money obligations receivable and payable with HKSCC on the same settlement date
and the Group intends to seffle on a net basis as account receivables from or account payables to HKSCC.

Except for the above, the amounts due from/to cash and margin clients that are not fo be sefiled on the same date, the
financial collateral including cash and securities received by the Group and deposit placed with HKSCC do not meet
the criteria for offseffing in the consolidated statement of financial position since the right of setoff of the recognised
amounts is only enforceable following an event of default.

Gross Net Related amounts
amount amount not offset
after Amount after Financial  Collateral Net
impairment offset impairment instruments received amount

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 31 December 2021

Amount of account receivables

from
- HKSCC 5,235 (2,607) 2,628 - - 2,628
- Cash clients - - - - - -
- Margin clients 3,276 - 3,276 - (3,276) -
8,511 (2,607) 5,904 - (3,276) 2,628

Amount of account payables from

- HKSCC 2,608 (2,607) 1 - - 1
— Cash clients 5,448 - 5,448 - - 5,448
- Margin clients 10,959 - 10,959 - - 10,959
19,015 (2,607) 16,408 - - 16,408
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40. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Gross Net Related amounts
amount amount nof offsef
affer Amount affer Financial ~ Collateral Net
impairment offset  impairment  insfruments received amount

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OOO  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

As at 31 December 2020
Amount of account receivables

from

- HKSCC 14,856 (12,911) 1,945 - - 1,945

— Cash clients 303 - 303 (303) - -

- Margin clients 3,891 - 3,891 - (3,891) -
19,050 (12,911) 6,139 (303) (3,891) 1,945

Amount of account payables from

- HKSCC 13,157 (12,911) 246 - - 246

— Cash clients 3,391 - 3,391 (303) - 3,088

- Margin clients 20,935 - 20,935 - - 20,935
37,483 (12,911) 24,572 (303) - 24,269

Note: The cash and financial collateral received/pledged represent their fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No financial instruments had been offset as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

41.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant fo a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders af the annual general meetfing held on 19 June 2017,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

Particulars of the Scheme are set out bellows:

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards tfo eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group and enable the Group to affract and retain the employees of appropriate qualifications and with necessary
experience to work for the Group in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest.
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41.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Participants of the Scheme

The board of directors of the Company or a duly authorised committee thereof, may, ot its discrefion, grant options to
any full time or part time employee (including any executive and non-executive director or proposed executive and non-
executive director] of the Group (the “Employees”), business partner, agent, consultant, contractor, representative of
any member of the Group, invested entity, client or supplier, advisor, any other group or classes of participants and
shareholder who have contributed to the Group [collectively the “Participants”), to subscribe for shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and vyet fo be exercised under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue
from time fo time. No options may be granted under the Scheme if the grant of such option will result in the limit being
exceeded. Subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders, the aggregate number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and et fo be exercised under the Scheme shall
not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time fo time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No Parficipants shall be granted an option if total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and fo be granted (including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up fo and including the date of grant to such Participant would exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares for the
fime being in issue unless the proposed grant has been approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with the proposed grantee and his associates abstaining from vofing.

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
fo approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value [based
on the price of the Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject fo shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Period within which the share must be taken up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option subject fo the provisions of early
termination thereof and the board of directors may provide restrictions on the exercise of an option during the period an
oplion may be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the option and the period within which the payment must be made HK$1.00
shall be paid within 21 days from the date of offer of the option.
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41.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Basis of determining the exercise price of the option
The exercise price for Shares under the Scheme shall be a price determined by the board of directors, but in any case

will not be less than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer,
which must be a trading date;

(2)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
trading immediately preceding the date of the offer; or

(3)  the nominal value of a share.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption (i.e. 19 June 2017 and
ending on 18 June 2027), after which no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall remain
in force to the extent necessary fo give effect fo the exercise of any options granted or exercised prior to otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provision of the Scheme.

Defails of share options granted under the Scheme are as follows:

Share options

Share options

by grant date by grant date
24 April 22 January
2019 2020

Number of ordinary shares issued upon exercise:
— Director 100,000 -
- Senior management 350,000 -
— Employees 850,000 7,700,000
— External consultants 8,775,000 2,500,000
10,075,000 10,200,000

For the share options granted on 29 April 2019, 8,050,000 share options are exercisable immediately from the date
of grant (i.e. 24 April 2019) to 23 April 2022 (the “first tranche”); 607,500 share options are exercisable from the
date of grant [i.e. 24 April 2019) to 23 April 2020 (the "second tranche”); 607,500 share options are exercisable
after the expiration of 12 months from the date of grant (i.e. 24 April 2020) to 23 April 2021 (the “third tranche”); and
810,000 share options are exercisable affer the expiration of 24 months from the date of grant (i.e. 24 April 2021] o
23 April 2022 (the “fourth franche”).
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41.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Remaining life of the Scheme (Continued)

For the share options granted on 22 January 2020, neither vesting conditions nor vesting period were imposed on the
granfees fo exercise their share options at any time within 3 years from the date of grant.

In the event the grantee ceases to be the participants, the share options granted to the grantee shall lapse on the date
which the grantee ceases fo be the parficipant.

The Group does not have a legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or seffle the options in cash.

Defails in the exercise prices and the movement of number of share opfions outstanding and exercisable are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Number of share options
Exercise Lapsed/
price As ot Granted  Exercised Forfeited As ot
pershare  Equivalent 1 January during during during 31 December
Grant date option to RMB 2021 the year the year the year 2021
HKS$
24 Apill 2019
~ Director 7.00 6.00 70,000 - - (30,000) 40,000
- Senior management 7.00 6.00 245,000 - - (175,000) 70,000
- Employees 7.00 6.00 437,500 - - (247,500) 190,000
— External consultants 7.00 6.00 1,354,500 - - (427,500) 927,000
22 January 2020
- Employees 6.12 5.44 6,200,000 - (1,060,000) - 5,140,000
— External consultants 6.12 5.44 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000

10,807,000 - (1,060,000)  (880,0000 8,867,000

Exercisable at the end of the
year 8,867,000
Weighted average exercise

price on oufstanding options HK$6.24
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41.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Number of share opfions

Exercise lapsed/
price As at Granted Exercised Forfeited As at
pershare  Equivalent 1 January during during during 31 December
Grant date option fo RMB 2020 the year the year the vear 2020
HK$
24 Apiil 2019
- Direcfor 7.00 6.00 100,000 - - (30,000) 70,000
~ Senior management 7.00 6.00 350,000 - - [105,000) 245,000
— Employees 7.00 6.00 850,000 - - (412,500 437,500
— External consultants 7.00 6.00 1,572,000 - - (217,500 1,354,500
22 January 2020
- Employees 6.12 5.44 - 7,700,000 - (1,500,000] 6,200,000
— External consultants 6.12 5.44 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
2,872,000 10,200,000 - (2,265,000 10,807,000
Exercisable af the end of the year 10,087,000
Weighted average exercise price
on outstanding options HK$6.29

The fair values of employee services received in return for share options granted are measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted.

Certain external consultants were engaged fo advise on the business expansion through sfrategic development in the
money lending business, enhancing corporate strategy and branding, as well as the potential acquisition, efc. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of services cannot be measured reliably and the Group should
measure the services rendered the external consultants by reference fo the fair value of share options granted. For those
external business partners who provided the referral services, the fair value of share options granted are measured by
reference fo the fair value of the services received.

The Group granted 6,900,000 and 1,875,000 share options to external consultants and business partners
respectively during 24 April 2019. The options will entille the grantee fo subscribe for a fofal of 8,775,000 new
shares of HK$0.01 each at an exercise price of HK$7 per share.
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41.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group further granted 2,500,000 share options to external consultants during 22 January 2021 which enfifle the
grantee to subscribe for a fotal of 2,500,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at an exercise price of HK$6.12 per
share.

For the fair value of services measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the share opfions granted, the fair value is
determined by the directors of the Company with reference to the valuation performed by an independent valuer,
Infernational Valuation Limited (2020: Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited) using the Binomial Option Pricing Model
significant inputs info the model were as follows:

Share options Share options
by grant date by grant date
24 April 22 January
2019 2020
Expected volatility 32.00%-38.31% 35.01%
Expected option life 1-3 years 3 years
Expected dividend yield 0.46% 0.61%
Annual riskfree interest rate 1.66%1.85% 1.54%
Fair value HK$9,241,000 HK$5,269,320
Fair value

— first tranche HK$0.828 HK$0.517

- second franche HK$0.663

— third tranche HK$1.304

— fourth tranche HK$1.701

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility of future trends, adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available information, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome. No other feature of the options was incorporated info the measurement of the fair value.

The variables and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the share options were the directors’ best estimates.
Change in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, share-based payment expense of RMB 162,000 (2020: RMBS5,443,000)
for the share opfion scheme was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Nofe Q) with a
corresponding credit in share-based payment reserve.

1,060,000 (2020: No) share options are exercised during the year. At the time when the share options are
subsequently exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was approximately RMB487,000 (2020:
Nil) transferred from share-based payment reserve fo share capital and share premium.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits. During the year ended 31
December 2021, 880,000 (2020: 2,265,000 share options lapsed as they were not exercised at the expire date or
due to resignation of the grantees after vesting period.
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42.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entities in the Group will be able to confinue as a going concern while
maximising the refurn to equity holders of the Company through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capifal structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, promissory note and bond payable, cash and bank
balances and total equity, comprising equity attributable to equity owners of the Company and non-controlling interest.

The directors of the Company review the capital sfructure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new share issues and raise of new borrowings.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are regulated by the SFC and are required to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules ("SF(FRJR”). The Group
has established a legal and compliance department which is operated by experienced compliance officers and
is monitored by management. The principal roles of the legal and compliance department are to monitor the daily
financial status and to review internal control of the Group regularly to ensure that the Company's regulated subsidiaries
are in compliance with related regulations. Those subsidiaries have been in compliance with the capital requirement
imposed by the SFFRR throughout the year.

No material changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(a) General information of subsidiaries

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct or indirect inferests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of which are sef out as below:

Place of Particulars of issued Arl'rib?iable
incorporation/  and fully paid-up share equity interest
Name of the company establishment  capital/registered capital 2021 2020 Principal activities
Directly held
Wealthy Way Holdings Limited ~ BVI 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Invesiment holding
US$1 each
Wealth Ton Finance Group Limited  BVI 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding
(ERCREEFRAR) US$1 each
(Note a
Indirectly held
China Wealthy Way Group Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Invesiment holding
limited (P EZEXEHR AT HK$274,579,569
CWW Finance (ZEBIFR&#E  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
NS
Wealthy Way (Ching) Finance ~ The PRC RMB333,330,000 100% 100% Provision of financial leasing,
lease Limited (28 (PE) factoring and advisory
REBERRLA) services
Shenzhen Wealthy Way Investment  The PRC RMB180,250,000 100% 100% Provision of financiol advisory
Holdings Company Limited services
(RImEEREERAR
R ['SZ Wealhy Way
Investment”)
Shenzhen Yuli Information The PRC None (Note 35) 100% 100% Not yet commenced business
Technology Co., lid. [#3IT
HAEBRINERAR)
Shenzhen Qianhai Wealthy Way  The PRC (Note a) N/A N/A Not yet commenced business
Financial leasing Company
limited (I B ERERE
BRDF ('S leasing')
Wealthy Way Commercial The PRC RMB 100,000,000 100% 100% Provision of factoring
Factoring Limited (AT & i
BEREERRF)
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of Particulars of issued Arl.rib?table
incorporation/  and fully paid-up share equity interest

Name of the company establishment  capital/registered capital 2021 2020 Principal activities

Wealth Way Information The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Provision of loan facilitation
Technology Limited (YT =& services
EEMEBARARY)
("WW Information”)

Shenzhen Haosen The PRC RMB400,000,000 100% 55% Provision of small loans
(RYITERNBERBRINER (Note 18)
G

Grand Partner Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
(FIEZBEARDH) HK$5,300,000

Grand Parfners Asset Management  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of investment
limited |FIBEEERER AR HK$5,861,000 management and advisory

services

Grand Parfners Investment Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of securiies advisory
Consultants Limited (F|82#%& HK$250,000 services
BRARLA)

Grand Parfners Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of money lending
(FIEHBERAF) HK$30,000,000 business

Grand Partners Securifies Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of securities dealing
(FEBEFERAR) HK$30,000,000 and broking services

Grand Pariners Capifal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Not yet commenced business
(FIBRERRAR) HK$10,000,000

Shenzhen Qianhai Grond The PRC US$2,000,000 100% 100% Provision of assef management
Partners Equity Invesiment Fund services
Management Company Limited
(RYBTEMBREREES
ERARAR)

Shenzhen Haosen Tech (&I The PRC RMB180,000,000 100% 100% Provision of information
ERMTEZBERAT)

Shenzhen Yuli [RYFAFILBR  The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Provision of marketing and
N (Note 35) advisory services
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of Particulars of issued Aﬁ.ribfjtable
incorporation/  and fully paid-up share equity interest
Name of the company establishment  capital/registered capital 2021 2020 Principal activities
Shenzhen Wealthy Way The PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100% Provision of financial leasing
Consulting Services Co. Lid (2020: Nil) [Note b} and other advisory services

(R EERAREER
R ['SZ Wealhy Way
Consuling')

Notes:

(al

(b]

SZ leasing has been applied for deregistration and successfully deregistered on 9 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, no registered capital of SZ Wealthy Way Consulting has been paid-up and the Group therefore had
anoutstanding investment commitment of RMBS5,000,000 in SZ Wealthy Way Consulting.

The English name of the subsidiaries established in the PRC represent management's best effort at translating the Chinese name of such

subsidiaries as no English name has been registered.
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43.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Partly-owned subsidiary with material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

Financial information of Shenzhen Haosen which is the only subsidiary of the Group which has a material NCl is
summarised below. The amounts disclosed are before any intercompany elimination:

2020

RMB'000
NCI percentage 45%
As at 31 December
Current assets 497,339
Non-current assefs 17,416
Current liabilities (135,4606)
Non-current liabilities (120)
Net assets 379,169
Carrying amount of NCI 170,626
For the year ended 31 December
Revenue /2,248
Profit for the year 10,687
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,687
Profit allocated to NCI 4,809
Dividend paid to NCI 12,081
For the year ended 31 December
Cash flows generated from operating acfivities 189,124
Cash flows used in invesfing activities (199)
Cash flows used in financing activities (184,693)
Net cash inflows/[outflows) 4,232

As disclosed in Notfe 18(a), upon the completion of further acquisition on 24 December 2021, Shenzhen
Haosen became an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary, no financial information of Shenzhen Haosen is required
fo disclosed.
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44.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

The Group had non-cash addifions to rightofuse assefs and lease liabilities of approximately RMB1,105,000
[2020: RMB345,000) and RMB 1,105,000 {2020: RMB345,000] during the year ended 31 December 2021
in respect of lease arrangements for the properties (Note 15).

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities:
Due to
related Bank  Promissory Bond lease  Dividend
parties  borrowings nofe payable liabilifies payable Total
RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO ~ RMB'O0OO  RMB'000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'OOO  RMB'000
[Note 22)  [Note 27)  (Note 28]  (Nole 29]  [Note 15)
At T January 2020 3,572 727,170 66,922 17,879 5,257 392 821,192
Changes from financing cash
flows:
Repayment fo related parties (3,314) - - - - - (3,314
Proceeds from bank loans - 226,000 - - - - 226,000
Repayment of bank loans - (448,094) - - - - (448,094)
Interest paid - (43,473) - (1,189) - - (44,662
Issuance of bond payable - - - 17,787 - - 17,787
Repayment of lease liabilifies
[including interest paid) - - - - (3,414) - (3,414)
Dividend paid - - - - - (6,457] (6,457]
Total changes from financing
cash flows [3,314) (265,567 - 16,598 (3,414 (6,451) (262,148
Other changes:
Inferest expenses [Nofe 8| - 43,473 8,442 2814 354 - 55,083
Interest payable (included in
accruals| - - (3,314) (1,538) - - (4,852)
Proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and
equipment received by a
director (38) - - - - - (38)
Additions of lease liabilities - - - - 345 - 345
Extension of lease - - - - 2,899 - 2,899
Dividend declared - - - - - 19,033 19,033
Total other changes (38) 43,473 5,128 1,276 3,598 19,033 72,470
Exchange adjusiments - - - o 129) 7)) (2,248
At 31 December 2020 220 505,076 72,050 33,681 5312 12,927 629,266
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44.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities (Continued)

Due to
related Bank  Promissory Bond lease  Dividend
parties  borrowings note payable liabilities payable Total

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
(Note22)  [Note27)  (Note28)  (Note29)  (Note 15)

At T January 2021 220 505,076 72,050 33,681 5312 12,927 629,266

Changes from financing cash

flows:
Advance from related parties a1 - - - - - 421
Proceeds from bank loans - 99,000 - - - - 99,000
Repayment of bank loans - (504,874) - - - - (504,874)
Inferest paid - (13,335) - (112) - - (13,447)
Repayment of bond payable - - - (16,603) - - (16,603)
Repayment of lease liabilifies

[including interest paid) - - - - (2,333) - (2,333)
Dividend paid - - - - - (15,997) (15,997)

Total changes from financing

cash flows 421  (419,209) - (16,715) (2,333 (15,997) (453,833
Other changes:
Inferest expenses [Note 8] - 13,335 9,058 2,173 287 - 24,853
Inferest payable (included in
accruals) - - (3,315) (1,886) - - (5,201
Additions of lease liabilities - - - - 1,420 - 1,420
Gain on early redemption of
bonds [Note 7| - - - (175) - - (175)
Dividend declared to NCI - - - - - 3,916 3,916
Termination of lease - - - = (1,435) - (1,435)
Total other changes - 13,335 5,743 112 272 3,916 23,378
Exchange adjusiments - - - 777) (59) (28) (864)
At 31 December 2021 641 99,202 77,793 16,301 3,192 818 197,947
WEALTHY WAY GROUP LIMITED
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44.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within operafing activities 343 366
Within financing activities 2,333 3,414
2,676 3,780

45.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 13 January 2022 and 25 February 2022, the Company enfered info two subscription agreements with Mr. Lo as
the guarantor and the investors as the subscribers in the connection with the issue of 8% bond with aggregate principal
amount of HK$20,000,000. The bond shall be redeemable after 2 years from the date of initial issuance.




Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years
prepared on the basis set out in the nofes below.

RESULTS
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Revenue 113,871 176,094 196,617 83,046 Q6,587
Profit/(loss) before income tax 57,777 (140,982) 65,785 33,559 39,734
Income fax [expense)/credit (17,558) 34,149 (24,421) (10,553) (13,3406)
Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations 40,219 (106,833) 41,364 23,006 26,388
Profit/(loss) attributable to the
owners of the Company 30,582 (111,642) 36,270 23,641 26,388
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As at 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Total assets 796,085 1,368,887 1,710,639 1,565,359 1,207,595
Total liabilities 255,028 695,011 916,298 888,910 721,094
541,057 673,876 794 341 676,449 486,501
Equity affributable fo the owners
of the Company 541,057 503,250 616,443 503,645 486,501
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